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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF BORDERLESS TRAVEL SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Borderless Travel
Services Limited (the Company), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Cash Flows

and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (the standalone financial statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under section 133 of the Act (Ind AS) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021
and its loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the I[CAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
The Management of the Company is responsible for the other information. The other information
obtained at the date of this report is report of the board of directors, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
herwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on our work, we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein. we are required
to communicate to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with
the SAs. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including Ind AS, read with the rules made thereunder and the relevant
provisions of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resxﬂting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions,
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concerm.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

£ As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (the Order) issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”
a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
- Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.
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(©)

(d)

(e)

()

(2

(h)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the rules made
thereunder and the relevant provisions of the Act;

On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on March 31,
2021 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors are
disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a Director in terms of
section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
we give our separate Report in “Annexure B”;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of: the Act, as amended:

The Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year and hence,
the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accerdance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(1)  The Company does not have any pending litigations, which would impact the
financial position of the Company;

(i)  The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts; and

(ili)  There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
egistration No. 104767W

@t

Atul Shah
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No. 039569
Dated: 25/05/2021 UDIN: 21039569AAAAIC8902
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Annexure A- referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report on even date to the members of the Company on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment and hence provision of -
paragraph 3(i) of the Order is not applicable.

1l. The Company’s nature of operations does not require it to hold inventories. Consequently,
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order regarding physical verification of inventories and maintenance
of records is not applicable.

ili. =~ The Company has not granted any unsecured loans to parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act during the year. Hence, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order
is not applicable.

iv.  Based on audit process applied by us and according to the information and explanations
given to us, in our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Act, in respect of investments made and loans, guarantees and securities
granted, as applicable.

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not accepted deposits from the public and therefore, the provisions of section 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder are not applicable to
the Company.

We have been informed that no order has been passed by Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal in this
regard.

vi.  The provisions of section 148(1) of the Act, relating to maintenance of cost records are not
applicable.

vii.  (a) Based on the records produced before us, the Company is generally regular in depositing
with appropriate authorities applicable undisputed statutory dues such as provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, profession tax, service tax, goods and services tax,
cess and other applicable statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There are no arrears
as at March 31, 2021 which were due for more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no disputed dues of income-tax, service tax, goods &
services tax and profession tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii.  The Company has neither raised loans from banks and financial institutions nor issued any
debentures, therefore the provisions of paragraph 3(viii) of the Order regarding default in
repayment of dues to banks and financial institutions and debenture holders is not applicable
to the Company.

ix.  The Company has not raised any money by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public
Offer (including debt instruments) and term loans. Hence, the provisions of paragraph 3(ix)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

|
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x.  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the
mformation and explanations given to us, no instances of fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers and employees have been noticed or reported during the year.

xi.  The Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration. Hence, reporting
requirements under this paragraph 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable.

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

xiii.  Inrespect of transactions with related parties, the Company has complied with provisions of
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable. Necessary disclosures relating to related
party transactions have been made in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standard.

Xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the
Order 1s not applicable to the Company.

xv.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors. We have been
informed that no such transactions have been entered into with persons connected with
directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XVi, In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3 (xvi) of the
Order 1s not applicable.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants
istration No. 104767W

—

Atul Shah

Partner
Place: Mumbai ' ' Membership No. 039569
Dated: 25/05/2021 UDIN: 21039569AAAAIC8902
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Annexure B referred to in paragraph 2(f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' of our Independent Auditor’s report of even date, to the members of
Borderless Travel Services Limited (the Company) on the standalone financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act)

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the

Company as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by ICAI These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. assessing
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effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence, we have obtained is. sufticient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

—

Atul Shah

Partner
Place: Mumbai ' Membership No. 039569
Dated: 25/05/2021 UDIN: 21039569AAAAIC8902




Borderless Travel Services Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Deferred Tax Assets 3 18,84,270 ,297
Total Non-Current Assets 18,84,270 3,297
Current assets
Financial Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents 4.1 15,93,412 5,01,705

Other Financial Assets 4.2 26,25,075 -
Other current assets 5 81,024 B
Total Current Assets 43,00,411 5,01,705
TOTAL ASSETS 61,84,681 5,05,002
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 6 50,000 50,000
Other equity

-Reserve & surplus 7 (64,40,419) (5,74,095)
Total Equity (63,90,419) (5,24,095)
LIABILITIES
Non-Current liabilites

Employee Benefit Obligations 10 24,06,321 =
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Loans 2] 12,00,000 =

- Other financial liabilities 8 69,48,399 10,28,797

Employee Benefit Obligations 10 18,20,141 -
Other current liabilities 9 2,00,230 300
Total current liabilities 1,01,68,779 10,29,097
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,25,75,100 10,29,097
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 61,84,681 5,05,002

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date.
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 10476

Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No. 39569

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

Rajeev
Director
DIN: 6775970

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Amit Madan
Director
DIN: 06646076

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai




Borderless Travel Services Limited
Statement of Profit And Loss for the period ended March 31, 2021

(Amount in Rupeces)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended March
March 31, 2021 ) 31, 2020
Income
Revenue from Operations =
Total income - '
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 11 74,80,704 n
Finance Cost 12 0,663 -
Other expenses 13 2,56,930 40,180
Total expenses 77:47,297 40,180
Profit before tax (77,47,297) (40,180)
Less : Tax expense
Current tax 14 * =
Deferred tax 14 (18,80,972) (3,207)
[Total tax expenses (18,80,972) (3,297)
Profit for the year (A) (58,66,325) (36,883)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss =
E(atal other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes (B) - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (58,66.325) (36,883)
Earnings per equity share ( Face value of INR 10 each)
- Basic earnings per share (In INR) 19 (1,173) (7)
- Diluted earnings per share (In INR) (1,173) (7)

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date.
For G. M. Kapadia & Co. -
Chartered Accountants

Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No. 39569

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

For ang on hehalf of the Board of Directors

N\

Rajeev
Director
DIN: 6775970

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

\

mit Madan
Director
DIN: 06646076

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai




Borderless Travel Services Limited

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2021

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(A) Equity share capital

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2019 50,000
ch in equity share capital during the vear =
Balance as at March 31, 2020 50,000
Jchanges in equity share capital during the vear -
|Balance as at March 31, 2021 50,000
(B) Other Equity

Reserves & Surplus
Particulars Retained Earnings Total Reserve & Surplus
Balance as at April 1, 2019 (5.37,211) (5.37.211)
Profit for the year (36,883) (36,883)
Other Comprehensive Income i -
Total Comprehensive Income for the vear - -
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners
Balance at the March 31, 2020 (5.74,094) (5,74,004)]
Profit for the year (58,66,325) (58,66,325)

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Bl by L

(64,40.419)

(64,40.419)

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in eonjunction with the accompanyving notes.

As per our report of even date. =
For G. M, Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 1

Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No. 30560

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

Rajeev Kal
Director
DIN: 6775970

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

If of the Board of Directors

Amit Madan
Director
DIN: 06646076

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai




Borderless Travel Services Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended Mareh 31, 2021

. {Amount in Rupees)
Rote Period ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
A) Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax (77,47,207) (40,180)
Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities (77.47,207) (40,180)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase/(Decrease) in Other financial Liabilities 1,01,46,064 1,500
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 1,99,939 (1,006)
(Inerease)/ Decreasa in Other Assels (26,25,075) -
{Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Assets (81,924) -
Cash generated from operations (1,08,293) (39,776)
Income taxes paid - =
Net cash inflow from operating activities (1,08,293) (39,776)
B) Cash flow from investing activities:

Loan received 12,00,000 =
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities 12,00,000 -
Net inerease in eash and cash equivalents 10,901,707 (39,776)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 5,01,705 541,481
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15,93,412 5,01,705

Reconciliation of Cash Flow statements as per the cash flow statement 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Cash Flow statement as per above comprises of the following

Cash and cash equivalents 15,093,412 501,705
Balances as per statement of cash flows 15,938,412 5.01,705

Notes :

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indireet Method” set out in Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS-7) on Statement of Cash Flow as notified under Companies (Acounts) Rules, 2015,

2. The above statement of Cash flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date o
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 104

>

—
Atul Shah Rajeev Kafe
Partner Director
Membership No. 39569 DIN: 970

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Amit Madan
Director
DIN: 06646076

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

/



Borderless Travel Services Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the period ended March 31, 2021

General Information

Borderless Travel Services Limiled was incorporated on August 25th, 2015 The Company is a 100% subsidiary of Thomas Cook (India) Limited

1 Significant Accounting Policies

1.1

1.2

1.4

W@

(a)

Basis of preparation of financial statements

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in aceordance with the Indian Aceounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS") In
accordance with proviso of the Rule 4A of Companies Accounting Rules, 2014, the lerms used in these financial statements are in accordance
with the definitions and other requirements specified in the applicable Accounting standards as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015 that are
notified and effective as at 31st March, 2019.

This financial statements for the year 315t March, 2021 has prepared under IND AS.

Current V/s Non-Current

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cyele and other eriteria set out
in the Schedule 11T to the Companies Art, 2013. Based on the nature of services and the time between the rendering of services and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascerlained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current-noncurrent
classification of assets and liabilities.

Provisions and contingent liabilities .

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required Lo settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet
date. Provisions are not recogriised for future operating losses, A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate
of the expenditure require to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting peried. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects eurrent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifie to the liability. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events not wholly within the contral of the Entity or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate
of the amount cannot be made.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the cash flow statement, Cash and Cash Equivalents includes Cash on Hand, Cheques/Drafls en Hand, Remittances in Transil, Balances
with Bank held in Current Account and Demand Deposits with maturities of three months or less, Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of an entity's cash management, and are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the period, The weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during
the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for evenis, such as bonus shares, and excluding treasury shares other than the conversion
of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take

into account:

= The after income tax effect of interest and ather financing cosls associated with dilutive potential equity

shares, and

» The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming

the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (that is the
average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the
period, unless issued at a later date,




Borderless Travel Services Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the period ended March 31, 2021

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
1.5 Empolyee Benefits
(1) Long-term Employee Benefits
The Compmmy rles b bl awing post-employment sehemes: - - -

(1) Detined i as gratuity
(i} Defined contribution plans such as provident fund

P IICT Pralis sl

(i) Defined Contribution Plans

Contribulion towards Provident Fund for all employees are made to the regulatory authorities,where the Company has no further obligations.
Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not earry any further obligations, apart from the
contributions made on a monthly basis.

Company's contributions Lo the above funds are charged o the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year for which the contributions are due
for payment.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of

Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lJump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment.

Contribulion to Gratuity is based on the premium contribution called for by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) with whom the
Company has entered into an arrangement. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unil Credit method) at the
end of each year. The amount of nel interest expense caleulated by applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset is charged or credited in the statement of profit and loss. Any differences betweaen the interes! income on plan assets and the return
actually achieved, and any changes in the liabililies over the year due to changes in actuarial assumplions or experience adjustments within

the plans, are recognised immediately in *Other comprehensive income’ and subsequently not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

(b) Short-term Employee Benefit
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the

period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees” services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilitics are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

1.6 Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest rupees or decimals thereof as per the
requirement of schedule III (division 1), unless otherwise stated.

1 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to confirm with current vear's figures.

2 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements:

‘The preparation of Standalone Financial Information requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also need Lo exercise judgment in applying the group’s accounting paolicies.

‘This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially
adjusted due to eslimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the Restated Standalone
Financial Information.

Critical estimates and Judgements

The areas involving critical estimates and judgements are:

(1) Reorganization of deferred tax

In view of the consistent losses and no commercial operations by company, the company may not have future taxable profit. Accordingly, a deferred tax
assel has not been reorganized on unabsorbed losses of INR 88,872/, since criteria for probakility has not met.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that




Borderless Travel Services Limited

Naotes forming part of the F

Note 3: Deferved Tax Assels:

rancial Statements as

at and for the period ended March ;g

The halwiee comprisesof temporary di bustable tot -
Asal As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Defernad T s Losses 18.84.270 3297
[Total Defe Assets 18,8.4,270 3,297
Note 4.1: ial Asscts - Cash and eash equivalents
(Amount in RuEL-f:s]
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balances with banks :
In cw 1593412 5.01,705
Cash = =
Chegues on hand = ~
Total Cash and cash equivalents 5,01,705
Note 4.2: Other financials assets
{Amount in Rupees)
Particulars As at Asat

March 11, 2021

March 31, 2020

les from Related Parties

Other Receive

26,25,075

26,25,075

(Amount in Rugccs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Advance to Vendor 4,800 7
SLA bank Balance 73,110
4,014 =
81,924 -




Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the period ended March 31, 2oz

Note 6: Equity Share Capital "

Equity Share capital (Amount in Rupees)
Particulars No of Shares Amount
AUTHORISED

As at April 1, 2019 10,00,000 1,000,00,000
Increase during the year = 3
As at March 31, 2020 10,00,000 1,00,00,000
Increase during the year = =
As at March 31, 2021 10,00,000 1,00,00,000
(i) Movement in Equity Share Capital during the Year

Particulars No of Shares Amount

As at April 1, 2019 5,000 50,000
Add: No of Shares issued during the year - .
As at March 31, 2020 5,000 50,000
Add: No of Shares issued during the year = =
As at March 31, 2021 5,000 50,000

(ii) Terms and rights attached to shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Ditectors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of
interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the residual assets of the Company after distribution to all
seeured creditors, if any, of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their dues.

(iii) Shares of the company held by Holding Company

As at March 21, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Particulars
= No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount
Equity Shares
Thomas cook (India} Limited (Holding Company) and its
Nominees 5,000 50,000 5,000 50,000

(iv) Shareholding Pattern (Shareholders holding 5% or

more shares in the Company)

As at March 31, zo21

As at March 31, 2020

Category of Sharcholder : ;
No of Shares % of Holding No of Shares | % of Holding
Equity Shares
Thomas cook (India) Limited (Holding Company) and its
Nominees 5,000 100%




Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the period ended March 31, 2021

Note = Keserves and surplus

(Amount in Rupees)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020
Retained Earnings (64,40.419) (5,74,095)
Total reserves and surplus (04,40,419) (5,74,095)
Retained Earnings
As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Opening Balance (5,74,095) (5,37,212)
Net Profit for the year (58,66,325) (36,883)
Items of other Comprehensive income recogmnised directly in retained earnings
Closing Balance (64,40,419) (5,74,095)
Note 8: Other Financial Liablities (Amount in Rupees)
i As at March As at March
Particulars 31,2021 31,2020
Loan from Related Party 12,00,000
Advance from Related Party 65,73.872 10,15,297
Liabilities against expense 9,74,527 13,500
|Total Other Financial Liablities 81,48,399 10,28,797
Note g: Other Current Liabilities
(Amount in Rupees)
- As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars Loy G
Statutory Dues 2,00,239 300
Total 2,00,239 300




Borderless Travel Services Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the 12 months ended 31st March, 2021

Note 10 : Employee Benefit Obligations
{Awoiant in Rupees)

Particulars N 315t March, 2021 e - st JL.an"L 2oL
Nou-Current Currenl Total MNon-Current Cumrrent Total
2 Entitlement = 134,750 1.34,750
ty 24.00,321 4,909,060 29,05,381
Emplovee Benefit Pavables d 11,586,231 11,806,331
T'olal 24,060,321 18,20,141 42,256,463 - - -

(iYLeave Obligations - Leave Entitlement

The leave obligations cover the Company’s liability for earned leave, \
The amount of the provision of Rs 134,750 (Previous Period - Nil) is presented as current, since the company does not have an unceaditional right o defer settlement for any of these obligations. The
following amotints reflect leave that is expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months.

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2021 2020
Current leave obligations expected to be settled within next 12 months 1,34,750 =

(ii) Post Employment Obligations
Gratuity

The company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continucus service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gmruify. The
amount of gratuity payable on retirement ftermination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service.

(iii) Defined contribution Plans

The company also has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made o provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are
made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive
obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 389,013

Balance Sheet Amounts - Gratuity
The amounts recognised in Uhe balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit cbligation over the vear are as follows:
{Amount in Rupees)

Present vahue of | Fair value of

obligation plan assets Net amount

Particulars

1st April, 2020 = 4 %
Current service cost 1,29,218 - 1,29,218
Past Service cost 27,76,163 2 27,76,163
Interest expense/(income) 5 3 %
Total amount recognised in proiit and loss 29,05,381 = 29,05,381
Remeasurements

Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest
expense/(income) 2 -
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions = =
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions - - -
Experience (gains)/losses = -

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income - - -
Employer contributions - 3 £
Benefit payments - - z
315t March, 2021 29,035,381 - 29,05,381

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans as foellows: (Amount in Rupees)
315t March, 21st March,
2021 2020

Present value of unfunded obligations 20,05.381 =
Fair value of plan assets =
Deficit of funded plan 29,035,381 *
Unfunded plans 7
Deficit of gratuity plan 29,05,381 z

Particulars




Borderless Travel Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the 12 months ended 31st March. 2021

Significant estimnates: Actuarial assuiiplion

The significant actuarial assumptions were a3 follow <

1l sennsitivits for gratuily

Particulars 315t March, 315t March,
2021 2020
Disconnt rite 5.70% -
I8alacy growth rate 6.00% -

(iv) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Particulars Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in
nssumptions assumptions assumplions
415t March, 3151 March,
315t March, 2021 v
Discount rate 50 basis points 2.93%
[Salary growth rate 50 basis points {-2.81%)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumplion while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to oceur, and changes in some of the assumptions may
be correlated. When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit abligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit cbligation caleulated with the
projected unit eredit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when caleulating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheat.

The major eategories of plans assels for gratuity are as follows:

215t March, 2021

Quoted ] Unguoted [ Total
= 1 -1

Particulars

Insurer Managed Funds

(v} Risk Exposure for gratuity
‘Through its defined benefit plans, the company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below :

Salary growth & Demographic assumptions- The plan i of a final salary defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In
particular, there is a risk for the company that any adverse salary growth or demographic experience or inadequate returns on underlying plan assets can result in an increase in cost of providing these
benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lumpsum in nature the plan is not subject to any longevity risks.

(vi) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions for gratuity
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.73 vears. The expected maturity analysis of undiscownted gratuity is as follows:

(Amount in Rupees)
Particulars Less than a year Betweera:2 Behveen 2.5 Over 5 years Total
years years
315t March, 2021 - Post Employment Obligations 4,99,060 3,47,650 8,049,977 25,19,461 4171154




Borderless Travel Services Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the period en

Wate 11 : Eniployée Benelit Expense

ded March 31, 2021

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended March
March 31, 2021 31, 2020
Salaries Wages and Bonus 68,26,823 G
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 3,89,913 -
Gratuity 1,29,218 -
Leave valuation 1,34,750 =
Total 74,80,704 &
Note 12 : Finance Costs (Amount in Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended March
March 31, 2021 31, 2020
Other Finance Charaes 0,663 -
Total 9,663 -
Note 12 : Other Expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended March
March 31, 2021 31, 2020
Legal and Professional Charges #{Refer note below "a™) 2,47,930 36,760
IT Expense : License and Software Maintenance Cost 9,000 -
Miscellaneous Expenses - 3,420
Total 2,56,930 40,180

# Legal and Professional charges include auditors remuneration

(a): Details of payiments to auditors

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended March
March 31, 2021 31, 2020
Payment to auditors
As auditor:
-Statutory Audit 22,000 22,000
-Tax Audit - -
In other capacities
-Re-imbursement of expenses - -
‘Total payments to auditors 22,000 22,000
Note 14: Income Tax Expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended March

March 31, 2021

31, 2020

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
Total current tax expense

Deferred tax

increase in deferred tax assets (18,80,972) (3.297)
Total deferred tax credit (18,80,972) (3,297)
Income tax expense (18,80,972) (_:_;.297)

(b) The reconciliation of tax expense and the ing profit multiplied

by India's tax rate :

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended March
31, 2020

|_Pm|'|| from continuing operations before income tax expense
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 0% (PY -0%)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible{taxable) in caleulating taxable
income:

Interest on shortfall of advance tax

CSR Expenditure

Buffer tax created

Dividend income

Sec 14A Disallowance

On account of rate difference as compared to previous year

Other items

(77:47,297)

(40,180))

Income tax expense

(18,80,972)

el




Borderless Travel Services Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2021

Note 15: Fair value measurements
Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade payables, and other financial liabilities have been carried at
amortised cost. The carrying amounts of these financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values due

to their short-term nature. Hence, no fair value disclosures / information for these financial assets and financial liabilities has been disclosed
since the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Note 16: Financial risk management
Being a non - operating company, the company is not exposed to any kind of risk.

Note 17: Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital (consisting of equity capital and unremitted profit in the financial statements) are to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, o it can continue to provide services for the holding company and related entities and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or change the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of profits for remittance to holding company,
return equity capital, or require holding company to infuse additional capital to support its operations.

There are no externally imposed capital requirements on the Company.

The Company has not proposed any Dividend for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.




Borderless Travel Sermvices Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2021

Note 18: Related Party Transactions
(a) Parent Entities
The Company is controlled by the following entity:

Name Type Place of Incorporation

Ownership Interest (%)

As at March 31,
2021

As at March 31,
2020

Thomas Cook (India) Limited, India ("TCIL") holds 100%
of Equity Shares of the Company. (Fairbridge Capital
(Mauritius) Limited, Mauritius ("FCML") holds 66.94% of
Equity Shares of TCIL. FCML is wholly owned and
controlled by Fairfax Finaneial Holdings Limited, Canada,
the ultimate holding company.)

Parent entity India

100%

100%

(b} Key Management personnel (Directors)

Particulars

Amit Madhan
Rajeev Kale
Abraham Alapatt

(¢) Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Nature of transaction

March 31, 2021

March 31,
2020

(i) Holding Company

Interest Expenses
Thomas Cook (India) Limited

Balance as at the year end
Thomas Cook (India) Limited
Loan Payable
Interest Payable
Outstanding Payable

(ii) Fellow Subsidiaries

Reimbursement of Expenses (Net)
Horizon Travel Services LLC [ATP)

Balance as at the year end
Outstanding Payable
Horizon Travel Services LLC [ATP]

Outstanding Receivable
SOTC Travel Limited

9,663

12,00,000

65,73,872

73,110

2,92,440

26,25,075

10,15,297

)
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2021

Note19: Earnings PerShare

Particulars

For the period ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders (58,66,325) (36,883)
'Weighted average number of outstanding shares 5,000 5,000
(a) Basic earnings per share

Attributable to the equity holder of the company (1,173) (7)
(b) Diluted earnings per share

Attributable to the equity holder of the company (1,173) (7)

(e) Reconeiliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

|Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 21, 2020

Basic earnings per share
Profits attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic earnings per

share (58,66,325) (36,883)
Profits attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating diluted earnings
per share (58,66,325) (36,883)

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic

earning per share 5,000 5,000
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the
denominator in calculating diluted earning per share 5,000 5,000




Borderless Travel Services Limited
Notes forming part of the Finaneial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2oz

Note 20 : Segmental Reporting
Since the Company has o operations, there are no reportable segments.

Note zi: Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, 1o whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding as a1 March 1. 2021, This information as required to be disclosed under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the hasis of information available with the Company.
This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Note 22

As at March 31, 2021, company has not started its commercial operations. The Company is a 100% subsidiary of Thomas Cook (India) Limited, which has undertock to provide sufficient
financial support to the company to carry on business without curtailment of operations for the period of at least 12 months from the date of signing of the audit report i.e. May 25, 2021 by
wrilten support Jelter,

Note 23: Previous year's figures has been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to confirm with current year's figure.

Signatures to Notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For any on{hehalf of the Board of Directors
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 104

Atul Shah Amit Madan
Partner Director
Membership No. 39569 DIN:"6775970 DIN: 06646076
Date: May 25, 2021 Date: May 25, 2021 Date: May 25, 2021

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
















































































































Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.2,

1.2.1.

1.2.2,

Reporting entity

Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited (the “Company™) is engaged in selling Membership including Leisure
Hospitality Services (Time Sharc and Resort business). The Company is a subsidiary of Thomas Cook
(India) Limited and the ultimate holding company is Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited, Canada.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Dircctors on May 19,
2021

Basls of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
» certain financial asscts and liabilities are measured at fair value (Refer Note 36);

o defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value (Refer Note 22);

e share-based payments (Refer Note 31 and 50); and

o free-hold and leasehold land measured at fair value (Refer Note 3 and 51).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 reflect that the Company has accumulated
losses of Rs. 52,601.10 lakhs (which have significantly eroded the net worth of the Company) as at the
balance sheet date. The above accumulated loss includes a one-time impact of Rs. 30,260 lakhs on
change in accounting for contracts with customers, pursuant to transition to Ind AS 115 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. The Company has considered various internal and cxternal sources of
information, up to the date of approval of the financial statements, in determining the potential impact
on the financial position and business operations of the Company including those arising from the
COVID-19 pandemic including the second wave in April 2021,

Based on the approved cash flow projections for the next 12 months, availability of assets (land,
buildings, trade reccivables eic.) for securitization/monetization for additional funds, the Company
believes that it would be able to meet its financial requirements and no adjustments would be required
in respect of the carrying values of assets/liabilities. Accordingly, these financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the
Chief operating decision maker.

The Chairman-Managing Dircctor (CMD) of the Company has been identified as the chief operating
decision maker of Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited who assesses the financial performance and

presented.




Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.2,

1.2.3.

1.24.

Basis of preparation (contd.)

Current / Non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule LIl to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of asscts and liabilities.

Foreign currency transaction

a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The
financial statements are presented in Indian rupce (Rs.) which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition

The Company’s business is to sell membership and provide holiday facilities to members for a specified
period each year, over a number of years, for which membership fee is collected either in full upfront,
or on a deferred payment basis.

Under Ind AS 115, an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard establishes a five-step approach to
revenue recognition that includes identifying contracts with customers, identifying performance
obligations, determining transaction prices, allocating transaction prices to performance obligations
and recognising revenues when or as the performance obligations are satisfied.

a) Revenuce from membership fees
In respect of sale of membership, the Company determines the transaction price and allocates the
same (o each performance obligation in the membership contract based on their respective fair
values. Revenue from membership fee is recognised over the effective membership period as the
performance obligation is fulfilled over the tenure of membership applicable to the respective
member. The revenue to be recognised in future periods is classified as deferred income under the
head ‘other non-current’/ ‘other current liabilities’. Revenue from offers and other benefits given
to the customer is recognised as and when such benefits are provided to customers.




Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3.

L.3.1.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)

Revenue recognition (contd.)

b)

<)

d)

g

Revenue from annual subscription fees

Income in respect of annual subscription fee or annual amenity charges dues from members is
recognised only when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made. Where the
length of time between rendering services and collection of consideration from the customers is
more than one year, the Company adjusts the considcration for time value of money.

Interest income on membership plans
Interest is recognised as income based on the terms of the contracts entered into with the members
if they are reasonably certain to be recovered from the customers.

Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Company. The estimation of such revenues where there is uncertainty
in collection has been made by the Company based on past trends of year-wise cancellation of
memberships and considering factors impacting future collections.

Incremental costs of obtaining and fulfilling a contract

The Company recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer

if the entity expects to recover those costs. The incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those

costs that an entity incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not have incurred if

the contract had not been obtained. Costs 1o obtain a contract that would have been incurred

regardless of whether the contract was obtained are recognised as an expense when incurred,

unless those costs are explicitly chargeable to the customer regardless of whether the contract is

obtained.

If the costs incurred in fulfilling a conltract with a customer are not within the scope of another

Standard, the Company recognises an asset from the costs incurred to fulfil a contract only if those

costs meet all of the following criteria:

(i) The costs relate directly to a contract or lo an anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify;

(i) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

(iii) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The above costs to obtain and fulfill a contract are amortised over the effective membership period.

Revenue from resorts
Income from resorts comprising of sale of food and beverages, room rentals and other services are
recognised when these are sold and as services are rendered.

Contract balances

(i) Contract asscts
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services rendered to the customer.
If the Company renders services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

(ii) Contract liabilities
A contract Jiability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration has received consideration, or for which an amou
consideration is due from the customer. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue w
Company performs under the contract.




Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3.

1.3.2.

1.3.3.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)

Income taxes

The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Income tax for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in ‘Other
comprehensive income or directlly in equity, in which case the tax is rccogmsed in ‘Other
comprehensive income’ or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current Tax:

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheel date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of
previous years, Interest income/ expenses and penalties, if any related to income tax are included in
current tax expense.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, 1t establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. The company offsets the current tax assets
as against the liability for provision for tax.

{b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance shect approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amount, except when the deferved tax arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred
taxes on items classified under Other comprehensive income ("OCL') has been recognised in OCI.

The carrying amount of deferved tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences
are expecled to be received or scttled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilitics on a net basis.

Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 Leases with effect from April 1, 2019 and the Company has
elected to measure right-of-use asset for all leases at an amount equal 1o the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that [case recognised in the balance
sheet immediately before the date of initial application. At inception of a contract, the Company
assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified ass
the Company uses the definition of a lease in Ind AS 116.
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1.3.
1.3.3.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Leases (contd.)

As a [essee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives reccived.

The right-of-use asset is subscquently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right of use asset will be depreciated over
the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount
rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various
extemal financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of
the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

~ fixed payments, including in substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

~ the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to cxercise, lease
payments in an oplional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not 1o
terminate carly.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lcase payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in the Company’s cstimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option or if there is a revised in substance fixed lease payment,

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right of use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right of
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right of use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in
‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings® in the statement of
financial position,

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value IS} RES
assets and short-term leases. The Company recognises the lcase payments associated with these Icas

as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, Q

(9)
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1.3.  Significant accounting policies (contd.)
1.3.4. Impairment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

1.3.5. Inventories

Inventories comprising of provisions, perishables, beverages and operating supplies are stated at lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in-first out (FIFO) method. The cost
comprises of purchase price, non-refundable taxes and delivery handling cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary coursc of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. Inventories are written down for slow moving/ non-moving items, wherever
necessary.

1.3.6. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that arc
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Interest income from other financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the cxpected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the sharcholder’s right to receive payment has
been established, provided that it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow to the Company and
the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Effective interest method

The effective interest mcthod is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument
and of allocating interest over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts/payments (including all fees and points paid or received that

form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) __

. .\( RESO

amount on initial recognition. <\
0
C

0,
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1.3.

1.3.7.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Financial assets

A financial asset is any asset that is:
(a) cash;
(b) an equity instrument of another entity;
{©) a contractual right:
- to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- to cxchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that -
are potentially favorable to the Company.
(d a contract that will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments and is:
- anon-derivative for which the Company is or may be obliged to receive a variable number
of the entity’s own equity instruments; or
- aderivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments,

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets:
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(a) Thosc to be measurcd subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,

or through profit or loss), and

(b) Those measured at amortised cost,
The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows, For asscts measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments,
this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Mcasurement of financial asset:

Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurcment categories into
which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

i. Amortised cost;
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where thosc cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Intcrest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. }




Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the ycar ended March 31, 2021

1.3
1.3.7

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Financial assets (contd.)

ii. Falr value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, arc measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impainment gains or losses, interest revenue and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

fii. Fair value through profit or loss:
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a dcbt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which
it arises. Interest income from thesc financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all cquity investments other than investment in subsidiaries and
associates, at fair value. Where the Company's management has clected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of
fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit
or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other
gain/(losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at FVOCI arc not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments, The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether therc has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 37 details how the Company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade reccivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognisced from initial recognition of the
receivables.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. In all cases, the maximum period considcred when
estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company iy
exposed to credit risk.
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1.3.
1.3.7.

V.

1.3.8.

Significant accounting policics (contd.)
Financlal assets (contd.)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losscs, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

De-recognition of financial assets:
A financial asset is derecognised only when
i. The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
ii. retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset
is derccognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the cntity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is any liability that is:
(a) a contractual obligation :
- to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
- to exchange financial asscts or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Company; or
(b) a contract that will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments and is:
- anon-derivative for which the Company is or may bc obliged to deliver a variable number of
the Company’s own equity instruments; or
- aderivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments, For this
purpose, rights, oplions or warrants to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity
instruments for a fixed amount of any currency are equity instruments if the Company offers
the rights, options or warrants pro rata 1o all of its existing owners of the same class of its own
non-derivative cquity instruments. Apart from the aforesaid, the equity conversion option
embcedded in a convertible bond denominated in foreign currency 1o acquire a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument if the exercise price is fixed in .
any currency. :
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1.3

1.3.8

1.3.9.

1.3.10.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Finoncial liabilities (contd.)

Measurement of financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities
that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.
Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included under ‘Finance costs’.

Derecognition of financial liabilitics

The Company derccognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid and payable is recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The
effective interest rate is the ratc that exactly discounts estimated futurc cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

The Company adopts the cost measurement approach for property, plant and cquipment other than
freehold and leasehold land.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a scparate asset is derccognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The Company follows revaluation model for measurement of frechold and leasehold land. Freehold
and leaschold land will be recognised at fair value based on periodic, at least triennial, valuations done
by extemal independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation of Icasehold land. Increase in the carrying
amount arising on revaluation of land are recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in reserves in shareholders' equity.

Fair value of land is detennined using the market comparable method, i.e., the valuations performes
the valuer are based on active market sale prices, adjusted for difference in the nature, locatjge

condition of the specific property. Refer Note 51. 3
o
¢
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1.3.

1.3.10

1.3.11.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Property, plant and equipment (contd.)

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Based on technical evaluation carricd out, depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided,
on a pro-rata basis, on Straight Line Method (SLM) over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which
equates (o the useful lives prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, as follows:

Asset class Useful life (in years)
Building 60
Plant and machinery 15
Fumiture and fixtures — gencral 10
Furniture and fixtures — others 8
Office equipment 5
Computer equipment - Servers & Network 6
Computer equipment — Desktop, laptop and end-user items 3
Electrical installations 10
Vehicles 8

Premium paid for acquiring leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease. Assets constructed on
leasehold land/leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of lease or its estimated
useful life, whichever is lower.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/ (losses).

Intangible assets

Intangible assets arc staled at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Intangible asscts arc amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
financial year. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates,
the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Computer software and other intangibles are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 5 years.
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel and recognised as
income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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1.3.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)

1.3.12. Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

1.3.13.

Provisions are recogniscd when the entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past cvent, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. A provision is recognized
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations is
more probable than not. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate
of the expenditure require to scttlc the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Employee benefits

a)

b)

Defined contribution plan

Contribution towards provident fund for employecs is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits arc classificd as Defined Contribution Plan as
the Company does not camy any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a
monthly basis.

Defined benefit plan

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan™) covering eligible
employces in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a
lump sum payment to vested cmployees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of
employment. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit
method) by an independent actuary at the end of each year. Remeasurement gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. The Group Gratuity plan is funded with
Life Insurance Corporation of India, for all of the employees, under New Group Gratuity Cash
Accumulation Plan,

Compensated abscnces

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12
months from the end of the year are treated as short-term employce benefits. The obligation towards
the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional
amount expected (o be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12
months from the end of the year are treated as other long-term employee benefits. The Company’s
liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) by an independent
actuary at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which they arise.
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1.3.  Significant accounting policics (contd.)
1.3.13. Employee benefits (contd.)

d) Share based payments
Employee options

The fair valuc of options granted is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted:

» including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity’s share price)

» excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g.
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period), and

 including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees to save
or holdings shares for a specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

1.3.14. Earnings per share

a) Basic camings per share
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing:
o the profit atiributable to owners of the Company
e by the weighted average number of equity sheares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares (Refer Note 54).

b) Diluted eamings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per share
to take into account: :
o the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and
o the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the convession of all dilutive potential equity shares.




Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3.

L3.15.

2‘

Significant accounting policies (contd.)

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off and presented in
lakhs with decimals as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.

Critical estimates and judgements:
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policics and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income

and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

The areas involving critical estimate or judgement are:

Note 22 - Provision for employee benefit obligations

Note 29 - Recognition of revenue including provision for cancellation of contracts
Note 41 and 1.2.1 - Going concern and impact of COVID-19

Notc 43 and 45 - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about
the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

Note 51 - Valuation of frechold and leasehold land

Note 52 - Leases
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(All amownis in Rs. lakhs, unless atherwise siated)
3 Property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of carrying amount for the year ended March 31, 2020:

Asset description

Land - freehold

Land - feasehold
Building

Computer equipment
Plant and machinery
Fumiture and fixtures
Office equipment
Vehicles

Electrical installations
Total

Reconciliation of carrying amount for the year ended March 31, 2021:

Assct description

Land - freehold
Building

Computer equipment
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Office equiprment
Vehicles

Electrical installations
Total

Gross earrying smount Accuenulsted depreciation Net carrying amount
Asat Additions 7 Dispossts / Asat As st Deprecistion for Disposats/ As st As st Asat

April 1, 2019 Adjustments Transfer March 31,2020 April 1, 2019 the yesr Adjustments March 31,2020  March 31,2019  March J), 2020
49,324.48 - - 49,324 48 . - . . 49,324 48 49.324.48

2,905.47 - 2,905.47 . 129.13 . 129.13 . 277634 .
34,176.68 18338 103.92 34256.14 2,682.75 923.57 103.96 350236 31,493.93 30,753.78
508.74 7768 17.69 568.70 406.74 50.11 1737 43948 10097 129.22
241).42 45.79 10.04 2,448.17 64243 18439 197 824.85 1,76899 1,62332
3,891.80 14.87 12.88 3,893.82 1,60821 521.57 891 2,12087 228359 1,77295
170.72 260 11.82 161.50 14297 1333 11.82 144.48 2175 17.02
141.02 4.63 13.70 132.00 6499 2045 750 794 76.03 54,06
5.036.65 42.19 26.03 $.052.81 1,615.89 3497 21.40 2,139.46 3.420.76 291335
98.866.95 372.19 3.101.52 I5837.62 7,293.11 2,258.39 302.06 9,249.44 91.273.84 36.588.18

Gross carrying smount Accumulated Depreciation Net carrying amonnt
As at Additions / Dispasals / Asat As at Depredation for Disposals / As st As st As at

April 1,2020 Adjustments Transfer March 31,2021 April 1,2020 the year Adjustmenty March 31, 202) March 31,2020 March 31, 2021
49,324 48 8,575.04 . 57,899.52 - . - . 4932448 $7,899.52
34,256.14 2812 103,16 34,181.10 3.502.36 814.45 81.62 422919 30,753.78 29,951.91
568.70 4.82 35.46 538.06 43948 5094 3531 455.11 129.22 82.95
2,44817 29.723 75.82 2,402.08 824.85 194.99 58.64 961.20 162332 1,440.88
3,893.82 4429 163.18 3,77493 2,120.87 501.77 153.63 2,469.01 1,77295 130592
161.50 0.07 11.66 149.91 14448 834 11.52 141.30 17.02 8.61
132.00 3791 1293 156.98 7794 1741 1293 82,42 54.06 74.56
5,052.81 26.60 97.57 4.981.84 _2.13946 557.08 8328 2.613.29 291335 236838
95.837.62 8.746.59 499,78 104.084.42 924944 2.144.99 442.90 1095152 86,588,138 93.132.90

(a) Consequent to the Scheme referred in Note 48 becoming effective, the Company is in the process of transferring the title of Iznd and buildings in the name of Company.

(b) Refer Note 44 for capital commitments.
(c) Refer Note 45 for certain property related matters.

(d) Dufing the financial year 2019-20, the Company had transferred leaschold land amounting to Rs. 2,776.34 lakhs from property, plant & equipment to right of use assets pursuant 1o adoption of IND AS 116- Leases,
{(¢) The Company has written off assets with net camying amount of Rs, 75.56 lakhs based on physical verification conducted (Previous year: Nil).
8 ing policy with respect to measurement of freckold and leaschold lend from the cost model to revaluation model with effect from April 1, 2018, Refer Notes 1.3.10 zd S1. The

Company has conducted vatuation of freeho!ld and leaschold lands during the current financinl year and the increase in valuation is duly considered as part of adjustments in the above schedule. The camrying amounts as at March 31, 2021 & March 31,
2020 under revaluation and cost models are given below

(©  During the financial year 201819, the C

(2 Due to outbreak of COVID-19 the management has performed impai

propercy, plani & equipment.

' a

its

pany has

ent of all its property, plant & equipment as at March 31, 2021 and concluded that non-usage for a short term will not bave any material impact on useful life of such

Revaluation model Cost model
Asat As at Asst As ot
Block of asset March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
{Frechotd Tand 5789952 49.324.48 362300 3604
[Total 57.899.52 49,324.48 3.623.04 3.623.04




Sterling Hotiday Resorts Limited

Notes forming part of financial statemcents as 3t and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

4 Capital work-in-progress

Reconceiliation of carrying amount for the year ended March 31, 2020:

. Gross carrying amount
Asserd " As at April 1, 2019 Additions Disposals / Transfers As at March 31, 2020
Capital work-in-progress 569.19 453.76 319.4 70321
Reconciliation of carying amount for the year ended March 31, 2021:
- Gross earrying amount
Asset description Asat April 1, 2020 Additions Disposals { Transfers As at March 31, 2021
Capital werk-in-progress 70321 60.71 480,09 28383
Capital work-in-progress mainly comprises of resont propesties under construction/ renovation.
During the current year, the Cempany has written off assets amounting to Rs. 431.42 lakhs as these are not recoverable (Previous year: Nil). Refer note 34.
§ Otherintangible assets
Reconciliation of carying amount for the year ended March 31, 2020:
Gross carrying amount Accumulated amortisstion Net carrying amount
- . Amortisation .
Asset description Asat Additions Disposals/ As at Asat charee during the Dispossly/ Asat As st As st
April 1,2019 Adjustments  March 31,2020 Aprit 1, 2009 ree ":"‘ Adjustments  March 31,2020 March31,2019  March 31, 2020
Computer software 1,882.78 84.60 - 196738 35897 341.30 - $00.27 1,323.81 1,067.11
Reconciliation of camying amount for the year ended March 31, 2021:
Gross carrying ameunt Accomulated smortisation Net carrylng amount
e . Amortisation
Asset deseription Asat Additions Disposals/ Asat Asat charee during the Disposals/ Asat Asat Asat
April 1,2020 Adjustments  March 31,2021 April 1, 2020 myelr”g Adjustments March 31, 2021 March 31,2020 March 31,2021
Computer software 186738 62.28 4424 1,985.42 90027 n2 42719 1,168.69 1,067.11 816.73
6  Intaugible assets under development
. Gross carrying amount
Asset description As ol Apnil 1, 2019 ‘Additions Disposals/Transters As at March 31, 2020
Intangible assets under development 37.67 104.10 81.12 60,05
Asset description Gross carrying amount
P As at April 1, 2020 Additions Disposals/Transfers As at March 31, 2021
Intangible assets under development 60.05 29.20 64.54 4.7

Intangible assets under developroent comprise the Company's software and website which is under development,




Sterling lloliday Resorty Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at snd for the yesr ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31,2021 Maech 33,2020
Ns) Non-curreat lavestments
lavestment In equity Instruments (fully paid-up)

Equity investments al cost
{nvestemaent in subsidiaries - Unquoted:

49,000 (March 31, 2020: 49,000) equity shares of Stesting Holidays (Ooty) Limited 7348 7348
49,000 (March 31, 2020: 49,000) equity shares of Sterling Holiday Resosts (Kodaikanal) Limited 116.68 116.68
147,578 (Masch 31, 2020; 147,578) equity shases of Noture Trails Resorts Private Limited 2,066.09 2,066.09
Equlty investmenis st FVTPL

Uaquoted:

Investment In equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully patd-up:

100,000 (March 31, 2020: 100,000 ) equity shares of Stesling Holiday Finvest Limited - -
100,000 (March 31, 2020; 100,000) equity shares of Sterling Securitics & Futures Limited - -
$20,000 (March 31, 2020; 520,000) equity shares of Sterling Resorts Home Fisance Limited - -
700,000 (March 31, 2020: 700,000) equity shares of Sterling Holiday Financial Services Limited - -
Investment in no, of teak units:

28,765 (March 31, 2020: 28,765) equity shares of Stesling Tree-Magnum (Indio) Limited .

Quoted:

lavestment in Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up:

1,100 (Masch 31, 2020: 1,100) equity shares of Tourism Finence Corporation of India Limited 0.6 038
Total 1,256.88 2,256.63
Aggregnie amount of quoted investments and market value thereol 063 038
Aggregnte value of unguoted investments 225628 2,25625
Aggrepate amount of impainnent in the value of investments 1,145.00 1,145.00

As a result of the impact due to COVID-19, the Company performed an impairment analysis on its non-cutrent investments as ot March 31, 2021, Basis the spproved
business plan, projected cashflows from operations of the subsidinsies and the continued support of the Company, there is no impairment to the investment value

7(b) Current investments

Quoted mutusl funds

Investment in Mutual Foods st FVTPL - Quoted:

10,985 (Morch 31, 2020; 10,985) units of TATA Floater Fund - Growih 338,00 317.29
10,985 (March 31, 2020: 10,985) units of TATA Floater Fund - Growth- Segregated ponfolio 1° 342 431
16,58,099 (March 31, 2020: Nif) units of IDFC Low Duration Fund - Reg - Growih 501.48 .
1,40,650 (March 31, 2020: Nil) unils of ABSL Moncy Manager Fund - Reg - Growth 400.80 .
11,559 (March 31, 2020: Nil) units of Kotak Monecy Muket - Reg - Growth 400.73 -
Total 1,644.43 320.60
Aggregate amounl of quoted invesiments and market value thereof 1,644.43 321.60

*Pursvant to the SEBI circular dated December 28, 2018 and subsequent press releascs issucd by Tata Asset Management Lid on June 6 & June 7, 2019, segregated
postfolio of sceurities issued by Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Lid (DHFL) has been ercated in the scheme on June 15, 2019. The purchase price of units in the
segregated portfodio has been considered as Nil as the units have been created in the segregated portfolio without any consideration.

<7his space is intemttonally left blunk>




Sterding Holiday Resorts Limited
Notes forming part of financlal statemenis 23 at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Asat Asat
March 31,2021  March 31, 2020

8(a) Trade receivables non-current

Considered good 292.20 584.88
Tatal 292,20 584.88
S RS

8(b) Trade receivables current

Considered good 342107 9,57241
Considered doubtful 433.33 1,061.97
3,860,40 10,634.38
Less: Loss allowance (refer note 37) (433.33) {1.061.9M
Total 342707 957241
Curren( portion 3,427.07 9,572.41
Non-current portion 29220 584,88
Of the above, trade reccivables from related parties are as below:
Total trade receivables from related parties (Refer note 42) 1746 24.30
Loss allowance - -
Net frode receivables 1746 24.30

For reccivebles secured pgainst borrowings, see Note 49,

The Company hes performed an impairment analysis on its trade receivables as 5 result of th impact of COVID-19. Management belicves that the provision recarded
is sufficient and adequate and the camying amount of receivables reflects its recoverable value. The Company's exposure to credit and loss allowances seloted to trade
receivables erc disclosed in Note 37,

As at Asat *
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2626
Current Non current Current Non current

9 Loans

Unsccured, considered good

Loans and advances 10 related parties - Subsidiaries (Refer note 42) 341639 - 2,436.06 -

Interest accrued on loans and advances te related parties (Refer aote 42) 589.31 . 411.63 -

Employee ndvances 3.96 - 81.53

Total 4,009.66 - 2,929.22 .
10 Other financial assets

Securily deposits - 648.54 82.33 629.72

Reccivable on salc of fixed assels (Refer note 45(b)) - 591.59 - 597.59

Interest accrued on fixed deposits - - 403 .

Unbilled revenue 44.51 - 11.62 .

Other receivables 84.97 - 382,00 -

Total — 12948 1,246.13 479.98 1,227.31

Asat As at

March 31,2021 March 31,2020
11 Odber tax assets {nct)
Advance 1ax [Net of provision for tax Rs. 213.92 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs, 213,92 lakhs)] 1,407.81 1,31031

1,407.81 1,310.31




Sterliog Heliday Resorts Limlted
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

"

18

16

Asat As ot
Other non-current sasels March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Propaid cxpenses 96.67 33.55
Deferred acquisition cost (Refee note (o) below) 8,962.89 8,805.20
Capitn! advances
= Considered good 13147 1342
«Considered doubtful 63.42 883.18
194,89 998.60
« Less: Pravision (or doubiful advances (63.49 (885.18)
131.47 113.42
:oul 9{" 1.03 BA'JSI.I 7
ote:

{2) Deferved acquisition cost selates 1o incremenial costs of acquisilion of the member that are defened over the period of effeclive membership. Increments] costs are
those that would not have been incurred if the contract was no! obtoined, Also Refer note 53.

Inventories

Food and beverages 39.57 51.91

Operating supplies 26.57 39.02

Total 66,14 90.93
N £y 0] . RS

For inventorics d againsi b gs, Refer note 49,

Due to ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, Mznagement has performed impoinment assessment of all inventory as al March 31, 2021 and canrying value of inventorics with
shorter shelf life have been written off.

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
«in current eccounts 168.89 622.01
Deposits with maturity of Jess than three months . 200,00
Cash on hand 21.69 10.99
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 190.59 833.00
Bank overdrafis used for cash management purposes (Refer note 20 (b)) - (1.45936)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 190.58 (626.36)
Other bank balances
Shert temm bank deposits 561.53 3926
(Deposits with meturity of more than 3 months but less than |2 months)
Total o 56753 3926
Other current assels
Prepaid cxpenses 13890 205.25
Deferted acquisition cost (Refer note 53) 53331 534.10
Advances to vendors
Considered good 167.36 481.38
Considered doubifist 10.95 14.61
17831 496.16
Less: Provision for doubifu) advance (10.95) (14.61)
167.36 481,58
Balances with sistutory guthoritics 232.80 24420
Total 1,072.37 1466.10

<This space Is intentionally left blank:-
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Sterling Holiday Resorty Limited
Notes forming part of finsncial statements o3 st 2nd for (he year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

17 Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capital

Authorised March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
400 1akhs (March 31, 2020: 400 lakhs) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 4,000.00 4,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up

290.30 Jakhs (March 31, 2020: 290.50 lakhs) equity shares of Rs.10 each 2,903.00 2,903.00
As ot March 31, 2021 2,905.00 2,908.00

Reconcitiation of shares ovtstanding at the beginning and at the end of (be year

March 31, 202) Mbarch 31,2020
Number Amount Number Amount
in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs
Equity shares
At ke commencement of the year 290.50 2,905.00 250.50 2,905.00
Shares issued during the year . M - °
At the end of the vear 290.50 2,908.00 250.50 2,905.00

All issued shares are fully paid up.
Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

‘The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and shase in the Company's residual essets on
winding up. The equity shares arc entilled to receive dividend as declared from time to time, The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in cass of interim dividend. The voling rights of an equily shareholder are in proportion lo
his/its share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. On winding up of the Company, Ihe ho!ders of equity shases will be entitled to receive the residuat assets
of the Company, in propostion to the number of equity shares held.

Shares held by hotding/uliimate holding company (5.e., parent of the Group) snd/or their subsidiaries/associates

_ March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Number Amount Number Amount

i lakhs in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs
Equity shares of Rs. 10 e2ch held by the holding company 290.30 2,905.00 290.50 290500
Particulars of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares of s class of shares

March 31, 2021 Morch 31, 2020

Number % of total Number % of total shares

infakhs  sharesin class in lakhs in class
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each held by
Thomas Cook (India) Limited and its nominces (holding company) 290.50 100% 290.50 100%

<This space is intentionally left blank>




Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

Notes forming part of financial statemenis s at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(ANl amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

18 Reserves ond surplus

Asat Asat
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Securities premium reserves 32,057.94 32,057.94
Generol reserve 470 4.0
Retained camings (52,601,10) (55,036.73)
Total goauq !32!974.09!
Movement In reserves and surplus balances is as follows ;
8) Securitles premium
Opening balance 32,057.94 32,087.94
Additions during the year . -
Closlng balance 32,057.94 32,057.94
b) General reserve
Opening balance 470 4,70
Additions during the year ° °
Closing balance 4.70 4.70
) Retained esmnings
Opening balance ($3.036.73) (50,903.75)
Profit / (Loss) for the year 2,427.40 (4.165.58)
ltems of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained eamings
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax 8.2) 32.60
Closing balance {52,601.10) {85,036.73)
19 Other reserves
Other comprehensive income
ESOP reserve  Remessurement of Equity Revaluation Totnl
post-employmeat  instruments Reserve
benefls obligatlon  through OCI

As al April 1, 2019 871.98 - . 41,837.6} 44,709.61
Additions during the year 360.08 3260 . . 192.68
Income tax effect on revaluation of property, plant & equipment - - . 261,71 261.71
Transferred to retoined eamings - (32.60) . . (32.60)
As at March 31, 2010 1,232.06 . - 44,099.34 453140
Additions during the year 360.83 823 . 9.217.02 9,586.18
Income tax effect on seveluotion of property, plant & equipment - - . (1,912.58) {1,912.58)
Transferred to retained eamings . (8.23) . . (8.2))
As at March 31, 201t 1,592.89 - . 51,403,458 52,996.17
ESOP veserve

The ESOP reserve is used for recognising the grant date fair volue of the share optioas issued to the employees under the Employee Sharc Option Scheme in eddition 10
the fair volue of ihe options issued to the employees of the Company by the holding company (Thomas Cook (Indin) Limited) as per Ind AS 102.

FVOCI - Equity instruments

The Cunpany has clected 10 recognise changes in the fair value of certoin investments in equity securilics in other comprehiensive income. These changes are accumulated
within the FVOC! Eguity instruments reserve within equily.

The Company e

from this reserve to retained eamings when the relevant equity securilics ase derecognised

Revaluation reserve

The Company had changed its noeoummg policy on measurement of Jand from cost model 10 revaluation modal wee.f. April 1, 2018. Land wus u'copuzed ot fair value

based on val by ) indep luers performicd on April 08, 2018 and subsequently remeasured on March 31, 202! Consequently, any i in the
1 Ve i f m gharcholders’ cquity. Refer

Moverment [n revaluation reserve Amount
A at March 31, 2019 43,837.63
Revaluation surplus during the year -
Incone tax effect 26171
As at March 31, 2020 44,09934
Revaluation surplus during the yenr 9217.12
Incuste tax effect (1,912.58)
As ot March 31,2021 §1,403.88



Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited
Notes forming part of financial statemends as at end for the year ended March 3§, 2021
(ANl amounis in Rs. lakhs, imless atherwise stated)

As st Asal

20{a) Non-current borrowings March 31,2021  March 31,2020

Tesm loan
- From banks
Secured bank lnans (Refer note (i) below) 3,11861 1.930.39
Optionally convertible cumulative redcemable preference shares (OCCRPS) (Refes note (i) below) 3030 3030
Total 3,144.91 l!%0.69

20{b) Current borrowings

W

(i

(iii) Short-term worldng capital foan

-

Loans from banks

Current pottion of secured bank loans 1,425.10 149

Secured short-term working capital loan (Refer note (iii) below) 1,000.00 1,000.00

Bank overdraft (Refer note (iv) below) - 1,459.36
2,425.10 3,170.88

Less: Amount included under ‘Other financial lisbilities' {1.425.10) (711.49

Totnl current borrowings 1,000.00 145936

Notes:
Secured bank looans

Loan amounting 1o Rs, 4,950.00 lakhs (net of processing fees) from HDFC Bank Limited is sccurcd by woy of hypothecntion of movable fixed assets scquired through
the term loan ot resorts namely Mussooric, Manali, Darjeeling, Ooty Fem Hill ond Kodai Valley View and by woy of pledge of immovable propectics at Mussocric and
Yercaud. The fozn is repayable in 24 equal quorterly ingtalments including o moratorium of 12 months fram the date of loan (January 4, 2016) atong with interest rate
of 11% p.a.. The loan amount outstanding os a1 year end is Rs. 2,164.61 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Ra, 2,432.61 lakhs). Out of this, Rs. 625.00 lakhs (March 31, 2020:
Rs. 654.79 lakhs) is repayable within 1 year and the balance amount of Rs. 1,539.61 lakhs (March 31, 2020; 1,777.82 lakhs) is repayable after 1 year from the balance
shect date.

Loan emounting to Rs 350 lakhs from HDFC Bank Limited is repayable in 20 quarterly instalments commencing from February 25, 2018 olong with an interest raic of
8.95% p.a. linked to 1 year MCLR with annua! reset. The loan is secured by way of exclusive charge on the movable fixed assets finenced out of the loan and further
secured by extensien of existing monigage at Mussooric and negative lien on property at Yercaud. The loan amount outstanding as al year end is Rs. 164.83 lakhs
{March 31, 2020: Rs. 192.50 lakhs). Out of this loan, Rs.70.00 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 52.50 lakhs) is repaycble within | year and the balance amount of Rs. 94 .83
Izkhs (Morch 31, 2020: Rs. 140.00 lakhs) is repaysblc afler | yeas from the balance sheet date.

Loan amounting to Rs 16.77 lakhs from HDFC Bank Limited is secured by way of hypothecation of underlying vehicle is repayable in 36 equated monthly
instalments including » mosstorium of 3 months commencing from July |, 2020 olong with an interest rate of 10.00% p.o . The loan amount ouistanding as ot yeas end
is Rs. 15.54 lokhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 16.77 lakhs). Out of this loan, Rs3.04 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 4.19 lakhs) is repayable within | year and the balance
amount of Rs.12.50 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 12.58 lakhs) is repayable aftes | year from the balance sheet date.

Loan amounting to Rs. 15 00 lakhs from HDFC Bank Limited availed in January 2021 is d by way of hypathecation of underlying vehicle is repayable in 48
equated monthly instalments commencing from March $, 2021 along with an interest rate of 9.65% p.o.. The loan amount outstanding s al year end is Rs. 14.73 lakhs
{March 31, 2020: Nil). Out of this luan, Rs.3.75 lakhs is repayzble within | year and the balance amount 0f Rs.10.98 lakhs is repayable aftes | year from Ihe balance
sheei date.

Loan amounting 10 Rs. 738 lokhs from HDFC Bank Limited availed in October 2020 is repayable in 48 quarterly instalments including o moratorium of 12 months
from lic date of loan along with an intcrest rate of 8.23% p.o.. The luan is secured by way of exclusive charge on the movable fixed ossels financed oul of the loan and
farther d by extension of cxisting mongage at Mussoric and negative lien of the perperty a1 Yercaud. The entire loan amount it outstonding as ot year end Out of
this lonn, Rs. 41.00 Iokhs is repayoble within § year and the batonce amount of Rs 697.00 lakhs is repayeble after | yeor from the balance sheet dale.

Loan amounting 10 Rs. 158 lakhe from HDFC Rank Limited availed in December 2020 is repayable in 48 quaniedy instalments including 2 moratorium of 12 months
from the date of loan olong with an interest 1ate of 8 25% p.a.. The loan is secured by way of exclusive charge on the movable fixed assels finenced out of the loan and
further secured by cxiension of exisling morigage al Mussorie and negative lien of the perperty at Yercaud. The entire loan amount is outstending as al yesr end and
repayablc after | year from the balance sheet date.

Loan amounting to Rs. 1,287 lakhs (net of processing fees) from HDFC Limited availed in March 2021 is repayable in 36 quasterly instadments from the date of loan
nlong with on intceest rate of 11% p a.. The loan is secured by way of resort propertics situated ot Kodai I.ake View. The enlire loan amount is outstanding os ot year
end, Out of this loan, Rs.386.85 Inkhs it repayable within 1 year ond the balance amount of Rs. 900.1S repayable nfier | year from the balance sheet date.

Optioaally convertible cumulative redeemable prefercnce shares (OCCRPS) (Refer note (i) below)
The Company issued 303,000 Optionally Conventible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (OCCRPS) of Rs.10 each to its parent company Thomas Couk
(tndia) Limited in April 2018. The OCCRPS carries o fixed Cumulalive dividend 2t a rate of 8.5% payable from the date of allotment. Every 303,000 OCCRPS shali
be converted al the option of the Company inito 10 equity shares of Rs.10 each. Such conversion shall be at the option of the Company at any time after 1 year from the
date of allotment of shares but not later than 7 years froin the date of allstment. The redemption shall be made out of the profits of the Company a7 proceeds of fresh
issuz of shares made for the purpose of redemption. The conversion will result in allotment of 10,600 equity shares of Rs 10 cach. As per the terms of the OCCRPS,
there is a contractual obligation t deliver cash 10 the holder (dividend is non-discretionary). The holder does not have the sight 1o convert the ingtrument into equit
shares ony time during the tenure of the preference shares, right to conversion lies with the issuer. Further, the OCCRPS is neither o derivative instrument, nor d; ’0
fall within the scope of puttable i Therefore, the OCCRPS has been classifiod 2s a financial liabitity. The comesponding dividend paid or acerued !
disclosed as finance cost.

The canmrying emounts of financial and fi iol assets pledged as security for b ings are disclosed in Note 49.

Shart-term bosrowing of Rs. 1,000 Iakhs (Masch 31, 2020: Rs. 1,000 lakhs) from HDFC Bank with an inferest rate of 10.00% p.a is secured by charge on cum
moveble fixed assets and further secured by extension of collateral propesty at Mussooric and negative lien on propesty located ot Yercaud




Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

Notes forming part of financisl staterents as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amrownts in Rs. lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)
20 Borrowings (continucd)

{lv) Bookoverdruft

Bank overdrafi from Kotak Mahindra Bank (March 31, 2020; Rs. 1,459.36 lakhs) with an interest rate of 9.75%, waos fully repaid during the curvent year.

(v) The cammying amounts of certain financial and non-financial assets pledped as security for non-current borrowings are disclosed in Note 49,

(vl) Dusing the year, owing to its losses incurred, the Company has defaulied on ceriein financial covenants with respect to loans availed from HDFC Bank in the previous
years end in the current yeas. However, based on the review of periodic filings mode by the Company to the Bank, the Bank has continued with the fecilities, has not
placed any demand on 1he loans and has subsequently rencwed the facility in April 2021, Accordingly, the Company continues to clossify these loans as current and

nron-cument based on the original maturity,

20{c) Reconciliation of movement of liabilitics to cosh flows arising from financiog activilles

Particulars March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Non«curvent borrowings 4,570.01 267218
Current bomowings 1,000.00 1,000.00
Cash and cash equivalents (Bank overdeafis used for cash manogement purposes) - 1,459.36
Total 5,570.0t 5,131.54
Cash and cash Currenit  Non-current
Particulars equivalents  borrowings borrowings Total
Balance as at Apri) 1, 2019 77053 1,000.00 sumn 5,302.28
Proceeds from loans and borrowings . . 1577 16.77
Repayment of borrowings . - (925.59) (925.59)
Change in bank overdrafl and working capital loan 688.83 ” . 688.83
Non-cash changes
- Impact of cffective interest amortisation . - 4928 4928
Dalance as at March 31, 2020 1,459.36 1,000,00 267218 $,131.54
Proceeds from loans and borrowings . - 2,424.68 2,424.65
Repayment of borrowings . (563.65) (561.65)
Change in bank overdrafl and working capital loan (1,459.26) . 1,459.36)
Non-cash chenges
- Impact of effective interest amontisation . - 36.83 3683
Balonce as a1 March 31, 2021 - 1,000,090 4,5870.0) 5,570.01
Asat As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
21 Other financial linbilities
21(a) Non-current
Creditors for capital expenditure 8.85 8.27
Total 8.83 8.27
21(b)Current
Current maluritics of long<erm bermowings 1,425.10 71149
Interest accrued but no! due on borrowings k) ) 2799
Dividend payable on optionally convertible cumulative tedeemabls preference shates 7.65 507
Credilors for capital expznditure 166.83 366.09
Securily depasits 130.69 45.83
Other liabilities 14798 55.75
Inlerest payable to micro enterprises and small entespriscs (Refer notc 47) 23.82 6.46
Total 1,933.84 1,218.68

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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22 Provision for employee benefit obligations

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Compensated absences 137.24 109.30 24654 139.17 101.63 240.30
Gratuity 147.77 256.83 404.60 140.54 213.83 35437
Tatal 285.01 366.13 651.14 279,71 318.46 598.17
(i) Compensated absences
March 31,2021  March 31,2020

Current compensated ab: pected to be settled within the next 12 months 137.24 139.17

(i) Post employment obligations

a) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous servi
drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity
2nd maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over 3 period of time based on estimations of exp

April 1, 2020

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest expense/{income)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurcments

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest

expense/(income)

(Gain)ass from change in deruographic assumptions
(Gain)0ss from change in financial assumptions
Experience (g2ins)losses

$er el P RIS

Changes in asset ceiling ¢ AMGCunls in in

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Employer contributions
Benefit payments

March 31, 2021

d gratuity payments.
Present value Fair value of plan Net amount
of obligation assets
452.18 97.81 35437
62.03 - 62.03
2539 6.02 1937
§7.42 6.02 81.40
. (10.64) 10.64
10.03 - 10.03
(28.90) - (23.99)
{18.87) (10.64) 3.23)
(49.01) 8.16 (357.17)
(14.78) (49.01) 3423
456.94 52.34 404.60

April 1, 2019

Current service cost
Past service cost
[nterest expense/{income)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurenents

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest
expensel/(income)

{Gain}1oss from change in demographic assumptions
(Gain)oss from change in financial assumptions
Experience (gains)losses

Changes in asset ceiling excluding amounts included in
interest expense

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Employer contributions
Benefit payments

March 31, 2020

ce for a period of § years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratity payable ou retirement/termination is the employces last
plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions 10 recognised fund. The Company doss not fully fund the liability

Present value Fair valueof Net amount

of abligation  plan assets
41903 95.66 32337
73.79 - 3.7
2822 682 21,40
102.01 6.82 95.18
(2.14) - (2.14)
(5.26) - (5.26)
(25.20) - (25.29)
{32.60) - (32.60)
(20.00) 1532 (3532)
(16.26) (20.00) 3.74
452.18 97.31 35437




Sterting Holiday Resorts Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year cnded March 31, 2021
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22 Provision for employee benefit obligations
The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

March 31,2021  March 31, 2020

Present value of funded obligntions 456.94 45218

Fair value of plan assets 5234 97.81

Deficit of funded plan 404.60 35437

Current benefit oligation 142.77 140.54

Non-current benefit obligation 256.83 213.83

Unfunded plans -

Deficit of gratuity pisn 404.60 JML

(ii) Defined contribution plans

The Company has also cenain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fuad in india for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by Government.

The obligation of the C
lakhs)

pany is limited to the ib ‘mdithxunol’\mbcrmuwulnwmmmeﬁwwigxﬁon.neupmumisddnﬁngmeywmdsdeﬁnedmmhﬁmp!mkkﬂﬁ.ajwm3|.2020:R;477.08

(iif) Principal actuarisl ptions osed In valaation of Gratuity

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Discount rate 639% 6.15%
Expected rate of retumn on plan asscts 6.39% 6.15%
Salary growth rate 5.00% l::s )Wn ?:"
Agtrition rate 30.00% 30.00%
Estimates of future salary in idered in ial valuation takes account of inflsticn, seniority, promotion and other sefevam factors, such as supply zzd demand in employment market
(iv) Sensitivity Analysis
8) Gratuity b) Compeunsated absence
March 31,2021  March 31,2020 March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Discount rate: Discount rate:
+ 100 basis points (10.50) (1101 + 100 basis points 97 (4.76)
- 00 basis peints 13 13.12 - 100 basis peints 5.80 539
Salary escalation rate: Salary escalation rate:
+ 100 basis poiots 13.02 13.09 + 100 basis points 6.33 6.25
- 100 basis poiats (11.93) (11.40) - 100 basis points ) (5.66)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding al} otber assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur md changes in some of the assumptions may be covrelated. When calculating the seasitivity of the defined
benefit obligation to the significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated using the projected unit credit methnd at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit
liability in the balzence sheet.

The methods end types of assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

(vi) Risk exposure

The Company’s gratuity fund is maintained by an approved trust (Life Insurance Corporation of India). A large portion of the investment made by LIC is in povemment bonds and securities and other approved secimities.
Hence, the Company is not exposed to the risk of asset volatility as at the balance sheet date.
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Notes forming part of financial statements as ot and for the year ended March 31,1021
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23 Deferred tax Kabiliies

The balance comprises temporary differences attributeble to:
Asat Asat
March 31,2021 Masrch 31,2020
Property, plant and equipmen 391114 392320
On eccount of land revalusticn 4,338.29 2,761.15
On of fair veluetion of in - ! -
Tota) deferred tax Habilities 8,249.93 6,68435
Set-off of deferred tax Esbilitics pursuant to set-off provisions 824993 6,684.38
Dofesred tax Lability ss per the blance sheet b >
Net unrecogolsed deferred tax Habllities - .
Unabsorbed depreciation allowance end business loss canvied forward 8.935.24 8,096.03
Provision for employee benefits 219.62 27744
Provision for doubiful debts 459.47 365.24
Total deferred tax assets 9,614.33 8,238.71
Set-off of deferred tax linbilities p 10 set-ofY provisk 8,249.93 6,684.35
Deferved tax aset es per the balance sheet : :
Net unrecognised deferved tax sasels 1,64.40 2,084.36
Movement In deferred tax Uabilities:
Property, plant On account of Toil
20d equipment  land revalustion
At April }, 2019 4,665.76 3,022.86 7.638.62
Charged/(Credited):
- to profit or loss (742.56) - (742.56)
- tp other compsehensive income - (261.71) _ (261.71)
At March 31, 2020 3.923,20 2,761.15 6,684.3%
ChargedXCredited):
« to profit or toss (12.06) (334.94) {347.00)
« to other comprehensive income - 1,912 58 §1.912.58
At March 31,2021 X JNL] 4,338.79 8,249.9)
Movement in deferred tax nssets:
Uonabsorbed  Provision for Provision for Total
depreciation eruployee  doubiful debis
allowance benefits
snd bosiness
At April 1,2019 8,600.23 291.92 189.76 9,087.91
Movement in deferred tax aaset (504.20) (20.48) 175.48 (349.20)
At March 31, 2020 8,096.0) 277.44 365.24 8,738.71
Movement in deferred tax saset 839.21 (57.82) 94.23 87562
At March 3, 2021 3,935.24 219,62 459.47 9,614.3)

< This space is intentionally lefi blank>
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18

26

17

Other non-current Habilities

Contract lizbility - Deferred income (Refer note 53)

Contract ligbility - Advance received from customers (Refer note $3)
Total

Trade payables

Duts to micro enterprises and small enterprizes (Refer note 47)
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Tolal

Of the sbove, trads payables to related parties is (Refer note 42(f))
The Company's exposure to tiquidity risks selated to trode payables is disclosed in note 37

Otker provislons

Provision for fringe benefit tax

Provision for stamp duty (Refer note below)
Total

Note:

Asatl Asat
March 31,2020  March 31, 2020
70,657.59 7198995
315.77 160.05
10,973.36 28,150.00
£0.80 4.4
2,415.08 2,817.84
2!495.88 zgws
166.44 226.07
7294 7294
1,000.00 2,139.19
1,072.94 glél:

Pursuant to the Composite scheme of amangement and emalgamation referted in note 48, the immovable propesties of the demerged undenioking (Timeshare & Resorts
business) are transferred to the Company. The Company has immovable propertics in varisus sites. As per the laws prevalent in tho respective states, stamp duty is
epplicable on such transfer of propertics. During the current year, the Company has re-ossessed such provision based on independent legal rdvice and reversed certain

provision no longer required amounting to Rs. 1,139.19 lakhs,

Other curreat lisbilities

Salasics, wages, bonus and employee payables

Statutory lisbilitics

Contract liability - Deferred income (Refer note 53)

Controct lichility - Advance received from customers (Refer note 53)

Total

<This space is intentionally lefi blank>

73925 101434
33039 2839
3,599.95 4,05220
1,363.72 137166
6,03331 647259
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18

29

30

3n

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from operations
Disaggregation of revenue:
Ob the basils of nature of goods or services:
Sale of services
Income from sale of membership:
- Membership foc/Admission fees (et of provision for cancellation) (refer notes below) 643135 4,935.59
- Annusl subscription fees! Annual smenity charges 1,457.06 4,757.57
« Interest income on trade receivables (instolment pien) 148.62 2269
Sale of products (Rescrt operations)
Food and beversges 1,469.20 4,057.99
Sale of services (Resort operations)
« Room rentals 3922.50 1679.86
- Others 36335 1,136.46
- Management contract income 64.18 162.51
Other operating revenues
Service charges 84.38 244.16
Total 15,951.61 ugos.l 1
Oo the basls of (lming of traosfer of goods or services
At a point intime 5,522,61 . 1042).15
Over a period of time 10,429.00 12,782.96
15,981.61 23,206.11
1

Notes:

The Company uses the historica] trendulyield precentage to determine the provision for cancellation of contracts (i.c, the expecied number of contrects which will
be eventually cancelled) snd accounts this es a reduction in revenue sinee it is otributsble 10 uncestainty in colicction. Based on this estimate, the Company has
made o provision of Rs. 418.19 lakhs (March 31, 2020: charge of Rs. 271.92 lakhs) for the sales relating this yeor.

During the yesr, the Company has cancelicd curtein membership contracts of members who have defoulted in payment of centsin EMIs and / oc Annual emenity
charges (AAC) for past periods. The Company has assessed the contrectual terms and on the basis of legal edvice has established their bons fide to cancel these
membership contracts. Consequentially, there has been & write-back of defested income (Rs. 2,509.02 lakhs) and write-off of the relsted unamortised cost (Rs.
998.72 lakhs). (also refer nole $3).

Other jncome
Interest income on:
« Loans and edvances (o related partics 345.89 264.07
- Bonk deposits 12.28 418
- Others 4.7 68.64
Gain on sale of current investments (nel) . 1.66
Net goin on financiol assets mandatorily measured at foir volue through profil o7 loss 2310 8.40
Rental income 89.70 269.42
Management foes 471.16 929.68
Income from skill development irsining . 146.35
Scrop sales 715 586
Provisioa/Liabilities no longer required written back (Refer note 26) 1,355.68 149.22
Insuronce claim received - 195.09
Gain on variable lease payments 93394 76.40
Income from terminstion of lcase coniracts 59.04 26.5%
Miscellancous income - 13.20
Total 3,352.18 2,158.72
— ]
Cost of matersals consumed
laventosy of meterinls ot the beginning of the year s191 43.42
Add: Purchsses $33.37 1,303.49
Lets: Inventosy of malcrials at the end of Ihe year 39.57 $1.91
Cesl of moterials consumed 545,71 1,295.00
Employee beneflis expense
Salaries, wogcs und bonus 527215 941172
Contribulion to provident and other funds 33438 581.78
Employee sharesbased payment expense 22149 3t0.21
Orotuity B1.40 95.20
Compensated abscnces 4572 29.22
Staff welfare cxpenses 329.14 791.58
Toto) 6,184.85 11,2568
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3

34

Finance cost

Interest and finance charges on firancial lisbilitics measured ot amortized cost
Interest on lease lisbility

Dividend on OCCRPS

Total

Depreciation and amertisatlon expense
Deprecintion of property, plent and equipment
Amortisation of inlangible assets

Depreciation of right of use assets

Total

Other expenses
Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fusl
Rent
Repairs and maintenance:
-Building
~Plant and machinery
~Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Guest supplies
Laundry expenses
Communicaltion
Recruitment and training
Travel end lours
Legal and professional
Directors’ sitting fees
Payment to siatutosy suditors:
As Auditor;
- Statutory audit
- Limited review
For other eudit servicey:
- Other gervices
Reimbursement of expenses
Trave) and conveyance
Security charges
Water charges
Sales commission
Sales promotion
Exchange loss
Bank chorges
Provision for doubiful edvances
Provision for doubtful debis
Loss on sale of essets (net)
Capital work in progress written off
Printing and starionery
Miscellencous expenses
Total

For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31,2021 Mareb 31,2020
$54.72 508.87
761.68 866.20
258 2.58
1,320,98 1,374.65
2,144,99 2,258.38
mn.zi 34131
1,870.44 2,068.90
4,326.64 4,668.59
181.49 3.67
831.22 1,519.63
210.90 601,71
92.92 170.52
198.46 366.17
243.82 323,38
105,85 4745
197.61 275.66
88.99 250.45
86.83 233.20
135.40 190.93
45.78 121,73
97.66 488.40
535.47 682.13
16.54 14.04
12,00 1200
16.50 16.50
1.28 2467
1.67 6.00
117,06 $90.03
210,80 334.00
67.70 179.00
1,514.57 951.47
13225 1,961.73
1.97 0.70
202.27 306.62
2.0 5.34
- 21.57
49.61 10.64
43).42 .
19.713 66.03
438.81 609.41
6,310,79 10,704.78
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For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 Maech 31, 2020
35 Income tax expense
8) Amount recognised In profit or loss
Current tax
Current tex for the year . -
Total . -
Deferred tax expense
(Increase)yDecrease in deferred tox essels (1,571.64) 6171
tncrease/{Decreasc) in deferred tox Habilities (334.99) .
Total {1,912.58) 261.71
Total tas expensef{benefit) (1,912.58) 261.71
k) Reconcilintion of tax expense apd the sccounting profit multiplied by Indin's Tax Rate:
Profit / (Loss) before income tax expense s14.82 (3,901.87)
Tax expense / (income) computed at Indian Tax rate of 26% (Previous year: 26%) 13388 (1.015.01)
Net Tox effects of amount which are deductible/disallowed in calculating laxable income - other than (133.85) -
temporary differences
. (1,015.01)
Untecognised deferred tax assets for the year . 1,015.08
Deferred tax asset recognised / (derecognised) on brought forward losses (1.577.64) 61N
Decrease in deferred tax liability on sccount of indexotion of land (334.94) -
Taox income {1,912.58) 260. 1
Tax losses
Unused tax losses for which no deferred 1ax assets have been recognised 5.260.56 7,850.88
Potential 1ex benefit et 26% (Previous year: 26%) 1,367.75 2,041.23
Tax losses on account of uarecognised deferred tax assels
Date of explry to corry forward As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
31-Mer-29 4,054.86 .
31-Mor-28 1,205.70 1,785.21
31-Mar-27 . 4,355.75
31-Mar-24 - 916.97
31-Mas.22 . 709.56
31-Mar-21 - 83.39
Indefinite pericd - -
Total 5,260.56 7,850.88

<This space ix intentionally lef! blank>
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36 Fair value measurements
Financis) instruments by category

As at March 31, 2021 As st March 31,2020

FVTPL FVOCl  Amortisedcost FVTPL FVOC1  Amortised cost
Flnonclal assets
Investments

- Equity instruments 0.63 - - 038 - -
- Mutual funds 164443 - . 321,60 - -

Trade receivables . - 3Ny . . 10,15729
Uabilled revenue - - 44.5) . . 11.62
Loans - - 341639 . . 2,436.06
Interest accrued on loans and advances 1o related parties . . 589.31 - . 411.63
Employce advances - - 3.96 - - 8153
Cash ond cash equivalents . - 190.58 - - 833.00
Bank balances other than above - - 56753 - - 39.26
Securily deposits - - 648.54 - . 712,08
Interest accrued on fixed deposits - . - . - 403
Other receivables - - 682.56 - - 97959
Total financisl assets 1,645.06 - 9,862.65 321.98 . 15,666.05
Flinanclol fabliities
Borrowings - . 5,609.43 - - 5,164.60
Trode payables - . 2495.88 . - 2,861.88
Capital ereditors - - 175.68 - - 3136
Security deposits . - 130.69 . - 458)
Other liabilities - - 171.80 . - 6221
Total financis] Habilities - - 858348 - - 8,505.88

The summary of financin) insiruments sbove does not include investments held by the Company in its subsidiasies/associates amounting to Rs. 2,256.25 lakhs as on March 31,
202) (March 31, 2020: Rs. 2,256.25 lakhs) which has been measured by applying the principles of Ind AS 27 - Scparate Financial Statements.

This summary includes all financin! instruments valucd based on the principles of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments.

(1) Pair value hierorchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the foir values of the financia) instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b)
measured 2t amontised cost and for which faie valucs are disclosed in the financial siatements. To provide an indication about the reliabilily of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three Jevels prescribed under the acoounting standard.

Financial assets and labilities measured at fair value - recurring foir value measurements

As at March 31, 2021 Notes Level | Level 2 Level ) Total
Financial asscts

Financial invesiments ot FVTPL:

Equily instruments 2) 0.63 . . 0.63
Mutual funds () 1,644 43 - - 1.644.43
Tots) financial assels 1,645.06 - - 1,645.06

Assets and liabitities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are djsclosed

As at March 31,2021 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
Financlo] assets

Loans to subsidionics 9 . . 341639 341639
Interest accrued on loans and advances to related partics 9 . . 589.31 589.31
Employoc advances 9 . - 396 3.96
Securily deposits 10 - . 648.5¢ 648.54
‘Tolal financial assets - - 4,658.20 4,658,120
Financial tobilities

Borrowings 20(2) . . 5,609.43 5,609.43
Total financial Yisbilities . - 5,609.43 5,609.43
Financial assets and lisbilities measured ot fair value - recorring fair value mcasurements

As at March 31, 2020 Notes Level ? Level 2 Level3 Total
Financial assets

Financiol investments ot FVTPL,:

Equity insiruments (o) 038 . . 0.38
Mutual funds ) 321.60 - - 321.60

Total finnncial asseis 321.98 - - 321.98
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36 Falr value measurements (contd.)

Assets and lisbilities which sre meastred at amortised cost for which afr values are disclosed

As at March 31, 2020 Notes Level } Level 2 Level 3 Tota)
Fioancial assets

Loans o subsidiasies 9 . - 2,436.05 2,436.06
Interest accrued on loans and odvances to relsted parties 9 - - 411.6) 41163
Employce advances 9 - - 81.53 B1.53
Security deposits 10 - - 712,05 712.08
Total financisl assefs - - 3,641.27 3,641.27
Financlal Linbilities

Bomowings 20{2) . . 5,164 60 $.164 60
T:ml financis) lisbilities - - 5,164.60 §,164.60

There are no trensfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

(ii) Valuation technique used 1o determine foir value:

Level 1 : Fair value is determined using NAV for mutual funds and market value listed equity shares
Level 3 ; Fair value is determined using discounted cash flow method

(iii) Fair vatue of financial assets and Labilities measured at smortised cost

As at March 31,2021 As at March 31, 2020
Carrying Fair value Carrylog Fair value
amounl smount
Financia) oxzets
Loans
Loans lo subsidiaries 341639 341639 243605 2,436,056
Interest accrucd on loans and advances to related partics 58931 58931 41163 411.63
Employee advances 396 396 8153 81.53
Sceurily deposits 64854 648.54 71205 1208
Total finaocis! assets 4,688.20 4,658.20 364127 364127
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 5.609.43 $,609.43 5,164 60 $.164.60
Total financial Liabilities 5,609.43 5,609.43 5,164.60 §,164.60

The camying amounts of tmde receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other current financinl lisbilities approximate their fair values, due 10 their short-term
nalure,

The fait values for security deposils were calelated based on cash flows discounted using markel interest rates. They are classified as level 3 fair velucs in the fair value hierarchy
due to the use of unobservable inputs.

The fair values of non-current bomowings are based on discounted cash flows using a cument borrowing rate, They are classificd as level 3 fair values in the fair value hicrarchy
dus 1o the use of unobservable inputs.

For financial asscts and linbilities that are measured at fair value, the carvying amounts are equal to the fair values.

< This space is intentionally left blank>
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37 Financial risk management

A}

The Company's sctivitics expose it to market risk, liquidity risk ond credit rigk.
This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed (o and how the entity manages the risk in the financial stotements

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement 'Mnnagemenl

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, treds Ageing analysis and credit t  [Diversification of portfolio and
receivebles, investments, financial assets Assessment of cuslomer credit worthiness
measured al amortised cost. at inception and through the eredit period

Liquidity risk Borrowings, trade payables and other [Cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines and
liabilities borrowing facilities

Market risk - interest rate Long-term borrowings ot variable retes  |Sensitivity analysis Analysis of market rotes on a reat time

basis, pre-closure of loans

The Company's risk 8 is carnied out by a ceniral treasury department under policies approved by the board of directors. The board provides principles for oversl! risk

managemenl, as well s policies covering specific areas, such as interest mic risk, credit risk, non-derivolive Ginancial instruments and invesonent of excess liguidity.

Credit risk

Credit nisk arises from cash and cash equivalents, i carried at ised cost and deposits with banks and financial institutions, 8s well es ¢redit exposures towards

outstanding receiveblos,

(9) Credit risk monagement

Credit risk is managed on ¢ Company basis. For banks and financia! institutions, only high reted banks/institutions cre eccepted.

For other financial assets, the Company assesses and miznages credit risk based on intemal credit rating system, The finance functi ists of @ sep team that and

maintains an intemsl credit rating system. Intemnal credit rating is performed on a group basis for coch class of financiol instruments with different characteristics. The Company ssigns
the following credit ratings to cach class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and fectors specific to the class of financinl assets.

C1 : High-quality assets, negligible credit risk

C2 : Doubtful sssets, credit-impaired

The Company ideea the probability of defouk upon initial recognition of assei end whether there has been o significant incrense in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is o significant increaso in credit risk the Company compares the risk of a defoult occurring on tho asset as ot the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonsble and supportive forwarding-looking information including the following indicators:

- Internal credit rating

- Actual or expected significom edverse changes in busincss, financial or economic conditions that are expected 10 cause a significant change (o the bosrower's ability to meet ity
obligations

» Actual of expocted significant changes in the operating results of the barower

- Significant increase in credit risk on other financia! instruments of the same borower

- Significant changes in the expected perfo and behaviour of the bommower and customer, including changes in the payment sintus of borrowers in tho Company, expected
ncceplances of the instruments and chonges in (he operating zesults ofthe borrower.

A defoult on » financinl osset is when the counterparty fails to moke contractual payments on the duc date. This definition of defoult is determined by considering the business
environment in which entity operates and other mocro-economic factors. The Maney makes y counse corrections and eval of credit loss bascd on the assessment of o
default on 8 continuing basis.

(if) Provisloo for expected credit losses
The Camprany provides for d eredit loss based on thie following:

(o

Basis for recognition of expected eredit foss provision

Internal credil rating Category Description of category
Invesiments Loans and deposits| Trade ivabl

High quality assets, negligible credit risk jAsscts where the counterparty has strong|12 month expected |12 month expected  [Lifetime expected

<l capacity to meot the obligations andlcredit losses credit losses credit Joss
where the risk of defoult is negligible o
«Q Doubtful ssets, credit impaired Assets uc peovided for when there is nofAsset is provided for fully
y of y. The

Compony categorises 8 loan or receivable
for provisioning when the debtor fails 1o
make the contractual payments for over
12 months. When the lnans or ivabl

have been provided for, the Company
conlinues to emgnge in enforcement
eclivily 10 altempt to recover the

ORETI) 1 .
a3
----- PPIoP:

When recoveries are made these are

d in profit or Joss.

For the year ended March 31, 2020:

() Expected eredit loss for loans, securily deposits and Investments

The cstimated gross camying amount at default is Nil (March 31, 2020; Nil) for investments and loans and deposits. Consequently there are no expected credit loss recognised for these
financiel assets.

(b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approuch (including provition for cancellation of contracts)

A significant portion of the Company's sales of Sterling Memberships arc by way of deferred payment schemes where the is obli ! o pay the bership fee in Equated
Monthly Instalments (EMIs) end the casuing credit risk is mansged by the Company in the following manner:

(8) preliminary of credit worthiness, ensuring realisation of minimum down puyment and adhetence to internal KY'C norms;

(b) collecting post dated i such as cheques, A ted Clearing House (ACH) inandates, standing credit card instructions Grom the customers ot inception to cnsure sccurity
covet,

Fromn an accounlinu penpe:live. revenue is mognilcd only when it is pmbnble that the economic beneml associated with Ihe mmsa:non w:ll I'Iow to the Co:npany. Th

of the reccivables into its ageing buckets for the purposes of esti y the expected loss all has been profiled based on the puyments received from tl
if a meanber has not paid any amount or has pxnd less than Rs. S, 000 in last 12 hs, the entire ivable of the ber is aggregated into that ayciny

allowance is detennined efier taking into secount the credits against the member under “Contract Liability - Defemred income” (1efer note 24 and note 27).
The alowances for credit loss and for revenuc deferved et inception referred to above, carried ai 1lie end of every rcporting period, are tested for adequacy m
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37 Financial risk managemsnt (contd.)
The credit loss allowance carried by the Company is as under:

March 31,2021
Carying velus of rececivables (refer note 8) 4,152.60
Credit loss aliowance 43333
Loxs sllowance % 10%
The Company defers ot and provides for tlation all

March 31,2020
11,219.26
1,061.97

9%

camying vnlue of roceivables (tefer nou 8ond 28) in the came proportion, except in cases where the allownnce is directly attributable to a particules contract,

based on histosicel trend, The amounts so deferred and tho credit loss ellowance sre edjusted from the

(3) (a) Reconelliation of carrying value of recelvables Amount
Reccivobles as on April 1, 2019 10,836.77
Sale made during the yesr 11,461.99
Collections during the year (10,035.63)
Write off on occount of contracts cancelled during the year -
Adjustment on oscount of provision for cancellation 1,043.87
Receivables #1 on March 31, 2020 11,219.26
Salc madc during the yesr 449447
Collactions dusing the year (6,062.30)
Write off on of flzd during the year (2.824.06)
Adj on of pr for Hati (267427}
Recelvables as on March 31, 2021 4,152.60
(i) (b) Reconciliation of toss allowance provision Amsunt
Loss sllowanse on April 1, 2019 767.06
Allowance for credit loss recognised during the year 2491
Amounts written off during the year .
Loss allowance on March 31, 2020 1,061.97
Allowance for credit Joss recognised dusing the year 418.19
Amounts written off during the year (1,046.83)
Loss sfiowance on March 31, 2021 933
(B)  Liquidity risk
Prudznt Biquidity risk mansgement implics maintoining sufficient cash and marketble securitics and the availability of funding through an sdequate emount of committed credit
fatilities 1o meet obligations when duz and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, group treasyry intains flexibility in funding by
muintsining availgbility under committed credit lincs. Manogement mll:na of the y's liquidity po:mon (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below]
and cash end cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows and also reviews timing of liquidation of morketable secunitics.
() Finnacing arrangements
Tho Company had eccess to the following undrown borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
Flosling rate
- Expiring within one year (bank overdrafi and other facilitics) 4744
Marketable securities
(including investmenis held for salc) 1.644.43 32160
The marketablo securitics can be disposed by the Compzny ct any point of time based on the objects and g capital reg of (he Company
The bank overdreR facilitics may be drawn ot any time. Subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, l):e bank Ioan focilitics may be drawn at any time.
(H) Maturides of financial liabliitles
The tables below analyse the Company's financial Liabilities into relcvant maturity groupings hmd on their contractug! motusities. There are no d financid i
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, includi Bal. duc within 12 months equal their carrying balances os the impact of
discounting is not significant.
Contractusl maturities of financial liabititiea:
March 31, 2021 Carrying amount Less thsa 3 h 3 hsto 6 & hs to | year  Between | and 2 Above 1 years Totnd
months years
Noo-derivatives
Bormrowings 5,609.43 1,405.99 413.03 954,37 1,830.58 134433 6,158.31
Trede payobles 2,495.88 2,495.88 - - - - 2,495.88
Other financial lishilities 478.17 469.32 - - 8.85 - 478.17
Totol non-derivative liabilities 5,583.48 4,371.19 413.0) 964,37 1,639.43 1,54433 9,132.36
Merch 31,2020 Carrying amount less than 3 th 3 ths o6 6 hstol yesr  Detween ] and 2 Above 2 years Total
months years
Non-derivatives
Rosrowings 5,164.60 2,116.34 300.59 $84.17 1,107.13 1,993.43 6,101.86
Trade payablos 2,861 88 2,861.88 . . - . 2.861.88
Other financiol linbilities 482.40 463.53 - - I18.87 - 482.40
Tota) aon-derivative liahilities 8,509.88 5,441.95 300,59 884.17 1,126.00 1,993.43 9,446.14
(&) Market risk « Interest rate risk
The Company’s main interest ratc risk arises from long tenn b ings with variable i ruies, which exposes the Company to cash flow interest rute risk.
Tho Company snolyscs the market rates on a real time basis and pre- closes/exchanges the vericble § rate instr 13 for fixed i in times of high interest rates

and vice-versa 1o mitigate the risk, The exposure of the Compony’s borrowings to interesi entes are oz below:

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Vorinble rote borrowings 1,000.00 2,459.36
Fixed rato borvowings 4,609.43 2,672.18
£,609,4) 5,131,843
March 31, 202) March 33, 2020
Weighted average Balanceloan % of tatal loans Weighted average Balance loan
interest rate amount interest rate amount
Baorrowings from banks und others 9.42% 1,000.00 17.83% 10.00% 2,459.36
Sensitivity analysls

Pmﬂlllon is sensitive to | i i
/i by 1% |he T

P
will L

/d: by Rs. 9.42 lokhs (March 34, 2020: Rs. Rs. 24,59 lakhs)
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Capital saonagement
Risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to;
* safeguard their ability to continue as a going concem, so that they can continue (0 provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

« mainlain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capitel strusture, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharchalders, return capite! to sharcholders, issuc
new ghares or sell asscis to reduce debt.
Consistent with others in the indusiry, the Company monitors capital an the basis of the following geasing sotio:
Net debs (1otal borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by total *equity’ (os shown in the batance sheet)
The Company's stralcgy is to mainlair a net debt to equity ratio within 0.5, The ralio is as follows:
As st March 31,2021  As et March 31, 2020

Total debt 5,601.78 5,159.53
Less: Cesh and cash equivalenis and other bank balances (758.11) {872.26)
Adjusted net debt 4,843,627 4,287.27
Total equity 35,363.31 2526231
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 0.14 0.17

Exemption from preparing consolidated financlal statements

These finoncie) sislemens are the siandelons financial statements of the Company. The Company has used the cxemption under Paragraph 4(a) of Ind AS 110
and has clected not 1o prepare the consolidated financiat statements. The consolidated financial statements are prepared by the ho!ding company, Thomas Cook
Indin Limited, Mumbai. Refer below for the details of subsidiarics/assaciates of the Company:

% of shares held
Name of the lnvestee March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Stexling Holidays (Ooty) Limited 928% 98%
Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited 98% 98%
Nature Trails Resorts Privote Limited 100% 100%

Segment informalion

Deseription of segments and principal activities

Openating sepnents are reported in a manner consistent with the inlernal teposting provided 1o the Chief operating decision maker.

The Chisirman-Managing Director (CMD) of the Company has been idenlified as the chicf opermting decision maker of Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited who
assesses the financial performance and position of the Company, and muokes strategic decisions. The Company has only one reportable segment as described
below;

= Sterling membership and resont operations: This segment deals with timeshare business on account of membership and the resort business.

During the cument year, the Company had edoptcd measures to curb the spread of infection in order to protect the heatth of ils employces and ensure business
continuity with minimal disruption (including temporary closure of its resons). The Company had recpened sesonts in a phased manner sinee August 2020,
Howcever, considering the significant increase in infection dus to the second wave in India, certain Slates have adopted measures to control the spread of the
pandemic. The Company has again temporarily closed many resorts in April 2021.

The Management sirongly belicves, the lockdown would be lifled, and operations would restart in a phased manner by June 2021. However, the impact of
COVID-19 on the economy cantinues to be uncertain and the extent to which the ongeing COVID-19 pandeinic will impact the Company®s financial
performance including the Company’s eslimates of fulure cash Nows and impairment of assels etc., is dependent un such fulure developments, the severity nnd
duration of the pondemic, which criirot be predicted with centainty. The Company has idered the of the pandemic in determining judgements and
estimates in applying the assumptions including those uscd 1o detenmine (he future cashflows, The impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process. Tue
Company will continue lo monitor any material chianges (o the futuse economic conditions, Also refer note 1.2.1.

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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431 Related party transactions

(n) Parent entities
The Company is controtled by following entity:
Owaership interest held by the Groop

Name of eatlty Type

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Fairfox Financizl Holdings Limited, Canada Uliimete Holding Compsny - -
Thomas Cook (India) Limited Holding Company 100% 100%
(b) Subsidiaries

Ownership ioterest betd by the Greup

Name of entity Principal Activitles

March 31,2020 March 31,2020
Sterling Holidsys (Ooty) Limited (Ooty’) Timeshare & resorts business 98% 95%
Stesling Hotiday Resons (Kodaikanal) Limited (Kodai) Timeshare & resorts business 98% 98%
Nature Troils Resorts (Private) Limited (NT) Adventure holiday activities business 100% 100%

(c) Fellow subsidiaries with whom transactlons have been entered

Travel Corporation (Indis) Limited (merged with Thomaes Cook (Indi) Limited)
TC Tours Privetc Limited

SOTC Travel Services Private Limited (mersed with TC Tours Privete Limited)
Quess Corp Limited

CentreQ Business Services Ltd (merged with Quess Corp Limited)

Coathieve Solutions Pvt Ltd (merged with Quess Corp Limited)

Allsec Technologies Limited

(d) Key management persennel compensation March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan (Chairman-Mansging Director)

Short-term employee benefits 160.02 206.61
Post-employment benefits 1143 1558
Total 17145 21119
Mr. Menish Jain (Chief Financial Officer)*

Shost-term employee benefits - 3884
Post-employment benefits - 3.33
Tota} - 42.17

*Mr. Mznish Juin ceased (o be the Chief Finoncial Officer with effect from October 23, 2019
Mr. Gaurav Kent (Chief Finoncin! Offices)®

Short-tenm employee benefits 10.70
Posi-cmployment benefits 2.89
Total 13.59

*Mr. Gaurav Kant has been eppointed as the Chief Finenciel Officer with effect from April 22, 2020 and ceased with effect from September 04, 2020
Mr. Krishna Kumar (Chief Financiel Officer)®

Short-term emplayee benefits 41,32
Post-employiment benefits 1.31 -
Total 4163 .

*Mi. Krishna Kumar has boen oppoinied o the Chief Financial Officer with effect from August 03, 2020

Mz. M, Balasubramaniyen (Company Secrefary)
Short-tenn employee benefits 1306 15.88

(¢) Transactions with related partics
Trensactions with selated pasties are as follows:
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31,2020

Sale of servites

Thoenas Cook (Indis) Limited - 46.49
TC Towrs Private Limiled 1221 24.05
SOTC Teavel Services Priveto Limited : 042
Total 1221 7097
Interest income

Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited 4333 14.82
Sterling Holidoy Resonts (Kodaikanat) Limitued 125.90 97.80
Nature Trails Resosts Privste Limited 176.65 151.44
Total 345.88 264,05
Net recovery on account of holiday octivities

Thomas Cook (Indin) Limited . 7.02
Miscellanzous income

Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited 43,13 156.30
Stecling Holidey Resorts (Kodaikanol) Limited 46.57 89,12
‘Toiat 89,70 24542
Income from use of brand

Stesling Holidays (Outy) Limited . 14.34 51.46
Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited 16.79 349

Tota} 3113 86,40
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March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Rent expease

Thomas Cook (Indis) Limited 0.13 LN
Rental income

Thomas Cook (Indla) Limited . 24.00
Mansgement fees recelved

Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited 20 481.79
Sterling Holiday Resans (Kodaikanal) Limited 217.80 385.49
Total 440.02 §43.28
Masintenance expendifure patd .

Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited 6s.1? 35,68
Stesting Holiday Resorts (Kodatkanal) Limited 3191 $1.91
Total 100.08 §7.56
Travel booking & ctber support services

Thomas Cook (India) Limited 13.03 12233
Services availed

Quess Corp Limited 1,235.19 $69.29
Coathiove Solutions Pvt Lid . 26.64
Allsec Technologies Limited 2n 1145
Terier Security Services (india) Pvt Lid a0 L1
Go Digit Geners! Insurence Limited 9.78 -
Tols) 1,318.39 603.50
Dividend cn OCCPRS

Thomas Cook (India) Limited 2.58 258
Employee stock option expense (ESOP)

Thomas Cook (India) Limited 360.83 360.06
Loans and advances granted

Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited 121628 2,010.36
Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikenal) Limited 113994 1,396.39
Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited 500.21 365.49
Total _2,856.43 3,172,125
Loans and Advances repald

Stedling Holidays {(Ooty) Limitcd 852.77 2,066.93
Stesting Holiday Resosts (Kodaikanal) Limited 860.61 1,242.58
Nature Trails Regorts Private Limited - 8.00
Tots) 1,713.38 332252
{0) Outstanding balances as at the year end

Trade payables

Thomas Cook (India) Limited 160.24 165.27
Queas Comp Limited - 0.08
Go Digit General Insurence Limited 191 L7
Coachieve solulions Pvt Lid . 0.98
Allsec Technologies Lid 293 1048
Terzier Security Services (Indin) Pvi Ltd 1.36 42.57
Total 166.44 226.07
Dividend payable on OCCRFPS

Thomas Cook (India) Limited 7.65 5.07
Advances (o suppliers

Quess Corp Limited 12.67 11395
Advantes from customers

SOTC Travel Services Privete Limited - 1.00
Trade Receivable

Thomas Cook (India) Limited - 6.65 16.70
TC Tours Private Limited 10.8 2.60
Totat 12.46 2430
(g) Loans to reloted parties

Loans to subsidiaries

Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limiled 486.14 122.63
Sterling Holidsy Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited 1,227.27 947.94
Nature Troils Resorts Privote Limited 1,702.98 1,365.49
Total 3,416.39 2.436.06
Interest accrued on loans given

Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited 12.38 3.32
Sterting Holidoy Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited 33.00 27.10
Nature Trails Resonts Privato Limited $43.93 38).21
Toind 589.31 411.63
(b) Terms and conditions

The loans to Ooly, Kodai are given at an interest rate of 10% p.a. ond 10 NT al 13% p.a. and are repayable on demond. The total foans receivable from the subsidisries
(including interest receivable) oggregotes to Rs. 4,005.70 lekhs (Previous year Rs. 2,847.69 lakhs). During the year, the Company has paid enmounts on behalf of the
subsidiaries aggregating to Rs. 5,.907.91 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 3,772.25 lakhs) and have rccovered amounts oggregating to Rs. 4,749.90 lakhs (Previous yesr Rs.
3,322.52 lakhs) The accunulstcd Yosscs as al March 31, 2021 of Ooty, Kodai and NT are Rs 580.48 lekhs, Rs 1,417.70 lakhs and Rs.2,344,09 lgkhs respectively
(Previous yenr Rs. 397.18 lakhs, Rs. 1,208.95 lakhs and Rs. 704.30 lakhs sespeciively) The fisture financin! projeclions of the subsidiary companies teflect posilive cnsh
flows fram opetalions due 10 higher occupancyAarifls from sefurbished propenties. Accordingly, the Management is ofthe view that thesc loans sre good and recoverable.
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Asat As ot
March 31, 2023 March 31,2020
43 Contingent liabilitles and contingent asstte

Contingent liabilities
Claims sgainst the Company not scknowledged a3 debt:

(8) In respect of income tax matters:

Advance Subscription towards Customer Facililies (ASCFVEntitlement fec being 55%/40% of sale value is treated . -
es deferred income and recognised as income oves the period of entitlement. In sespect of Assessment Years 1997-

98 to 2001-02, the Income Tex Appellate Tribunal, Chennai (ITAT) hos passed orders ogninst the said sccounting

treatment followed by the Company and (o treat them a3 income in the respestive year of receipt. The Company has

appealed ngainst these Orders before Honble High Count of Medras and the cose is pending.

The ITAT, Chennai has decided in favour of Company's accounting treatment of ASCF for Assessment years 2002-
03, 2006-07, 2007-08, 2008-09 and 2009-10 agninst which department has gone on oppeal. There is no lax tisbility
en sccount of such order owing to carry forward losscs and unabsorbed depreciation svaieble under Income Tax
Act.. In respect of Assessment Years 2010-11 to 2013-14, ITAT, Mumbai has decided in fovour of Company’s
eccounting treaiment of ASCF/Entitlement foc and in respect of Asscssmeat Years, for which the department is
likely to go on sppeals. These is no tax liobility on account of such orders owing lo carry forword losses end
unabsarbed depreciation svailable under Income Tax Act.

In respect of AY 1999-2000, The Assessing officer (AO) has sddod notional interest with the retumed income of . -
Manchenda Resorts Privote Limited (Siace merged with the company w.c.f., April 1, 2012). The Commissioner of

Income Tax Appeals has confirmed the cddition of the AO. The company hes filed appeals with Income Tax

Tribuna! for this matter and the case is pending o of date. There is no tox liability on sccount of such ordet owing

to carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreci ilable undes Income Tax Act.

In respect of Assessment Yeas 2010-11, the income tox depariment has re-opened the assessment and the assessing - -
officer has disallowed the brought forward depreciation loss of the demerged entity Sterling Holiday Resorts India

Limited from the AY 199697 to AY 200102, The Company has obisined the fovoursble orders from [TAT

Mumbai. There is no tax Mability on account of such cider owing to cary forwerd losses and unabsorbed

depreciation avaflable under Income Tax Act.

In respect of Asseasment Year 2015-16, the Assessing Officer (AO) hed issued an order with respect (o treatment of 2,362.58 2,352.58
ASCF/Entittement fee and disatowance of brought forwasd loss of the demerged entity Stesting 1lolidsy Resorts

Indie Limited ond for other disall The Company hed fited on appeal before Commissioner of Income Tex

(Appeals), Mumbai and the case is pending os of date. Since the entire brought forward loss was disallowed, this has

resulted in a tax demand.

The Assessing Officer (AO) has issued on income tax demand arder for the AY 2017-18. Additions of Rs. 13.805.84 6.451.04 6,451.04
takhs have been mede for the items tobulated below. Consequently, a demand of Rs. 6,451.04 lakhs was defermined

os payable Based on the mansgement's ossessment ond the odvice of extemal consullont, the Company believes the

demand is not tenable. The Company is in the process of filing theit response for the same.

The Assessing Officer (AO) has issucd on income tox demand order for the AY 2001-02 & AY 2006-07. Penalty 69438 694.35
orders has been issued by the officer for the obove years. Bosed on the manageanent's assessment and the advice of

external consulian, the Company believes (he demand is not tenable. The Company is in Ihe process of filing their

response (or the seme.

During the year, the Assessing officer vide this order has disallowed the usual issue of ESOP expenses and odded 201.84 -
back the Deferred income. Further he has disallowed the long term capitel toss claiined by the company for Rs. 408

lakhs ¢n sale of land at Kodai and asrived ot o long tenm capitat gain of Rs 749 lakhs, We are taking the steps to file

the oppeals with CIT(A) Mumbei.

(b) In respect of service tax matters:

‘Demand towards service tax matters in respect of which stoy order obteined 551.04 557.04
(excludes shaw couse notices nggregating Re. 8,642.62 Jakhs which have been responded by the Company/ stay

order obtained and against which no demnnds have been raised as of date)

(¢) Others:

Luxury tax gelated demands under appeal 231996 1,811.46
VAT rclated matters 56.36 37.60
GST related matters 113.28 17937
Customer, vendor, employee and property related disputes under appeal 960.31 2,611.16

The Company has filed on appea) against the nbove matiets which is pending disposat, Future vash flows in respect of above, if eny, is determinable only on receipt of
judganent/ decision pending with rel suthoritics,

(9) Supreme Count vide iheir judgement doted February 28, 2018 clarified thot Provident fund deduction is to be made on basic salury and on other salary componcnts
which are universally madc awvoilablc to oll cmployces. The (.ompnny. based on extemal edvice, belicves that there ore interpretative challenges on the application of the
Jjudgenent retrospectively. Pursuant to the ruling, the Company 3 o provision of Rs 45.33 lokhs in 2018-19, with respect to demands received for Manali (for the
period of April 2007 to December 2015) and Munnar (for periods prior to 2013), Based on the advice and in the absence of the relisble m | of the provision for
eatlier periods, the Company has not recorded & provision with Tespect to0 any period other then as mentioned above. The Company would updelc the provisiss i :
based on clarification received from the relcvant authorities,
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As at Asat
Commitments March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{e) Capital comnitments
Capital expenditure contracied for 8t the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabililics is a3 follows:
Property, plani and equipmen) 96,56 181.73
Property related motters

During the financial year 2011-12, pursuant to One Time Seftlement (OTS) scheme, the Company had fully sctiled the dues of a Finencial Instinition (FT) and elso obtained
a "No Duc’ ceatificate. However, the F1 has not released the title deeds of the properties given as security for the reasen that a Third Paty has filed & wril petition against
the F1 chellenging the cancellation of sale of the said property to them. The Company is also o pasty 1o Ihe said writ petilion. The said writ petition was disposed ofT by
Hon'ble High Court of Madras, against the Company. The Company has preferred Specinl Leave Petition (SLP) before the Hon'ble Supreme Coust of India and the Court
has ordered “Status quo’ in all respects concerning the said properties. The nel bovk velue of land and building as st March 31, 2028 in respect of the said property
egiregates to Rs. 8,065.60 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 8,217.06 lekhs). In view of thc management and based on the independent legal opinion obtained, the Company has o
fair chance lo succeed in the appeal pending before Hon'ble Supreme Court of Indto,

The Company had in the past transferred a property at Goa and part of the sale consideration amounting to Rs. $27.10 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 527.10 lokhs) (included
untder “Other financinl assets”) was retsined by the buyer pending compliance of certain conditions. The Company is confident of tecovering this amount as it has taken
effective steps for discharge of ils obtigations. The Company is also legally advised that it has the right of vendar's lien against the immovable property sold to the extent of
amount due. The Company has filed a suit against the buyer for recovery of the amount. In vicw of the aforesaid, the sbove amount is cansidered good and recoverable by
Management. Application for rejection of the pleint by the defendant has been dismissed. The Defendant filed » revision before the High Court et Goa and High Court
dismissed the same, Tho Company expects the triel 1o stort soon.

The Company had in the past transfcrred 8 property of 7.3 acres out of 10.3 scres land parce) ot Chail for consideration and with & condilion that the buyer would construct
10 cottages in the 3 scres land retained by the Company end handover the same. H{owever, the buyer had token the possession of the entire parcel of land and had not
fulfilled the condition. The book value of the lond is Rs. 723.60 lakhs (March 31, 2020; Rs. 550.00 lakhs). The title deeds for 3 acres of Innd aze not avoileble with the
Company. There is an arbitration award in favour of the Company which the Company is enforcing in the court of law. The Company is of the view that it has a fair chance
to succeed in its plea, The High Court has ordered 'Status Quo’ on the property. The Company has filed an application for appointment of the receiver.

During July 2019, the Company terminated its lease contraci for the Daman resort due to non-renewal of the statutory licenses by the owner afier repeated reminders. The
contract had e lock-in period of 9 years till January 2024. The resort owner issued a legal notice on November 25, 2019 demanding » sum of Rs.1,091 lakhs towards the
ouistending lock-in obligation, outstanding operations and maintcnance fee, GST not paid by SHRL snd other costs incurred by the owner. The land lord has invoked the
Atbitretion cleuse and sppointed an Arbitrator 10 edjudicete the dispute. The Company has submitied & reply on December 17, 2019 denying all the allegations and hes
nominated an Arbitrator to represent SHRL. As the Company has not received eny further update from the resont owner tegarding the seme and the matler has not been
taken up for hearing by any adjudicaling suthority, such amount has been removed as contingent liability for the ewrent year.

Other property related matters
Property Net carrying Net carrying Remarks
amount as on amount 83 on
March 31,2028  March 31, 2020

Kodai Valley View (Revalued - Refes Note 52) 8,331.00 6,510.00 The Company hes submitted the original title documents with the Disivict
Magisiraic a3 part of tho plaint filed in response to litigation for tille in 1993,
The trial hes been stayed by the High Count. Stay has been vacated. The case
will be hieard before the District Court Kodaikanal.

Hubli 5.16 5.16 Salc deed was not registered in the name of the Compeny. The Company had
paid the entire consideration and laken over possession of the property. Seller
company was Jiquidated in Lhe past, accordingly the Company needs to loke
necessery legal sleps to register the litle in ils name. The Company has
approached the official liquidators office and is yel fo receive next steps from
them,

Peermedu (Revalued - Refer Nole 52) 1,768.10 1,483.15 1he Company is in possession of 8 land ot Peenmedu which was inilially under
lease. Subsequently, an agrecinent for sale was also entered into with lessors
and salc consideration was paid as ons lime deposit. The Compeny hed filed a
legal casc agninst the lessors invoking specific performance of the sale
agreement, The Court has pased en order in favour of the Company. The
Company needs ta file and E.P For execution of the Decree.

The Company holds 98% equity shares in Sterling Holidays (Qoty) Limited and Sterling Haliday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited and each subsidiary company is responsible

for maintoining the property p to the property timeshare ay with Ihe property limc share members. However, centain propeny lime share weeks of ihese iwo
propertics are unsold and retained by the Company. Pursuant 1o the necessary approvals obtained by the Company and subsidiery companies es required under the
Companies Act, 2013, the subsidiary companics can rent out weeks sold 10 propernty timeshare members and unsold weeks retained by the Company which are vacant and
eam gevenue from it. The property time share membess and the Company shall have no claiin on the revenve generated fiom il. Funher, pussuant to the exchange clause
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47 Disclosure under Micro, Smel! and Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006 are provided os under for the year 2020-2), to the exient the Company hos received
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49

intimation frem (ie “Suppliers® regarding their status under the Act

Asal As st
March 3, 2021 March 31, 2020

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remeining unpaid es at year end 80.80 44.04
Inteest due to suppliers regisicred under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 23.82 6.46
Principal emounts paid to supplicrs registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed date during the year 223,18 163.86
fnicrest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers regisicred under the MSMED Act, beyond - D
the appoinied day during the yeor
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the .
appointed day during lhe year
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registercd under MSMED Act, for payments already made 15.1% 3.5
Further interest semeining due ond payable even in the succceding years, until such date when the interest dues 8.10 072
gbove are ectually paid to the smoll enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the MSMED Act

The composite Scheme of Amangement and Amalgemalion (“the Scheme™) between Thomas Cook Insurance Services (India) Limited (row known as Sterling Holiday
Resorts Limited) ("the Company"), Thomas Cook (India} Limited (“TCIL") and erstwhite Sterling Holiday Resons (India) Limited ("SHRIL") end their respective
shareholders and creditors has been sanctioned by the High Court of Judicature al Mumbai and the High Court of Judicature al Madras on July 2, 2015 and April 13, 2015,
respectively, and mode effective on August 18, 2015, In terms of the said Scheme, the Timeshare end Reson business of ersiwhile SHRIL ("Demerged Underteking™) has
been demerged and transfecred to and vested with the Company as a going concem and the sesidus] SHRIL has becn amalgamated with TCIL. The sppointed datc of the
Scheme is Apsil 1, 2034,

In accordance with the soid Scheme :

#) the assets and liabilities of the Demezged Undertaking as on April 1, 2014 have been laken over by the Compeny snd have been recorded at their respective book values,
ignoring revaluations.

b) the Equity Shares (including equily sheses acquired afier appointed datc) held by the Company in erstwhile SHRIL were cancelled.

¢) the difference of Rs. 22,984.06 lakhs between the book values of niet assets of the Demerged Undertaking recorded in the books of the Company as above and the value
of investments in erstwhile SHRIL in the books of the Companty, has been adjusted ogainst Securities Premium Account.

d) an emount of Rs. 274 1akhs relating 1o current 1ax provision was reversed and an amoint of Rs. 4.2 lakhs relating to deferred tax aeset was reversed into retsined earnings
consequent o the scheme

¢) in consideralion for tranafer of Demerged Undentaking into the Company, 116 equity shares of TCIL of Re. J each has been issued to the sharcholders of erstwhile
SHRIL for every 100 shores of Rs. 10 cach held in ersiwhile SHRIL.

Asat Asal
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020

Assety pledged as secority
Current
Reoeivables 51.30 1671
Inventosies 14.26 4.68
Non-current
Frechold land {Revolued - Refer Nole 51) 6,594.34 5,408.00
Buildings 5,732.88 7,554.00
Moveable assels 2,685.53 3,273.00

<Thiz space is intentionatly left blank>
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Notes forming part of financlal statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
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S0 Share based psyments

(a) Employec option plan
The options cutstanding v at March 31, 2021, represent the unvested, vested and excicisable options granied by Thomas Cook India Limited, the liolding company, 1o the
employees of the company. This disclosurc is based on the informetion relating to the scheme shared by the holding company.

Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited Employee Stock Options Scheme 2012 - ("SHRL ESOS 2012")

As pet clause 15.3.2 of ihe Composite Scheme of Avangement and Amalgamalion between Sterling Holiday Resorts (India) Lid, (SHRIL) and Thomas Cook Insurance Services
(India) Led (TCISIL), snd Thomas Cook (Indis) Ltd. (TCIL) the SHRIL ESOS 2012 became a part of the lioding company’s schemes and Stock Options which had been granted but
not exercised 88 of the Record Date, by such SHRIL employees shall Japse and in licu of the Lapsed Opticns of SHRIL, TCIL shall grant 120 options for every 108 options of
SHRIL. The sevised Exerciso Price for Grani | was INR 80.00 and for Grant 11 was INR 108.46. Subject to the terms of the Scheme end SEBI ESOP Guidelines, the option holder
will have a period of S ycars from the date of which the Options have vested, within which the vested options can be excreise

Thomas Cook Employees Stock Scheme 2018
Under Emplayes Share Option Scheme 2015 (ESOP 2015) granted by Thomos Cook India Limited, the holding Company, 33%, 33% and 34% of the options granted vest in &
period of 12 months, 24 months end 36 months respectively from e grani date. Once vested thic options remain excreitable for a period of 10 years from the date of grant,

Thomas Cook Employces Stock Scheme 2018 - Management (ESOP 2018 - Management)

The Company has established an Employee Stock Optien Scheme called - Thomas Cook Employees Stock Scheme 2018 - Management (ESOP 2018 ~ Management)™.

Grenl date of the scheme if 01-S¢p-2018 and the Exercite price of the Vesied Option shall be 50% of the Market price es defined under the SEB1 Regulations,

The purpose of this Scheme is to reward and retain the employees of the Subsidiary Companies of Thomas Cook under its contro) for high levels of Individuz) performance and for
exceptional effoxts to improve the financial perfonnance of the respective subsidiery companies, which will uftimately contribute to the success of Thomas Cook. This purpose is
sought 10 be achieved through (ke grant of Optians, for and on behsifof, end &1 the behest of the subsidiary companies to their employees.

Thomas Cook Employees Stock Scheme 2018 - Execom

The Exerciss Price sholl be oquat to face velue of shares i.c Re. | per option.

The objective of the ESOP 2018 - Execom is (o rewaid the Execom Employees of the Company for their performance and 1o motivete them (0 contribute o the growth and
profitability of the Company. The Company 8lso intends to use this Scheme to retain tslent in the organization. The Company views Employee Stock Optioas as instruments that
would enabls the Employees to sharo the value they create for the Company end slign individual objectives of employees with cbjectives of the Company in the years to come.

The Scheme shall be epplicable to the Execom and Employees of TCIL, its Subsidiary companies in Indin and abroad, as determined by the Committee on its own discretion from
time to time.

Options granted under ESOP 2018 - Excoom would Vest only at the end of S years from the date of grant of such cptions. Vesting of options would be subject to continued
employment with the Company and cenain perfarmance parsmeters. The specific performance parsmeters will be decided by the Committee from time to time and will be
communicated to the employees. The anzinment of such performance parometers would be determined by the Committee from time to lime which shall be a mandstory condition
for vesting of options.

1) Summary of options granted nnder plan ;

March 31, 2021 March 3§, 2020
TCIL ESOP 2018 Execom Avg exercise price Nurmber of aptions Avg exerclse price Number of options
per share option per chare optlon
Opening balance 1.00 675,633 1.00 130919
Granted during the year 1.00 16,196 1.00 .
Exercised during the year - - - -
Forfeited during the year 1.00 168,183 1.00 §5,286
1.00 $83,646 1.00 675,633
Morch 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
TCIL ESOP 2018 Management Avg exercise price Avg exerclse price
per share option Number of oplions per thare opticn Number of options
Opening balance 12s.10 182,573 125.10 221,008
Granted during the year - . - -
Exercised during the year - - . -
Forfeited dusing the yeor 125.10 86,390 125.10 38,438
128.10 96,183 125,10 182,573
Iarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ESOS 2012 (Grunt 1) Avg exercise priec Number of options Avg cxercise price Number of optlons
per share option per shore option
Opening balance 108.46 23,850 108.46 66,900
Granted during the year - - . -
Exercised during the year - . 108.46 3,300
Forfcited during the year 108.46 16,800 108.46 39,750
108.46 1,050 108.46 23,850
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
ESOP 201S Avg eaercise price Number of options Avg exercise price Number of options
per share option per share option
Cpening balonce 165.92 112,591 165.92 128,978
QGranted during the year . - - .
Exescised during the year . - . 13,037
Forfeited durning the year 165.92 42,008 165.92 3400

e ‘I»s_sjz.__.. . 65,533 16592 112,841
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(b)

Share based payments (coatd.)
#) Share options cutstanding at the end of year bave following expiry date and exercise prices

Share options

Grant date Expiry date Exerclse price March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
ESOP 2018 - Execom Octobder $, 2018 September 29, 2043 1.00 553,646 678,633
ESOP 2018 - Management September 1, 2018 August 29, 2034 125.10 96,183 182,573
ESOS 2012 (Grant II) July 30,2014 July 27,2024 108.46 7,050 23,850
ESOP 2015 August 25, 2015 August 24, 2025 165.92 65,533 112,511
i) Medification of share based payment:
On implementation of Composile Schame of prmmpement aud Demerger of Hunan Resonrce Business
The Holing compeny (TCIL) in n composite scheme of amangement demerged its Human R Services Busi and tronsferved it to Quess Corp Limited (Quess). The

scheme was approved by the Nationo! Company Low Tribunal (NCLT) with the oppointed date as April 1, 2019. The effective date of the scheme was November 25, 2089 when
both TCIL and Quess filed the cenified copies of the order with theif respective jurisdictiona! Registrar of Companies.

As 8 part of the composite scheme, Group Employees whose ESOPs wero outstanding on the effective date will be entitled to the edditiona! shares of Quess on account of the
demerger of Human Resource Business Instead of altering the exercise price, TCIL provided additional award in form of Quess shares.

The group employees arc now entilled to shares of Quess slong with those of TCIL in the seme share entitlement ratio prescribed in the scheme for the other sharcholders of TCIL
(1889:10,000)

In ease of vested ESOPs, the employees will be granted shares of TCIL end Quess only on payment of the exercisc price. In case of unvested ESOPs, the employces will be grented
shares of TCIL and Quess on completion of the remaining vesting period and payment of the excrcise price.

The options, to the extent, which are setiled by shares of Quess do not meet the definition of a share-based payment asrangement because the velue of shares of Quess is not based
on the price or velue of TCIL's cquity instruments or eny ol its group entity’s <quity insiruments. The options (o the extenl which are settled by shares of Quess will be considered
as an ecmployee benefit within the scope of Ind AS 19. The options settled by shares of TCIL continue 1o be considered as share based payments and ore accountod as per IND AS
102.

March 31.2021]  March 31, 2020
.49 311.60
139.34 48.48

wop] s

51 Revaluation of land

During the financial year 2018-19, the Company hes changed its sccounting policy with respect to measurement of (rechold and leaschold lond from the cost model to revalustion
model with effect from April 1, 2018. Freehold and leasehold tand will be recognized st fair veluc based on periodic valuution done by external independent valuers, less
subsequent smortization of leaschold land.

A sevatuation surplus will be recorded in OC! and credited to the sssct cevaluation teserve in cquity. However, to the extent that it reverses 8 revaluation deficit of the same asset
previcusly recognized in profit of loss, the increase is tecognized in profit and loss. A revaluation deficit is recognized in the siaiement of profit and loss, excepl to the extent that it
offscts an existing surplus on the same assel recognized in the asset revaluation reserve.

Fair value of the land assets was detennined by an extemal independent valuer using the masket comparable method, i.c., the valugtions performied by the valuer are based on active
market sale prices, adjusted for difference in the nature, location or condition of the specilic property.

During the current year, the Company has ded luation gain of Rs. 9.217.12 lakhs in OCI based on the fair value of frechold and leasehold land as at March 31, 202 as
determined by an extemal independent valuer. The carrying emounts as ot March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 under cost and revaluation models erc given below:

Block of asset Revaluotion model Cost model
As al As st Asat Asat
March 31.2024]  Morch 31,2020]  March 31,2021] March 31,2020
Frechold land 52,899.52 49324.48 3,623.04 3,623.04
Right of use asset land (Refer note 52) 3.15).09 2.142.57 1,548.50 1,566.14
Tota! | 61,250.61 52,467.08 5.171.54 £189.18 |
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$2 Movement in right of use assets and Lease lishilities as per Ind AS 116 Leases

As 8 lessee, the company leases meny asscts including tand end building, vehicles
Right of use assets Land Bailding Vehicles Total
Balance st Apsil 1, 2019 -

9.399.95 67.82 9.467.77

Transition adjustment on adopting IND AS 116 -

Transfer from Propenty Plont & Equipment 2,776.33 - - 2.776.33
Transfer from prepaid expense - 408.9?7 . 408.97
Addition to right ol use assets - 2430.13 27 243286
Deprecietion chargs for the year (33.76) (2,009.30) (25.84) (2.068.90)
Derecognition of right of uses assets - (686.82) . 686.82
Batance at March 31, 2020 2,742.57 9,539.93 4471 13327.21
Addition to right of uso sssets 642,19 . . 642.19
Depreciation charge for the year 33.67) (1,813.79) (22.98) (1.870.44)
Derecognition of right of uses assets . {957.37) (1.62) - {964.99)
Balance at March 31, 2021 3,351.09 6,768.77 1411 16,133.97
Lease Liabllities Amount
Balance at April 1, 2019 .
Transilion adjustment 94671
Additions 2,326.5)
Deletions (698.75)
Finance cost accrued during the period 866.20
Discharge of lease lisbilities (2,353.25)
Balance at March 31, 2620 9,608.48
Additions -
Deletions (982.50)
Finence cost accrued during the period 763.68
Discharge of lease linbilities (2.172.75)
Bslance at March 31, 2021 7,215.91
Cument 1,246.34
Non-curreat 5.969.57

53 Movement In deferred ncqulsition costs and coniract liabilities as per Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracls with eustomers

(a) Deferred acqulsition costs For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balance 9,339.30 1,153.36
Additions dusing the year 2,050.35 2,184.24
Writen ofl due to cancellation of contracts (998.712) -
Amortized during the year (894.73) (598.40)
Closlag balance 9,496,20 9,339.30
{b) Coniraet Babilities Membership fee Annua) Other resort Total
subscription fee revenue
Opening balance os at April 1, 2020 82,042.15 662.51 875.20 83,579.86
Additions dusing the year (net) 3,437.38 784.98 654,58 4,876.91
Contracts cancelled during the yeor (4,255.80) . - (4,255.80)
Income recognized during the year (4,291.38) (451.60) (846.17) (5,589.16)
Adjustment on eccount of provision for cancellation (2,674,78) - - (2,674.78)
Ciosing balance as ot March 31, 2021 _74,257.84 995,88 683.61 78,932,03
Contract Habilltles Membership fee Annual Other resort Total
subscription fee revenue
Opening balance as 81 April 1,2019 76,739.97 609.79 1,036.14 78,385.90
Additions during the year (net) 11,438.88 417.94 76146 12,624.28
Contracts cancelied during the year . - * .
Income recognized during the year (5,005.01) (365.22) (928.40) (6,298 63)
Adjustment on accouni of provision fos cancellstion (1,131.66) . . (1,131.66)
Closing balance as a1 March 31, 2020 82,0415 662.51 $§75.20 83,579.86

For contract liabilities pestaining to membership fee, sesvices will be provided over the effective membership period and revenue is recognised over that period
Other cantrost liabilities pertain to consideration seceived in advance and are recopnized as revenus in the respective pesiod when the service is rendered
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Chartered Accountants
14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Telephone: +91 22 6257 1000
Nesce IT Park 4, Nesco Center, Fax: +91 22 6257 1010

Western Express Highway,
Goregaon {East), Mumbai - 400 063

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
SOTC Travel Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SOTC Travel Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufticient and appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion on the [inaikial statcments.

to Note 1C of the financial statements, the possible effect in uncertainties relating to

fe-dfa At e
é&!‘»ﬁ%“@&q on the Company’s financial performance as assessed by the management. Our opinion
is npt:modifiedin respect of this matter.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
SOTC Travel Limited

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s board report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Board report is expected to be made available to

us after the date of the auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
when it becomes available and in doing so consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as
applicable under the applicable laws and regulations.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

s B rial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
,Co@ o onable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
@7 idrfatcor with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise

"“"::;fféﬁ?:'ﬂ;h o rror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably

mstetz‘@?'““- dt influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statemnents.
G ann \Caxt.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
SOTC Travel Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Confinued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a going concer.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies In Internal
control that we identify during our audit.

ide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ents tegarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

. . Caninf :
feghiards.,
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Independent Aaditors’ Report (Continued)

SOTC Travel Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a staternent on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company s0
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
rrotection Fund by the Company;

& Co.
(o3 {
QPGJ sl ‘ i ﬁ\losures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
cenrat Wd. 0k notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been

. . 4 . . . .
. se‘[‘:zi‘;riz':?nad in :‘;hese financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31
‘ lcﬁlegaon 'Bé{édlr 2021.

Humba -
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BSR & Co.LLP
Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

SOTC Travel Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)
(B) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197
of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section
197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(1 6)
which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248 W/W-100022

F. M-

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Partner

Mumbai Membership No.042070
14 May 2021 UDIN No.: 21042070AAAABZ1954



BSR & Co.LLP

SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, we report that:

0]

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified by the management
according to a phased manner over a period of two years. In accordance with this
programme, a portion of the property, plant and equipment have been physically verified
by the management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on
such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no immovable properties held by the
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(“c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a service company and thus, it does not hold any physical inventory. Thus
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships, or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’). Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to investments made
and loan given. The Company has not provided any guarantees or securities to parties covered
under Section 185 or 186 of the Act therefore the relevant provisions of Section 185 and 136 of the

Act are not applicable.

In our opinion, and according tn the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits from the public as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As informed to us by the management, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance
of cost records under section 148 of the Act for any of the goods sold and services rendered by the

Company.

ording to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
tion of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
acc respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees” State
Insurance:\Income-tax, Professional tax, Goods and Services tax, Cess and other material
statuto rhjes, as applicable, have been generally regularly deposited during the year by
the' Company with the appropriate authorities though there has been some delay in few
#ses/in réspect of Income-Tax, Professional Tax and Labour Welfare Fund.




BSR & Co.LLP

SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services
tax, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period
of more than six months ftom the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Provident
fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Service tax and Goods and Services tax as
at 31 March 2021, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute other than those mentioned below:

Nature of Statute Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum where
Dues Demanded deposited which the dispute is
under amount pending
Disputes relates
The Finance Act, | Service tax 2006-2015 CESTAT
1954 227,772,514 17,082,938
The Finance Act, | Service tax 81,11,575 6,08.368 | 2008-2013 CESTAT
1994
The Finance Act, | Service tax 64,06,240 480,468 | 2006-2010 CESTAT
1994
The Finance Act, | Service tax 7,03,04,341 52,72,825 | 2006-2009 CESTAT
1994
The Finance Act, | Service tax 1,27.41,876 9,55,640 | 2006-2012 CESTAT
1994
The Finance Act, | Service tax 20152016 CESTAT
1994 6,0559,936 4544995
The Finance Act, | Service tax 2,99,37,382 - | 2009-2011 Commissioner of
1994 Service Tax
The Finance Act, | Service tax 84,45,459 - | 2011-2015 Assistant
1994 Commissioner
Service Tax
The Finance Act, | Service tax 4,36,31,401 - | 2016-2018 Commissioner of
1994 Service Tax

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loans to banks and borrowings to its banks and financial institutions.
The Company did not have any loans or borrowings from government or dues to debenture holders

during the year.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given to us, the Company has

utilized the money raised by way of term loans for the purpose for which they were raised. The

smpany did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
3 ents).

g Cot

[

L29) 141h Flo0r. - \
o Wing. Towee . . . . .
%).:co ceniceo ding to the information and explanations given to us, there no material fraud by the Company
et B0 GE B heCompany by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of

repagg (kasl. .
S:mgﬂ\“ymm dif
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BSR & Co.LLP

SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the Company is not
a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 ofthe Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required under Indian Accounting Standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W 100022

a..l/u‘
2

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Partner

Mumbai Membership No.042070
14 May 2021 UDIN No.: 21042070AAAABZ1954



BSR & Co. LLP

SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ report

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SOTC Travel
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of

the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intenal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter

referred to as “the Act”™).
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of

i cial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
suchdnte ancial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evalvating
the rdesigh operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures

éleftedde n on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
fthefin  ial statements, whether due to fraud or error.



BSR&Co. LLP

SOTC Travel Limited
Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

B . mrpti=

Bhavesh Dhupelia

FPartner
Mumbai Membership No.042070
14 May 2021 UDIN No.: 21042070AAAABZ1954
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SOTC Travel Limited

Balance Sheet
asaf 3F March 203
{All 2mouts in R3 Lakdss, waless otherwise stated)

Naee Asat As a1
31 March 2021 31 Moarch 2826
L ASSETS
(E) Noo-curreml assats
(a) Property, plaot mad e pmcnt 2 13533 Hiaz
(b} Rigin of use assers 27 1,028.93 119292
(c) Goodwitl 22 5850 268.50
{d} Other fatangible avsets 2.3 “an 6766
(e} Financial ayyets
() kivestments 3 554923 384918
(ii) Loms. 4 42692 La116
{ifi) Orber Ginancial asycts 3 18014 171 .56
(f} Defesred tax 2xses (met) & +695.53 5,994 96
{g) lcome tax 215e1s (mct) 7 1,637.16 4,108 39
Total mos-currest asseis 17,341,890 20,005.55
(2) Corvest apets
{a) Finzncial aspess
{i} Favestments 5 - 4,108 35
(1) Trade reccivables 2 1,179.21 5,662 54
G5} Cath and cash equivalenus ia 397 261785
{iv) Bank tafmors other than cxsh and cash equivalents i “$.39 4330
(v] Loans i2 L0842y 164198
{vi) Otler Bisgncial aceets 13 41817 2,13054
{b) Other corrent 2ssets X 311500 5,646 46
Totsl corrent sysets 14627.92 2390102
TOTAL ASSETS F1.968.03 -lli”éj7
IL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1} Equity
{a) Fxpaly share cxpinal Is i.00 100
(b} Other Equrity is 4,207.21 9.082.62
Total Equity FETTEY 9,083,672
{2) Neo-current Hahifities
(a} Odacr financial liabikites 7 $IL13 2,74t 93
{b) Provisions iz 37161 359.61
Total Nom-curvews Sabilities. L1975 310154
() Correns liabilities
{2} Financial [eadsilitics
{8) Bosrowings i 24078 2467326
(i) Trade payables
Total outstanding does of Micro aod Small exterprises 20 LE) -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micrs aod Sarall emterprises 20 12,9215 1405807
(i) Orher financial lisbifities n 51406 1,267 14
(b} Prenisions 22 24203 504 .41
{c) Oebser crent labifines 23 10,157.66 1261553
Tota! Carrent Liabilities 26.565.08 kiR =TT
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3LMLas 41.906.57
Significant sccousting policies 15 ——— e ————————
Notes w the finmciyl statements -4

The aotes referred wo above form an integral pant of the financial statements
As per our repot of even date arached

For and oa bebalf of the Board of Dirvcters of
SOTC Travd Limised

:ussmmmotru:mm]
M U‘ \
<D WAL p
Madiavan Meten Vigkal Sari

i Fewarda Wt \;X
s

Farrtmkh Kofah

Civief Frnancial Offsocr Campeasy
Muombai [CS No- AST964]
Teh May 2021



SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
Jor the pear exded 31 March 2031

(Al amcent w Rs Lakdbs, uedess atherase stated)

(3} Revewae

(2} Revenee from operztions
{h) Ocher encorme

Totad income

2) Expenzes

{a) Cost of xraces

{b) Employee benefits expense
(e} Finanes: costs

{d) Dey and

() Ocher expemses

Total expesses

(3) Loss before tas

(4) Taz expense;

{2) Carrent tax

(b} Defesred tax credit

(5) Lagss after taz

(6) Other comprebensive (Lass)l, (OCTy

Itemy that will wat be reciacrified to profit er (fass)

1) Remeastmements of defomed benednn (lizbility) / rivct

{i7} Encom: tx cxpesse an remeasurements. of defimed benefit lisbifity Xascet)

Other compredaensive {Lexs)income (uet of income tax) [G)

() Tetal comprrhonsive Lass for the yeir

(%) Earaings per Equity thare (Face valoe of Rs. 19 cach)
6) Basic { Rs)

Significars accomumg polroes

Notes so the fmznctal stztements

The potes reficrred wo above fonm an exegral part of the fmancral statements
As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Co LLP
Chawtered Accountants
Fiem's Regiceration Mo 10§248WAV-100022

5. H%&

Partaer

Membersiug No 042070
Mumbxn

1dth 3lee- 2021

Nate

24

B~4R

1B
-0

For the year ended For the year ended
3 hiarch 2021 31 Manch 3620

43857% 1795505

§52.62 459,19

504931 L15.444 24

2ESSSE NISHP

42138 887438

55116 §94.12

L6 1.063.41

4133761 947608

JZ3HLS 119,862 43
{7.794.03) (1.518.24)
(2.720.£5) €531.03)
SS.GT-I.I Z! sgzll I

259 4839
[r.1 )1 {1691}

39.59 3143

S

—(SOT (5573
{S0,741.65) @37211)

For aad om beialf of the Board of Directors of

IR
Q/Xauw -

Fc_w\wW\ K»LJ\.,

Farromih Kolak

Cloef Financial Officer
Momba

Tih May 2021

SOTC Travel Limited

PLCL31691]

Vishat Sari
i D
[DIN 06413771)

&
i Palod

Contpenty Sexresary
{CS No: A5T964}



SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al amount in Rs Lakhs, unless ctherwise stated)

Cash flow from operafing activities
Loss before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on Right of use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
(Gain)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
(Gain)Loss on Lease liability
Exchange gain
Share-based paynient expense
Unclaimed credit balances no longer required, written back
Bad debts and advances written ofF
Provision for doubtful debts, advances and deposits (net)
Profit on redemption of tmits of mutual funds
Interest income - others
Interest income on Inter-Corporate Deposits
Interest income on fixed deposits and investments
Interest on 1ax refands
Finance costs

Working capital adjustmenss
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Decrease in loans and advances

(Decrease)/ Increase in trade payables, other financial liabilities and current liabilities

Decrease in provisions

Income tax refund / (paid), net
Net cash flows (used) in/generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitics

Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment

Payment for purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plamt and cquipment & intangible
Interest received

Sale{Purchase} of units of mutual funds, net

Repayment of loan

Loan given

Redemption of Fixed deposits during the year (net)

Net cash flows generated from /(used) in investing activities

Cash flows from {inancing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Payment of Lease liabilities
Interest aid
&no in financing activities
® ¢
(Yo se in _and cash equivalents
a.ih equ alents at the beginning of the year
%E r‘ n?g, o eé;alili lents at the end of the year
Westagl Expiess Highw
GPalgaon {East),
Mupfai - 400 063

*

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(71,794.83) (1,41824)
152.01 190.58
679.37 798.68

53.58 74.55
(1.48) (3.98)
(141.6T) -
(99.51) -
15927 293.37
(90.46) (1,506.81)
266.49 841.40
(32.37) (83.99}
(1.83) (159.89)
(19.58) (16.13)
(190,07 (128.06)
(103.79) (47.50)
(334.16) -
55216 694.12

(6,946.87) (471,90

424921 3,943.03

6,748.65 9,137.76

(3,388.25) (12,730.22)

17.20 (218.06)
679.94 (339.39)

2,805.38 (1,143.75}

3,485.32 (1,483.14)
(98.59) (184.43)
(54.15) (8337

3.36 417
19326 190.45

4,110.18 1,202.62

4,15039 550.39

(8,243.60) -
(12.66) 22,60
48.69 1.702.43
150.00 _

(900.00) (1,800.00)
(649.82) (673,85}
{552.16) {694.12)

{1,951,98) (3.167.97)

1,582.03 (2,948.68)
(55.40) 289328

1,526.63 (55.40)




SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of cash flows (Continued)
Jar she yeor exdod 31 March 2028

{All anourd in Rx Lakbs, wiess otherwrse stated)

For the year ended For the yesxr ended
3 March 2021 31 March X020
Amount Amount
Recoacilintion of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Batance Sheet
Cash aned Bank: Ratawes s per Babance Shect 1,516.63 {55.40)
Cash and Cash exprivalents as restated a5 at the year end 152463 {55.40)
Note:
Conponents of cash and cash equavalents consasts of
Cash on hand 084 6i.55
Balance with Banks
Cravem Acconmt 3,7163.13 2355630
Less: Bank Overdraft Q.35734) (2.673.25)
}.526.43 {53.40)
QOpening Term Lowm fiom Bank 900.00 2.700.00
Erooceds fiom batremngs 150.00 -
Repayments of borrowings {900.00) (1.B00.00)
Closing Term Loaa from Bank 150.00 900,00
e ————
Notes:
l.mmmﬁﬁhmmmmthsmmummw (IND AS) 7 - “Statement of cash
flow™.
MNote
Sipgmificant accounting policics B
Notes to the inancial sternents 2-g
The: notes refered to above form an integrad part of the financial statements
As per gur neport of even date attached
For BSR& Ca.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Clurtered Accountants SOTC Travel Limited

Finn's Regisration No: [0F248W/W-100022 [CIN:UG3040MH2Z001PLCL31691)

B E,\QWWQ\W /3{/

Bhavesh Dhopelia Mzdhavan Mensn Vishal Suri

Partner Managing Dircctor
Membership No: 042070 W [DIN: 06413771}
Mambsi

14t May 2021 ﬁ w V(# L N }\

Farrsukb Kolah Pravesh Patod
Chief Financial Officer Cowperty Serretary
Mumbai [CS No: A5T964]
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements

as at 3 March 202}
Note 1
1A Company overview

1B.1

I1B.2

1B3

1B4

&

@

W

SOTC Travel Limited (‘the Company') formerly known as SOTC Travel Private Limited is public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in lndia The
Company is cagaged in diversified travel and travel related businesses, working as travel agent, tour operator and as fully fledged money changer.

The financial statements were approved and authorised to issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of directors at its meeting held on 7 May,
2021,

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015 notified under Section 133 of Companics Act, 2013 (the *Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The fi ial has been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost convention, except for the following Assets and Liabilities which have been
measured at fair value:
+ Cenain financial Asssts and Liabilities (incleding mutual fund inv ) that are ed at fair value;

»  Defined benefit plans  plan assets measured at fair value;

*  Sharc-based payments measured at fair value

The fi ial stat are p d in Indian Rupees {‘INR') which is also the Company's functional currency and all values are rounded off to nearest lakhs
{00,000}, except otherwise indicated. wherever the amount is indicated as zero if construes a value less than 50,000,

Going Conern

As at 31 March 2021, the Company's net worth is Rs 4,208.21 lakhs. The Comparty during the year has made a net loss of Rs 5,074.17 lakhs (2020: Loss of Rs.
887.21 lakhs). On account of the COVID 19 restrictions, the busi of the Company has been ly affected and accordingly, the Company has obtained
support letier from its holding company indicating that the holding company will continue to provide financial support as is y to maintain the Company as a
going concern for the foreseeable fiture and 1o meet its liabilities as and when they fall due for the for a period of minimum twelve months from the balance sheet
date.

Management believes that the future business plan and continued suppont from holding company will enable the Company to setile liabilitics as they fall duc. Based
on the above, the Company is confident of its ability to meet the funds requirement and to continue its business as a going concemn and accordingly the financial

statements have been prepared on going concem basis.

Use of estimates

The preparation of fi jal in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ('GAAP’) in India requires that management makes judgment,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amotmts of Assets and Liabilitics, disclosure of contingent liabilitics as of the date of the financiat statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based
upon management’s evaluation of facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial siatements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision (o ac ing csti is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policics that have the most significant effects on the amoumnts recognised in the financial statements is
included in the following notes

Note 24 - Determination of whether a particular service is rendered in the capacity of a principal or agent

Note 30 - Determining the ainount of expected credit loss on financial assets (imcluding trade reccivables)

Note 2.2 - Lease classification

A plions and extimation uneertainties

Tnformation about assumptions and estimation uncerainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the financial statement is included in
the following notes:

Note 1C - Going Concern and Impact of COVID -19

Note 2 - Estimate of useful life used for the purposes of depreciation and amortisation on property plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Note 6 - Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be nsed;

Note 36 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Note 5, 9, 13, 14 and 24 - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources

Note 30 - Impairment of financial assets

Note 2 - Impairment of non financial assets

Curremt  non-current classification
All d Liabilities are classified into Current and Non-current;

15
n ¢ o lséyﬁ current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
inis t isedin, or is intended for sale or ¢ ption in, the company's normal operating eycle;
b)i "7 fo  epurpose of being traded;
CeyiE, ™ gdto  real  within 12 months after the reporting date; or
d)q‘fsé ¢hga8  uiv  tunless itis restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a Liability for at lcast 12 months after the reporting date,
e incl  th t portion of non-current financial Assets, All other Assets are classified 2s non-current.

W bai- 400 063
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as at 3] March 2021

1B Significant acc ing policies (Continued)
IB4  Current non-curreni classification (Continued)
Liabilities
A Liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following crileria.
a) it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;
by it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

c) itis due {o be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
d) the Company docs not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Liability for ot least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liabiity that could,

at the option of the counterparty, result in its seitlement by the issue of Equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current Liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current

Operating cycle:
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Based on the above definition and the

nature of services provided, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current  non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

IB.S  Property, Plans and Equipment's
Mcasurement at recoghition:
Property, plant and equipment is measured al cost less accumlated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the
assel’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only whea it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cast of the item can be measured reliably. Al other repairs and 1 are charged 1o the Stat of Profit and Loss during the period
in which they are incumred. The camying of any P accounted for as a sey asset 15 o gnised when replaced. Losses arising from the
retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of assets which are carried at cost is recogitised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation:
Depreciation is provided pro-rata to the period of use, under the straight line method, over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimate of the uscful life of
the Furniture and fixtures has been assessed based on its nature, usage, expected physical wear and tear, the operating conditions, manufacturers warranties and

maintenances support, etc.
In respect of all other assets the Company believe that the existing usefui life represents Lhe best useful estimated lives of the assets and are at the rates which

comresponds (o the usefil lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

Estimated usefu life

Assets

(in years)
Furniture and Fixiures 5
Office Equipment's (including air conditioners) 3
Vehicles 5
Computer hardware b

Leasehold lmprovemenis are amortised over the period of the lease or usefiel life of the asset whichever is lower,
Property, plant and equipment not ready tor the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-ptogress".

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
approprizie. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets® residnal values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
sppropriate, at the end of cach reporting period. An asset’s carying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount,

% Co
o ‘e
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f an item of property, plant and equip is gnized on disposal or when no fiture economic benefits arc expected from its use or
Yoss arising from the Derccognition of an item of property, plant and equip is ! a5 the diff betwecen the net disposal
jing amount of the fiem and is recognized in the $ of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized.
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as at 31 March 2021

1B Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1B6  Imangible aysels
Measurement at recognition:

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and acenmulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a
straight line basis over their cstimated useful lives, The amortisation period and the arortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the
expected useful life of the asset is significamly different from previous estimates, the amortisati peried 15 changed accordingly.

The camying value of these intangible asscts is reviewed at beast annually for impairment and adjusted 1o the recoverable amount if required.

(i} Goodwill

Goodwill acquired on busi combination is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if°
events or in cirg indi that it might be impaited, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment fosses, Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units for the purpose of inpairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or Groups of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units ar Groups of units are identified at the lowest level 3t which Goodwill is monitored for
intenal management purpases, which in our case are the operating segments.

h

(it) Other Intangible Assets
Intangible asscts, including computer software are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Amortisation methods and periods:

Assets ' Estimated useful Life
(in years)
Software
Derecognition:
The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecogaized on dispasal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal The gain or loss
arising from the Dy gnition of an gible asset is d as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset

and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

1B.7  Impairment of assets
Non-financial Assels are tested for impainnent whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Management

periodically using, Iand internal sources, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired,

For the purpose of impairment testing, Goodwill acquired in a business combination, is from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash
generating units (CGUs) that are expected o benefit from the combination. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that arc
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. Each CGL) or a combination of CGUs to which goodwill is so allocated represents the
lowest level at which Goodwill 1s monitored for internal management purpose and it is not larger than an operating segment of the Company

The recoverable amount is higher of the assel's net selling price or value in use, which mcans the present value of future cash flows evpected to arige from the
continung use of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an Asset is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an evemt
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of an asset is increased to its revised frecoverable amount, provided that this amount does
not exceed the camying amount that woudd have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impainnent loss been recognized for

the Asset in prior years

IB8  Financiol instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial Asset of one of' the entity and a financial Liability or equily instrument of another entity, Financial

Assets and Liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the mstrument

Financial assers:
Classification and recog

= Financial assers at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at amortised cost 1f these financial assets are held within a business whose objective 15 to hold these assets to collect contractual cash

the contractual terms of the financial assets Bive rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

t ding. interest income from those financial asset is included as a part of the company’s income in the Statement of Profit & Loss using the effective

& &. Jma 2

) x5
Q" janFedt, .
1. & ass . ai foir value through profit or loss
cenl:esﬁwu] assc are easured at fair value through profit or loss unless they arc measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on
stefh mmtw " . ciransaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asscts and liabilitics a1 fair value through profit or loss are immediately
e Gor [in 8 tof profit and loss.
il 400 063
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements

IB
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Significant ing policies (Continued)
Financial instrumems (Continued)

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Fi ial assets are d at fair value through other comprehensive income if the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achicved by both

collecting contractual cash flow and selling financial assots and the coniractual terms of the financial assets give rise on a specified date to cash fows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amounts outstanding,

= Invesiment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary(ies) are measured at cost less impairment,

De-recognition

A financial asset is derecognized when the right to receive the contractual cash flow is expired or cancelled or the nature of such assets changes that it is no longer a
financial instrument.

Impairtment of fnancial assets :
The company assess at each date of Balance Sheet whether a financial assets or group of financial assets is impaired. In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company

applics expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impainment loss on the financial assets and credit risk exposure:

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on

lifetime ECLs at each reponting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impainnent loss on other financial assets and risk expo;u:c. the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit cisk since initial recognition. If eredit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since iitial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL,

Financial liabilities:

Classificarion amd recognition

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such
liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, payables, or as derivatves designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initialiy at fair value and, in the case payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank overdrafis, lease liabilities and detivative financial instruments.

Derecognition ;

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligntion under the ligbility is discharged or ¢ lied or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on snbstantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original lisbility and the recogrition of a new liability. The difference in the respective camying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or Joss.

Offsatting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilitics are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offsct the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to scttie on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simuitancously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future cvents and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty,

Derivative financial instnimente

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign exchange risks. For contracts
where hedge accounting is not followed, such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract 15
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value through profit or loss account,

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valustion techniques that are used to measure fair valuc that are either observable or ungbservable and consists of the
foliowing three levels:

Level I Inputs are quoted prices (wnadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs arc other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or iiability, cither directly (i.c. as prices) or indircctly (i.c.
derived from prices).

Level 3 Inputs are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on
assumptions that arc neither suppoerted by prices from observable current market tr ions in the same i nor are they based on available market data,

14th Floor,

iment 1s a that evid idual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instr recognised by
gnised at the proceeds received net off direct issue cost.




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements

as at 3! March 2021

1B Significant ing policies (Continued)

1BS  Provisions and Contingent liabifities
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an cutitow of’
sconomic benefits will be required to seule the obligation, Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet daie. The provisions are d on an undisc d basis.
Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, htiganon, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. arc recognised when it is prabable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount can be estimated reltably
A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of
resources, or a present obligation whose amount camnot be estimated relizbly. Contingent Habilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed, unless the
possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are ncither recogmised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingenl assets are assessed continually and if it is viruaily certain
that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

IB.10  Revenue recognition
Revenue is d based on ion price, which is the consideration paid for services. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects 1o reccive in exchange for those services. Revenue from rendering of services 15
net of Indirect taxes and discounts.
income from operation
The Company cams revenue from travel and related services, financial services.
- Fravel and related services comprises of leisure tours packages within India and outside India along with travel related services viz travel insurance and visa
services. Revenue on leisure tours  holiday's packages are recognized on the completion of the performance obligation which is on the date of departure of the tour.
It also includes income from the sale of airline tickets is recognized as an agent on the basis of net commission earned, at the time of issuance of tickets, as the
Company does not assume any perfonmance obligation post the confirmation of the issuance of an airline ticket {o the customer. Performance linked bonuses from
airlines are recognized as and when the performance obligations under the schemes are achieved.
- Financial Services comprise of income arising from the buying and selling of foreign currencies on the net marging earmed, commissions on sale of foreign
currency denominated prepaid cards and agency commissions from MoneyGram and Xpr 'y on Y remi Revenue from financial services are
recognized by reference to the time of services rendered.
Contract balances

a)  Contract essets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services rendered to the customer. if the Company performs by rendering services 1o a customer before
the pays consideration or before payment is du, a contract asset is recognised for the earncd consideration that is conditional,
b) Coniract lisbilities

A contract lizbility is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has reccived consideration from the Ifa pays
consideration before the Company renders services 10 the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, Contract {iabilitics are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

1B.I1  Cost recognition
Costs and expenses are recognised when incurred and have boon classificd sucnding w thein primary nature. The costs of the company are broadly categorised in
etnployee benefit expenses, depreciation and amortisation and other operating expenses. Employee benefit exp include employec compensation, allowances
paid, contribution to various funds and staff welfare exp Other operating exp majorly include sub-contractor charges, rent, recruitment and iraining
expenses, travelling and conveyance, legal and professional fees and communication expenses.

IB.12  [leases
As a fessee

A

v

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to contro! the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether;

(1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

{2) the Company has substantially all of the cconomic bencfits from use of the asset throughout the period of the Icase and

{3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initiafly measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the Icase liability adjusted for any lease payments made at ot before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

-use asset is depreciated using the siraight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or

1 cr@%t term, The estimated useful lives of right-of-use asscts are defermined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.
1ght-of subsequemly measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any and adjusted for any emient of the Jease
LikifgRo".

Central Wing. Tower 4,

FhmdPendiabili  is i ° ally measured at the present vaiue of the lcase payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate

Westgpblicts HGY or,  that rate cannot be readily determined, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases,

GMegaon (tast),
MuTpai - 400 063
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements

1B
1B.12

1B.13

iB.14

Significant accounting policies {Continued)
Leases (Continued}

Lease payments included in the measuremeni of the lease liability comprise the following:

Fixed payments;

Variable lease payments;

The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewsl period if the company is
reasonably certain (o exercise an extension option, and penalties for carly termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably cenain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, It is remeasured when there is & change in future lease payments arising from a
change in terms of the contract, if there is & change in the company’s esti of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, When the lease
hability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Shart-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recopnise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months and leases for which the
underlying asset is of low valuc. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

The Company iease asset classes primarily consist of leasehold improvement.
As 8 lessor

A lease for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease at the inception of lease. When the terms of the lease transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a kessor is recognised as income on a stratght-line basis over the lease term

Business combination

‘The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all busi combinations, regardless of whether Equity instruments or other assets ane acquired. The
consideration {ransferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises of:

. fair values of the Assets transferred;

. liabilities incurred 10 the former owners of the acquired business;

. equity interests issued by the Company; and

. fair value of any assct or liability resulting from a ingent considerati gement,

Identifiable Assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities d in a busi bination are, with limited exceptions, o d initially at thew fair

values at the acquisition date. The Company recognises any non-controtling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquired entity's net identifiable assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

. consideration transferred;

. amount of any non-controlling interest in the scquired entity, and

. acquisition~date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill.

If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is accurnulated in Equity as capital reserve.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Far the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial imstitutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original iatwitics of thew months or less that are readily converuble to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insipnificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts,

To be classified as cash and cash equivalents, the financial asset must
beveadily convertible into cash;
@ cam risk of changes in value; and
St iod of three months or less at acquisition.
, Cash and Cash Equivalents includes Cash on Hand, Cheques/Drafts on Hand, Remittances in Transit, Balances with Bank held in Current
eposils with maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafis are repayable on demand and form an integral part of an entity's cash
s‘- ed as a component of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdrafls are shown within barrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet,




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as at 31 March 2021

1B Sigaificant ing policies (Continued)

1B.15 FEmplayee benefits :

(a} Short-term cuployee benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the
amount expected to be paid, ¢.g. salanes, short term bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 10 pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee, and the amount can be estimated reliably.

(b) Post-cmployment bencfits:
Defined contribution plan :

The Company's provident fund contribution paid / pnyable under the recognised provident fund scheme and the employees' state insurance contribution is
gniscd as an exp in the S of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plan :

Gratuity :

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan, The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating,
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their services in the current and prior periods. These benefits are discounted to determine its
present value, and the fair value of any plan asscts is deducted therefrom.

Contribution to Gratuity is based on the requirement of the trust with whom the Company maintains the fund balance. The Company's liability is actuariatly
determined (using the Projected Unit Credit Method) at the end of each year. The of net i p Jeulated by applying the liability discount rate to
the net defined benefit liability or assets is charged or credited in the statement of profit and loss. Any differences between the interest income on plan assets and the
vetum actually achicved, and any changes in the linbilites over the year dne to changes in actuarail assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are
recognised immediately in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and subsequently not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation bry an independent actnary at cach Balance Sheet
date, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise (o an additional unit of cmpl benefit entil and

es each unit scf ly to build up the final obligation, The cbligations are measured at the present value of the estimated fature cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of the obligations under the defined benefit plen are based on the market yields on government bonds as at the balance
sheet date. When the calculation resnlis in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognised actuarial losses and past
servaee costs and the present value of any fiture refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan,

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises actuariat gains and losses, the retum on plan assets {excluding interest) and the effect of asset
ceiling (if any) are recognized in OCI. The Company d ines the net i P (income) on the net defined benefit linbility (2sset) for the period by
applying the discount rate uscd to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit liability {asset) taking
into account amy changes in the net defined benefit liability {asset) during the period as a resuli of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit and loss.

{c} Compensated absences :

As per the leave policy of the company employees are entitled to svail 30 days of ieave during a calendar year, any carry forward or encashment of the unutilized
leave balance is not allowed. At reporting date, liability pertaining to comp d absences is calculated based an total leave balances of cach cmployee.
{d) Employee stock options ;

The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards ~ i.e. stock options  granted to employees is recognised as personnel expenses, with a corresponding
increase in Fapity, aver the perind in which the empleyees beeomo entitled to the awards. The amount tecugnised ds an expense is adjusted to retlect the anmber ot
awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ulti ly recognised as an exp is
based on the number of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

I1B.16  Foreign currency transactions :
Forcign currency transactions are recorded into Indian rupee using the exchange rates prevaihing on the date of the respective ions. Exchange difference
arising on foreign currency transactions, between the actual rate of settiement and the rate on the date of the transactions, is charged or credited to the Statement of
profit and loss,
Monetary assets and liabilitics d inated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date
rali net cxchange gain or loss on such conversion, if any, is credited / charged to the Statement of profit and loss, Non monetary assets are recorded at
celﬁ "'ng on the date of the transactions. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carricd at historical cost. A foreign currency monetary item is
Q_ I,gn/& if it has original maturity of one year or more,
4e} 41 Floot,
Cente igol derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign exchange coniracts, to hedge its forcign curency risks. Such derivative financial
astulens a&ca' itially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is cntered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value, with
wgs\%‘i#mr b Ue T ised in Statement of Profit and Loss, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities

al cis e!gau'vc.
06 065
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as af 31 March 2021

1B Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1B.17  income [axes:
Income tax expense comprises cwrent and deferred 1ax. It 1s recogmsed in Profit of Loss except to the extent that it relaies 10 a business combination, or items
recognised directly in equity or in OCE

Current income tax:
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or reccivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect
of previous years, It is measured using tax rates ar wvely d at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

A N

Current tax Assets and Liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
a)  hasa legally enforceable right 1o set off the recognised amounts; and
b) intends either to scitle on a net basis, or 1o realise the asset and settle the liability simulranecusly.

Deferred income tax:
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts

used for taxation purposcs. Deferred tax is not recognised for:
*  temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or lisbilitics in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor

taxable profit or loss:
. y diff relaied to inv in subsidianics and igtes to the extent that the Company’s is able to control the timing of the reversal of the

'y

temporary differences and it is probabie that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
*  taxable temporary differences anising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future 1axable
profits will be avaiiable against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting datc and are reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxabie profits will be
availabie against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates
at the reporting date.

The measurcent of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company’s expects, at the reporting date, to recover
or settle the camrying amount of its assets and liahilitics.

q

or suk ively

1B.18 Earmings per share (EPSY ;
Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average ber of Equity and dilutive Equity equivalent shares outstnding during the
period except where the results would be anti-dilutive. The dilutive potential Equity shares are deemed to be converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they
have been issued at a later date,

IB.19  Recers Ac ing Pro 1S -
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide notification dated March 24, 2021 has amended Scheduie 111 of the Companies Act, 2013, which shall be effective from
April 1. 2021. Key amendments relating to Division Il which refate to companies whose financial ctatements ara required to comply with Cumpanies (ladian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet :

* Ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress in specified format.

* Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities®, duly distinguished as current or non-current.

= Certain additional disc} in the of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period etrors and restated balances at the
beginning of the current reporting period,

*If TEppaIRigs not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions, then disclasure of details of where it has

A
QA . Sfﬁ'b%?. i (o’gue

der *additional regulatory requirement” such as compliance with approved schemes of' arrangements, compliance with number of layers of

tsyditle  ceds\bf immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances o promoters, directors, key managerial persome! (KMP) and
Cenli}g pastics, de "ls of{ benami property held, disclosure relating to ratios ctc.
rpss HighwaY.

L o {east.
\ S pembai - 400 083
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as at 31 March 2021

1B Significant ing poficies (Continued)
1B.19  Recent Acc ing Pr cements -(contimued)

Enhanced disclosure for borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets such as agreement of quarterly retums or statements
of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions with books of accounts and if not, summary of reconciliation and reason of material
discrepancies, if any.

Statement of profit and loss:

+ Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and erypto or vinual currency specificd under the head “additional
information” in the notes forming part of financial statements.

The Company is in the process of evalusting the above amendments.

1C Guing Concern and Impact of COVID-19:

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic. Responding to the potentially serious threat of the pandemic, the
Indian Government has taken a series of measures to contain the owtbreak, which included imposing ‘lock-downs” across the country which is extended from time to
time, The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various aclivities due to COVID-19 pandemic have posed challenges to all the busi of the Company
Lockdewn guidelines issned by Central/State gov daled ion of air traffic and other forms of public transport as well as closute of hotel operations,
With the lifting of the partial lockdown restrictions, the Company has started re-opening it’s branches and other establishments. The Company expecis all the
operations becoming normal in & phased manner after the lockdown is lified and the confidence of corporates / travelers is restored. The Company expects the
demand for its services 1o pick up albeit at a slower pace once lockdown is lifted. The Company has assessed the impact of COVID-19 on the carrying amount of its
assets and revenue recognition. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible fiture uncertainties, the Company, as on date of approval of these financial

has used i I and external sources of information to the extent available. The Company, based on cucrent estimates and information, expect the
carrying amount of these assets to be recovered. The Company has assessed the impact for existing and anticipated effects of COVID-19 on the fitture cash flow
projections on the basis of significant assumptions as per the available information. The Company has comforiable liquidity position to meet 1ts commitiments and 1
addition the funds are expected 10 be generated from the operating activities. The Company has undertaken various cost saving initiatives to maximise operating cash
flows and conserve cash position in the given situation. Based on aforesaid assessmeni management believes that as per, estimates made conservatvely, the
y will continue as a going concem. The Company continues to monitor any material changes to its COVID-19 impact assessment, resulting from the fisire

2 négonditions and future uncertainty, if any.

14
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note-2 Property, plant and equipment

Comp 1 hold Furniture and .
hardware  Improvements Fixtures Office Equipment Total
Gross Block Amount Amount Amount A A
As at 1 Apnil 2020 521.05 11288 7734 163.64 374,91
Additions duning the year 27.40 31.06 10,70 29.62 98,78
Disposals during the year 136 36.24 373 555 T4.88
Gross carrying value as of 31 March 2021 547.09 107.70 56.31 187.71 898.81
A lated depreciation as of 1 April 2020 42232 59.13 43.30 109.04 633.79
Depreciation charge during the year 7738 20.92 12.91 40.80 152.01
Deduction on disposals during the year 1.36 36.24 29,18 5.54 72.32
Accumulated depreciation as of 31 March 2021 498.34 43.81 27.03 14430 713,48
Carrying vslue 25 of 31 March 2021 48.75 63.89 19.28 43.41 185,33
AEECEE —— ==_
Gross Block Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
As at 1 April 2019 491,21 68.23 611 108.74 728.29
Additions during the year 5642 47.36 22.84 57.81 184.43
Disposals during the year 26.58 27 5.61 291 3131
Gross carrying value as of 31 March 2020 521.05 112.38 77.34 163.64 874.91
Acc lated depreciation a5 of 1 April 2019 314,92 49.75 38.65 77.51 480.83
Depreciation charge during the year 133.80 12.09 10.26 34.43 190.58
Deduction on disposals during the year 26,40 27 5.61 290 37.62
Accumulated depreciation as of 31 March 2020 422,32 59.13 43.30 109.04 633.79
Carrying value as of 31 March 2020 98.73 53.75 34.04 54.60 241.12
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note-2.1 Right of use Asscts Amount in Rs Amount in Rs
" Bulinas 2 Buildings
Gross carrying value as at begaining 4,084.94 -
Additions Ind AS116 Transition adjustment - 1,901.72
Additions during the year 21990 2,597.09
Disposals during the year 2,261.48 413.87
Gross carrying value 2s at year end 2,043.36 4,084.94
Accumula tion as at begaining 792.02 -
Amo _ oncllaigsd theyear 67937 798.68
% ) \c year 456.96 6.66
llatd'd‘im%ieurn‘f ne nt year end 1,004.43 oL
Geoatral Wing, TOWED S,
i 1,028.93 3,292.92
=

et al realad! s "Z rend
Wegmn Express Highway. }
tegagn (East}.
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note-2.1 Lease liabilites

31 March 202) arch 2020
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year Amount Amount
Balance as at begaining 341775 -
On account of Transition to Ind AS 116 - 1,901 72
Additions 219.90 2,597.09
Disposal (1,948.79) (407.21)
Interest on lease liabilities 202,76 185,73
Payment of lease liabiliues (649.82) (859.58)
Lease rent waiver {102.81) -
Balance as at year end 1,139,00 3417.75
Classification as
Non current 821.13 274193
Current 317.86 675.82
1,139.00 3417.75
Note: - Below are the contractual maturinies of lease liabilines as of March 31, 2021 on an undiscounted basis:
Less than one year 398.26 87794
Between one and five years 87735 2,915.68
More than five years 99.69 262.39
1,375.30 4,056.01
Renmtal expense recognised for short-term leases for the year ended 303.62 543,86
Rental expense recognised for low value leases (other than short term as disclosed above) for the year ended - -
Expenses related to short team Jeases and low value leases 303.62 543.86
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Lease under IND AS 116
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 29) 202.76 185.73
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 679.37 798.68
382.13 984.41
Amount recognized in Statement of Cash Flow
Repayment of Lease liabilities-Principal amount 447.06 673.85
Repayment of Lease liabilitics-Interest amount 202.76 185,73
649,82 359.58
Extension vptions
The lease contracts of the company contain extension/ | aptions which are exercisable only by the Company and not by the lessors. The Company includes in its

! termn, then the lease rentals will

lease term such extension/rencwal options that the Company is reasonably certain o exercise. If the lease is extended beyond the
be mutually agreed between the panies bascd on the fiir value of lease rent at the time of extension.

& Co,

cial year the company has taken action to sumrender vacate some lease before completion of tenure as ioned in lease Agr The
QR hgge in books of accounts and difference of Rs. 144.27 lakhs between ROU asset Rs 1,637.66 Jakhs & ROU Liability Rs 1,781.93 lakhs s on date
{n ’ i ized as profit or loss on retirement of lease in the statement for profit and loss. Further, impact of the same has been considered in Lease
lexpROU on 31st March 2021
WelRarn Express Highway.
regaon (East).

Mymbai - 400 063
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

{All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note-2.3 Intangibles
Computer

Goodwill Software Total

Amount Amount Amount
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2020 268.50 473.03 741.53
Additions during the year - 54.15 54.15
Disposals duning the year -
Gross carrying value as 8t 31 March 2021 268.50 527.18 795.67
Accumulated amortization as at 1 April 2020 - 405.37 405,37
Amortization charge during the year - 53.58 53.58
Deduction on disposals during the year -
Acc lated amortization as at 31 March 2021 - 458.96 458.96
Net Carryiog vaiue as at 31 March 2021 268.50 68.22 336.72
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2019 268.50 389.66 658.16
Additions during the year - 83.37 83.37
Disposals during the year - -
Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2020 268,50 473.03 741.53
Accumulated amortization as at 1 April 2019 - 330.82 330.82
Amortization charge during the year 74.55 7455
Deduction on disposals during the year -
A lated amortization as 2t 31 March 2020 - 405.37 405.37
Net Carrying value as at 31 March 2020 268.50 67.66 336 16
Intangible assets (sofiware)
There are no intemally generated / developed software.
Nature of Goodwill
Goodwill recognised on the acquisition of the residual business of Kuomns Business Travel.
Impairment testing of Goodwill
Far the purposcs of impairment testing, Goodwill has been allocated as follows.

Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Acquisition of the business wravei division 268.90 268.50
268.50 268.50

The recoverable amount was based on fair value less costs of disposal, estimated using discounted cash flows, The fair value measurement was categorised as & Level 3 fur
value based on inputs in the valuation technique used,

"The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below. The valnes assigned 1o the key assumptions represent management's assessment of
future trends in the relevant industries and have been based on historical data from both extemnal and internal SOUTCEes.

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
) annum 7.55% £.20%
e&u@ Glue rate per annin . 5% 5%
rte (average of next 2 years) per annum 5% 5%

<
Q14 koo
c‘,_m djpepdordid i post  measure estimated based on the historical industry average weighted-average cost of capital, with the possible no debt leveraging and intemal

rajpofrdaitof 75 4 xunately,

Weglern Express Highwa.
ﬁ}flm aiable  unt  Goodwill has been caleulated using the discounted cash flow method.
Mumbai(‘{u 063
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SOTC Travet Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
arat 31 March 2021
(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3

Investments

AT ts in subsidiary company

I. Investments in Equity Shares at amortised cost{ unquoted)

2,108,000 (31 March 2020: 2,108,000) equity shares of USD | each, fully paid-up, of Travel Circle
International (Mauritius) Limited.

IL Investments in preference shares at amortised cost { unguoted)
11,600,000 (31 March 2020; I1,600,000) 6% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
of USD 1 each, fully paid-up, of Travel Circle International (Mauritius) Limited.

Less ; Impairment loss

Aggregate book value of unquoted non-current investments

Extent of equity interest in subsidiary:
Travel Circle Intemational (Mauritius) Limited

Note 4
Loans (non—current)
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Loan to related parties [refer Note 38)
Seeurity deposits

Considered good

Credit impaired

Less : Loss allowance

Note 5
Other fingncial assets (non-corrent)
{(Unsecured)

Fixed deposit accounts with original maturity more than twelve months*
*All the above FD are lien against margin money deposits.

Nate 6
Income taxes
A. The major P of i tax exp are as under:

(i) Income tax recognised in statement of Profit and Loss
Current fax

In respect of corrent year

Changes in estimates related to previous year

Deferred tax
Increase in deferred tax assets

tncome Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

(ii) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax on of defined benefit plans

L 4

I tax ised in OC1

(2

B. Reconciliation of tax exp and the ing profit for the year is as under :

Loss before tax
Tax nsing the Company’s domestic tax rate (current year 34.94% and previous Year 34.94%)

Tax cifect of:
Non-dedu ~ le tax expenses

\mﬁe
e&?\tu on MAT credit catitlement
P

Ath Flool
2 otal g, TOWET 4.
ed 12 peco i in Other Comprehensive Income

&I‘ﬁﬁmﬂ@!ﬁ 8¢ tement of Profit and Loss

oregaon (E2st),
ambai - 4p0 063

*

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amount Amount
1,360,83 1,360.83
1,360.83 1,360,83
7.488.45 7,488.45
7,488.45 7.488.45
8,349.28 8,849.28
5,849.28 8.849.28
8,849.28 8,849.28
51% 31%
- 550.39
426,92 460,77
8.60 5547
435.52 516.24
{8.60) {35.47)
426.92 460.77
426.92 1,011.16
181.14 171.56
181.14 171.56
{2,720.66) (531.03)
{2,720.66) (331.03)
(20.09) (16.91)
(20.09) (16.51)
(7.794.83) {1.418.24)
(2,723.82) (495.59)
3.16 {35.44)
{2,720.66) (531.03)
(20.09) (16.91)
{2,740.75) (547,94)




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 Meorch 2021
(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note &
Tocome taxes (Continued)

C. The major components of deferved tax (liabilities)/assets arising on account of timing differences are as follows:

Balance ason  Recognised in Recognised Net Balance a3 on
31 March 2020  profit or foss in OCI 31 March 2021
Deferved tax Asset/(Liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment 12289 9.62 132.50
Employee benefits 252.75 (11.76) (20.09) 220.99
Tax losses 1,123.34 2,755.58 3,878.93
Provisions 453.05 (IL31) 41,74
Other items 42.93 (21.47) 21.46
Deferred tax Assets /(Liabilities) 1,994.96 2,720.66 (20.09) 4,695.53
Balance as on Recognised in Recognised Net Balance as on
31 March 2019 profit or loss in OCI 31 March 2020
Deferred tax Asset/(Liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment 50.00 7289 122,89
Employee benefits 35351 (93.45) {16.91} 25275
Tax losses 52011 603.23 1,123.34
Provisions 482.40 (29.35) 453.05
Other items. 6521 (22.28) 42,93
Deferred tax Assets /(Liabilities) 1,430.83 531.04 {16.91} 1,994.96
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amount Amount
D. Deferred tax vefecied in bal: sheet as foll
Deferred tax Assets 4,605.53 1.994.96
Deferred tax Liabilities - -
Deferred tax Assets (net} 4,695.53 1,994.96
Note 7
Income tax Asset
Advance tax (net of provision of Tax) 1,637.16 4,108.39
1,637.16 4,108,39
Note 8 ;
Current Investments
pi in mutual funds (g d)
{Carried at fair vatue through profit or loss)
Nil (31 March 2020: 93,921.78) units of Kotak Liquid Scheme-Growth Option-Direct Plan at each Nil - 1,001,08
(31 March 2020: Rs1,065.86)
Nil (31 March 2020: 30,768.45) units of SBI Premicr Liquid Fund - Growth Option - Direct Plan at - 1,001.12
each Nil (31 March 2020: Rs 3,253.72)
Nil (31 March 2020: 13,511 3) untts of HDFC [iquid Fund - Growth Plan - Direct Plan ot cach Nil - 40117
(31 March 2020: Rs 2,969.12)
Nil (31 March 2020: 929,141.78) units of ICICI Prudential Liquid -Direct -Growth at each Nil (31 - 1,001.14
March 2020:Rs 107.75)
Nil (31 March 2020: 99,592.43) units of ABSL Money Manager Fund - Growth-Direct Plan a1 Nil - 703.84
(31 March 2020: Rs 1,080.24)
- 4,108.35
- 4,108.35

ts and market value thereof




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
asat 31 March 2027
(Al amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 9

Trade receivables

Trade receivables considered good - secured

Trade receivables considered good - ed

Trade reccivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables credit impaired

Less :- Impainment Joss allowance

Trade and other receivables includes :
Dues from related parties - considered good [refer Note 38]

Movement in expected credit foss allowance on trade receivables

Balance at the beginning of the year
Addition dunng the period

Changes in loss allowance doring the year
Balance at the end of the year

Note 10
Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks :
in current accownt
Cash on hand

Note 11
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Short term deposits (Original maturity more than 3 months and less than 12 months)

Deposit balances (including those disclosed under other financial assets

2020: Rs 214.87).

Note 12
Loans

Unsecured, considered good carried at amortised cost except etherwise stated

Loan to related partics [refer Note 38]

Security deposits
Considered good
Credit impaired

Less :- Loss allowance

Note 13
Other financial Assets (current)
{Unsecured )

Other receivables
Censidered good
Credit impaired

Less :- Loss allowance

& Co. QD

s aramed but 1 duq\un Ioan to related panty

Legi]
pempédbiitho duc bu fixed deposits with banks

vesfingiRfial

West  Express Highway
Go gaon {Easl.

pumbai - 400 063

*

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Amount Amount
1,179.21 5,662,54
636.41 734.95
1,815.62 6,397.49
{636.41) {734.95)
1,179.21 5,662.54
294,75 1.540,32
734.95 994.23
(98.53) {259.28)
636.41 734.95
3,763.13 2,556.30
20.84 61.55
3,783.97 2,617,85
4639 43,30
46,39 43.30

{non-current) in Note 5} include fixed deposits under lien aggregating to Rs 227.53(31 March

5,193.99 550.39
89030 2,091.59
406.90 300,22

1,297.20 2.391.81
(496.90) {300.22)
$90.30 2,091.59

6,084.29 264198
102.94 2,014.95

69.12 61.63
172,06 2.076.59
(69.12) {61.63)
102,94 2,014.95

85,76 155.80
129.48 7.83

0.49 1.96

99.51 -

41817 218054




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
asat 37 March 2021
{All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note 14 Amount Amount
Other current Assets
Prepaid expenses 154.08 119.32
Balances with government Authorities 1,305.25 694.78
(Net of provision of GST recoverable Rs. 776.28 for March 2021 and Rs. 2,210.63 for March 2020)
Advance to vendors
Considered good 1,631.66 5,587.84
Credit impaired 45.79 45,79
1,677.45 5,633.63
Less :- Loss allowance (45.79) {45.79)
1,631.66 5,587.84
SiafTf advance
Considered good 24,01 244.52
Credit impaired 97.32 9845
i21.34 34297
Less :- Loss allowance {97.32) (98.45)
24.01 244.52
3,115.00 6,646.46
Advance to vendors includes ;
Advance to related party - Unsecured, Considered good frefer note 38] 57.09 17.830
Note 15
Equity Share Capitat
Authorised :
10,000 (31 March 2020: 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each. 1.00 100
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
10,000 (31 March 2020 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up. 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
A. Reconciliation of ber of sh ling at the beginning and end of the year :
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of face valee of Rs 10 each, fatly paid-up
At the commencement of the year 10,000 1,60 10,600 i.00
Addition during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

B. Rights , preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares
Equity shares of face vaiue of Rs 10 each fully paid-up

The Company has a single class of Equity Shares having face value of Rs 10 cach. Accordingly, Equity Shares shall rank pari passu with regerd to dividends and share in
the Company's residual assets after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The equity sharcholders are entitled 1o receive dividend as declared from time to
time The voting riphte of an Fauity $hareholder are in propartion to ito share of the paid up equily capital of U Company, Voling tighis vt be cacicised T sespect
of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares wiil be entitled 1o receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after diswibution of all preferential
amounts in proportion 1o the number of Equity Shares held by them.

C. Shares held by Holding Company / Ultimate Holding Company / Subsidiaries of Holding Company

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fislly paid-up held by:
“Thomas Cook {India) Limited (‘Holding Company’) including its nominees 10,080 1.06 10,000 1.00
10,000 1.60 10.000 1.00
—
D. Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares:
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
& C 0. Mo, of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
s o ({ each, fully paid-up, held by:
141h Floal,
Geekqutting L1 “ted (Holding Company') 10,000 100 10,000 10¢
Nesco Cented,

mﬁq)ﬂﬁi‘?‘ﬁ%?ﬁ’? red issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
Gosegaon (E3sH.
Mumbai - 4010 063

zm

*




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021
(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amount Amount

Note 16
Other Equity
Optionally Convertible Non -Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 8,600.00 B8.600.00
Retained eamings (7,373.98) (2,299.81)
Capital reserve arising out of Amalgamation 638.04 638.04
Capital Redempiton Reserve 1,400.00 1,400.00
Other Comprehensive Income 58.25 18.76
Employce share option outstanding account 884,90 725.63

4,207.22 9,082.62
Notes:-
(i) Optionally Convertible Non -Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
Authorised :
160,000,000 (31 March 2020: 100,000,000} 0.01% Optionally Convertible Non -
Cumuistive Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 sach. 10,000.00
lssued, subscribved and fully paid up:
86,000,000 (31 March 2020: 86,000,000) 0.01% Cptionally Convertible Non -
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 10 each,

8,600.00 8,600.00

§,600.00 8,600.00
A. Reconciliation of ber of shares ding at the beginning and end of the year :

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

0.01% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- cach, fully paid-up
Opening 860.00 8,600.00 260.00 8,600.00
Redemption during the year - - - -
Cutstanding at the end of the year 860.00 8,600.00 260.00 8,600.00

B. Rights , preferences and restrictions attached to equity and preference shares
0.01% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of &s. 10/~ each, fully paid-up (Preference Shares)

The Company has a single class of preference shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. These preference shares are issued in consideration of the slamp exchange of
Cutbound Business Division of SOTC Travel Services Private Limited to the Company as contemplated in the Composite Scheme of arrangement and amalgamation,
The Company has issued 10,00,00,000 0.01% Opticnally Convertible Non-Cumnulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/- cach to Travel Corporation {India)
Limited, as the residual of SOTC Travel Scrvices Private Limited (i e. post segregation of Outbound Business Division) is amalgamated into Travel Corporation (India)
Limited, Prefi shares ding at the end of 20 years 1.c. 31 July 2037, shall be converted into equity shares as per the conversion ratio of | preference shares of
Rs. 10/~ each into one equity share of Rs, [0/~ cach. The holders of these shares are entitled 1o Non-Cumulative dividend of 0 01% Preference shares cary A preferential
right as to dividend over equity shareholders. where dividend is not declared in respect of a financial year in the case of Non-Cumulative Preference Shares, the
entitlement for that year lapses. In the event of winding up, preference shareholders have a preferential right over equity sharcholders to be repad to the extent of capital
paid-up and dividend in arrears on such shares. The Company has an opticn to convert the preference shares or redeem the preference shares at any time after the end of
I year from the date of allotment.

C. Shares held by Holding Company / Ultimate Holding Company / Subsidiaries of Holding Company

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of shares Amount No. of shares A

0.01% Optionally Convertible Noo-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid-up by:
*Themas Cook {India} Limited (w.c.f . 25 November 2019) 360.00 8,600.00 850.00 8.600.00

860.00 8,600.00 864.00 8.600.00
*Pursuant to the Nalional Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Order dated 10th October 2019, the Composite Scheme of Amang & Amal ion amengst TC Forex
Servi imjled [TCF} and Travel Corporation (India) Limited {TCI] and TC Travel Services Limited [TCTSL] and SOTC Travel Management Private Limited {SOTC

Cook (India} Limited {TCIL] and Quess Corp Limited and their respective shareholders (the Scheme) has become effective from 25th November,
“Scheme/arrangement, the Inbound Business of TCI has demerged into SOTC TRAVEL and the residual business of TCI has been merged, along
v owned subsidiarics viz TCTSL and TCF, with TCIL. TCI ceased to exist w.c.f. 25th November, 2019 and residual business of TCl has been merged



SOTC Travel Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

as af 3 March 2024
(Al amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

B. Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
0.01% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid-up by:
Thomas Cook (India) Limited 260.00 100.00 860,00 160.00

E. Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date;
100,000,000, 0,01% Non-Cumuiative Gptionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs, 10/- each, werc issued by the Company pursuant to the composite
h of and amalgamation in the Fi ial year ended 2017-2018

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amount Amount

il. Capital Reserve

Opening Balance 638.04 53804
Closing Balance 638.04 638.04
Nature and Purpose of Reserves:-
The reserve created pursuant to Composite Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamanon,
iit. Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance 1,400,00 1,400.00
Closing Balance 1,400,080 1,400,00
Nature and Purpose of Reserves:-
The reserve created out of profits in event of redemption of Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares.
iv. Retained Earnings
Opening Balance (2,299.81) (1,412.60)
Add : Net Loss for the year (5,074.17) (887.21)
Closing Balance (7,373.98) (2,299.81)
v. Other comprehensive income
Opening Balance 18.75 (12.73)
Add : Other Comprehensive Income/{loss) for the year, net of tax 39.50 31.48
Closing Balance 58.25 18.75
vi. Employee Share Option Qutstanding Account {refer Note 37
Opening Balance 71664 13227
Add : Charge for the year [refer Note 37] 159.26 293.37
Closin 884,90 725.64
& O
S B

mlm esta ‘sh equity-scttied share-based payment plans for certain categories of employees of the Company The shares of the holding Company are

i ",';“Nﬂlf ESOPSc eme  the employees of the Company.
£o Centes.
\es on lE'éS“-

3
e - 400 063
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 3 March 2021
(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

Note 17
O¢her financial liabilities

Lease lisbilities [refer Note 2.2)

Note 18

Provisions

Provision for employee benefits - (mon current)
Provision for Gratuity [refer Note 36)

Note 19

Borrowings

Bank Overdraft use for Cash Manag, purpose- ed repayabie on demand
Working capital demand loan-unsecured repayable on demand

Note 20

Trade payables

Total owstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises [refer Note 33]

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and Small enterprises ( Includes book overdrafl Rs 172 J14)

Note 21

Other financial lizbilities (¢urrent)
Security deposits

Lease laabilities [refer Note 2,2]
Current maturities of long term debts
Others

Note 22
Provisions
Pravision for employec benefits - current

Accrued salary and benefits
Compensated absences [refer Note 36}

Note 23
Othe i
'-‘E!‘ceﬁg i vmnce
% &W Qmers
cesagimgove t uthorities
niral WG, Tower 4,
Nesco Genter.
m Express Yighaty
Goregaon {gast.
Mumbai - 4

W

*

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Amount Amount
82113 2,741.93
821.13 2,741.93
373.61 359.61
373.61 359.61

2,257.34 2,673.26
150.00 -
2,407.34 2,673,26
0,84 -
12,921.15 14,058.07
12,922.00 14,058.07
262.88 27113
317.86 675,82
- 900.00
5.32 20.19
586.06 1,867.14
406.81 504.41
5522 -
462,03 504.41
293.91 517.69
9,600.00 11,765.87
193.78 334.97
10,187.66 12,618.53




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 24
Revenue from operations
Travel and related Services

Total Revenue from operations

Other operating revenue
Marketing fees and other incentive income

Unclaimed credit balances no longer required, wntten back
Other miscellaneous operating income

IND AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

i) Details of revenue from contracts with customers recognised by the Company, net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss

Revenue from contract with customers
Travel and related Services
Financial Services

Total Revenue from contract with customers

ii) Disagprepate Revenue

The following table presents Company revenue disaggregated by type of revenue stream and by reportable segment

Revenue based on geography
Revenue from contract with customers
India
Overseas

Revenue based on product and services
Revenue from contract with customers
Travel and related Services
Financtal Services
Total Revenue from operations

iii) Contract Balances

31 March 202t

31 March 2020

Amount Amount
3,288.79 112,046.18
3,288,79 112,046.18

256.80 3,805.64
90.46 1,566.81
T50.65 596.42
1,097.91 5,908.87
4,386,70 117,955.05
3,281.93 112,009 78
6.86 36.40
3,288.79 112,046.18
3,259.95 107,662.35
28.84 438383
3,288.79 112,046.18
3.281.93 112,009.78
.86 3640
3,288.79 112,046.18

The contract liabilities primarily relate 1o the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is over

services delivered.
Advance Collections 1s recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received from the customer
towards leisure tour holiday's packages. Revenue on leisure tours  holiday’s packages are recognized on the completion of the performance obligation which is on the

date of departure of the tour.

Advances collected from customers 9,600,00 11,765.87
Total 9,600.00 11,765.87
Note 25
Other income
Interest Income under the effective interest method on-
Bank deposits 103.79 47.50
Loans to related parties 190.07 128.06
Others 19.58 16.13
Net foreign Exchange difference 11.00 31.71
Gain on sa urrent investments measured at FVTPL 1.83 159.89
inte 4 334.16 -
Po @ ofp Lo 148 398
c tedabistfiges wo  bac - 94,80
1 @ Wﬁé‘gﬁ ' 0.72 7.12
eslatr‘: séipless Highway. 662,62 489.19

1
Goregaed (E3%
},\umhﬂi - &00 06
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Note 26

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and other allowances

Contribution 1o provident fund and other funds
Compensated absences

Share-based payment to employees (refer Note 37)
Staff welfare expense

Note 27

Finance costs
Interest and finance charges on Financial Liabilities
- Interest on Term loan

- Interest on Lease liabilities

— Interest en bank over draft

— Others Financials habilities

— Bank charges

Note 28
Other expenses

Legal and professional charges

(Profit} /Loss on closure of lease
Advertisement and publicity

Operationat lease rentals

Repairs and maintenance - others
Communication expenses

Travelling expenses

Electricity charges

Rates and taxes

Printing and stationery expenses

Directors commission and sttung fees
Insurance expenses

Subscription fees

Proviston for doubtful debts and deposits
Bad debts and advance written off

Corporate social responsibility expense {refer Note below 28 (a))
Payment to auditors (refer Note below 28 (b))
Miscellaneous expenses

Note 28 (a)

Corporate social responsibitity expenditure

{a) Gross amount requited to be spent by the Company during the year
(b) Amount spent and paid during the year on

(¢} Out of above amount paid to related party

Note 28 (b)
Payment to Auditors
Statutory Audut fee
Tax Audit fee
In other capacity
Taxation matters
Centification fee
Re-imbursement of expenses

Note 29

Earnings per

A Netpr  orfhe ﬂﬁ‘z] fe to Equity Shareholders

B. Wei gen ‘ty Shares outstanding during the year
C.B ngd Wﬁ%{m ¢ X

D.P ere nal-@i"{%é )

Not Dil edeathighd REX

s ul %@[egxﬁﬁﬁam‘

Jumbar - 400

*

31 March 2021

31 March 202§

31 March 2020

31 March 2629

Amount Amount
3.,455.59 7,426.20
305.65 476.40
5522 -
159.27 293,37
238.11 678.41
4,213.84 8,874.38
15.58 147.1%
202.76 18573
237.85 11.94
63.58 181.54
3239 167 72
552.16 694.12
1,705.53 3,769.53
757.50 -
235.60 1,959.60
303.62 543.86
518.02 953.70
223.02 490.01
24.93 411.98
79.31 263.00
59.20 76.02
18.61 7113
21.61 2351
35.64 19.25
1919 22.29
(32.37) (83.99)
266,49 841.40
66.08 A3 77
29.64 51.07
4,337.61 9.476.08
53.10 53.10
354 354
3.49 319
3.95 3.89
66.08 63.72
(5,074.17) (887.21)
10,006 10,000
(50,741.65) (8,872.11)
86,000,000 86,000,000

shreiiy oftc  puted as the Company has incurred a loss during the year due to which the Optionally convertible non -cumulative redeemable preference




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continned)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Note 30
Financial instroments — Fair values aod risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values
Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial linbilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below-

as at 31 March 2021

Carrying amount Fair valoe
Financisf Financial Financial Total Level I - Level 2 - Level 3- Total
instroments instruments  instruments Quoted price  Significant Significant
ed at ed at ed at in active  observable inputs  unobservable
FYTPL FVTOCI  amortized cost markets inputs

Fi ial assets not ed at fair value
Trade receivables - - 1,179.21 L179.21 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 3,783.97 3,783,97 - - - -
Other bank balances - - 4639 46.39 - - - -
Loans

= Non-current - - 426.92 416,92 - - - -
- Current 4,043.60 - 2,040.69 6,084.29 - - - -
Other financial assets
~ Non-current - - 131.14 181.14 - - - -
- Current 99,51 - 318,67 418.17 99.51 - - 98.51
4,143,11 - 7,976.97 12,120.07 99.51 - - 49,51

Financial labilities viot measured at Fair valire
Borrowings - - 150.60 150,00 - - - -
Bank Overdraft - - 2.257.34 2,257.34 - - - -
Trade payables 5 5 12,921.15 12,921.15 5 S 5 e
Other financial habilities

- Non current - - 821.13 821.13 - - - -

- Current - - 436.06 436.06 - - - -
Total financial lishilities - = 16,585.69 16,585.69 - - - -
as at 31 March 2020 Carryving amount Fair value

Financial Financial Financial Total Level ] - Lavel 2 - Level 3 - Total
instrements  instr instr s Quoted price  Significant Significant
d at d at ed at in active observableinputs unobservable
FVTPL FVTOCT  amortized cost markets inpats

Financial assets measured at fair vakue

Investment in mutual funds 4,108.35 - - 4,108 35 4,108 35 - - 4,108.35
4,108.35 - - 4,108.35 4,108 35 - - 4,108 35

Financial assets aot measured atl fair value

Trade receivables - - 5,662.54 5,662.54 - - - -

Cath and cash equuvalents - - 2,617.85 261785 - - -

Other bank balances - - 43.30 43 30 - - - -
Loans
- Non-current - - L0116 Lolrie - - - =
- Curremt - - 2,64198 2,641 98 - - - -
Other financial assets
= Non-current - - i71.56 171.56 - - - -
- Current - - 2,180.54 2,180.54 - - - -
0 - 14,328 94 14,328 94 - - N N

Financial liabilities oot measured at fair value
Borrowings - - 900.00 900.00 - 900.00 - 900.00
Bank Overdraft - - 2,673 26 2,673.26 - - - -
Trade payables - - 14,058.07 14,058.07 - - - -
Other financial liabilities
- Non current B - 2,741.93 2,741.93 - - - -

- Current - - 967.14 $67.14 - e - -
Total financial liabilitics - -~ 21,340.40 21,340.41 - $00.00 - 500.00

The company has net disclosed the fair value of financials instrument such as trade receivables . trade payables, etc. because their carrying are ar ble approximation of fair
valug
Level | ludes fi | measired using quoted prices.

48l mstruments that are nol traded in an active market is determined using valuali h which 1he use of observable market data and rely as

cstimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is mcluded in level 2,
gyificant inputs 15 ot based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3, This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent
asset included 1n level 3.

pstern APIES
bl Goregach (Easth.
Mumbai . 400 063




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwase stated)

Note 30 (Continued)

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Conrinued)
B. Measurement of fair values

Valuation techniques and significant znobservable inputs
The following tables show the valuation techmiques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 farr values, as well as the sigmficant unobservable nputs used.

Finsacial instroments ed at fzir valpe

inter-relationship between
significant unobservable inputs
and faiv value measurement

Significant

Type Valuation techniqoes anobservable inputs

Forward contracts for foreign exchange contracts The forergn exchange forward Not applicable Not applicable
fcontracts are marked to market
using forward FEDAI rates
penaimng fo the date of matunty
of the contract at the Balance
shest date

Mutual funds Market companson techmque- Not appheable Not applicable
The valuation model 1s based on
market multiples derived from
quoted prices of mutual fund
securities.

Bomrowings Discount rate to fair value of Not applicable Not applicable
financials assets and liabilities at
amortised cost is based on
E:neral lending rate.

Transfers between Levels
There were no transfers in either direction 1n any of the reporting penods

C. Financial visk management
The Company has exposure 10 the following risks arising from financal instruments.

= Credit risk ;
= Liquidity risk ; and
= Market risk

i, Risk management framework

The Company's Board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's nisk management framework The Board of directors has established the
Risk M. C ittee, which is responsible for developing and g the Company’s nsk management policies. The Comemittee repons regularly to the Board of directors on ils

activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to wenify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 10 s¢t appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor nsks and
adherence 10 limits. Risk policies and are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activinies. The Company, through its rmmng
and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment m which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how A it i compli with the pany’s risk g policies and procedures, and reviews the adeq of the sk g
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Commitice is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undenakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of
nsk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audil commitice.

it. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 1o the Company if a oF c pary to a fi | instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company’s receivables from customers and investmenta in debt securities, Credit risk primarily arises from financial assets such as trade receivables, lnvastment in mutual funds, denvanve
fir fs instr . bal with banks and other receivables.

Credit risk arising from investment 10 mutual funds , denvative financials instruments and balance with banks s limited because the counterparties are bank and recogmised financials
institution with high ¢redit ratings.

The Company's exposure to credit nsk 1s influenced manty by the individual ch istics of each However, I also ¢ ders the factors that may influence the credit
nisk of its customer base, including the default risk of the indusiry and country 1n which customers operate

The C. blishes an all e for i that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables,

The average credit period on sales of services is less than 30 days Credit nisk ansing from trade receivables 1s managed in accordance wath the Company’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit nisk 19 . The ¢ ton of eredit risk in limited due to the fact that the customer base 18 large

The Company establishes an allownnee for impairment that represents ils estimate of expected losses i respect of rade and other recervables
31 March 2021 3] March 2020

\cndil loss allowance on trade receivables
of the year 734.95 99422

& ddingpriomsth  iody
C" ‘;l_q‘lasﬂlflé ne\f‘
wpepebeiehdof
Expless Highway.
gaon (Easth,
Ajumbai - 400 063
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

{All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 30 (Continued)
Financial instruments ~ Fair values and risk management (continued )
iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty n meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its labilities when they are due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company's principal source of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generaled from operations. The company believes that the working caphtal is
sufficient to meet its current requirements, accordingly no tiquidity risk is perceived,

Finaneing arrangements 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Particulars

Floating rate - Term loan / WCDL 150,00 900.00
150.00 900,00

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following arc the remaining contractual maRrities of financial liabitities at the reporting date The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest

payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements,

&s at 31 March 2021 Contractusal cash flows
Carrying Total 0 to 180 days 150 to 360 Tyrio 3 yrs. more than 3 yrs.
amount days
Non-derivative financial lisbilities
Borcowings 150,60 150.00 150,00
Trade payables 12,922.00 12,922.00 5.962.69 6,959.30 - -
Other financial liabilities 1,407,19 1,407.19 268.20 317.86 821.13 -
14,479.19 14,479.19 6,380.89 7.277.17 821.13 -
as at 31 March 2020 Contractual cash flows
Carrying amount Total 0 to 180 days 18010 360 Iyrio 3 yrs. more than 3 yrs,
days
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bomrowings 900,00 S900.00 900,00 - - -
Trade payables 14,058.07 14,058.07 14,058.07 - - -
Other financial liabitities 967.14 957.14 352.93 577.93 36.28 -
1592521 15,925.21 15,311.00 577.93 36.28 -
iv. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices  will affect the Company's income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable (o all market risk sensitive fi ial § inchuding foreign currency receivables and payables. We are

expased to market risk primarily related to forcign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of our investinents. Thus, our exposure to market risk is n funciron
of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activitics in foreign currency. The objective of market rigk management is to avoid excessive
exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its payables to foreign vendors in various forcign currency. The functional currency of the Company 15 Indian Rupee
However the Company has natural hedge, the collection from its customer is in equivalent INR which converts in vanous required currency and park it in SPFC (Special
Purposc Foreign Cumrency ) account and release the payment to its vendor as and when payable.

There is also a cross camrency exposure (collection in one foreign currency and payment in another forcign, currency). Tour prices are quoted in USD against which paymenis
are quoted in EUR. This cross curtency foreign exchange risk is for the FX component of European Tours till the same is settled with the supplier. There are also cases where
tour prices are quoted in EUR and the payments are in local currencies of Europe, mainly GBP and CHF. This leads to EUR/GBP and EUR/CHF exposures. The payment
obligations arc thus exposed to the risk of the EUR appreciating against USD, and risk of GBP and CHF appreciating against the EUR.

Risk starts on the day of tour launch, when price is fixed in foreign currency. Tour price is coliected around 15 days/ 1 month in advance and kept in SPFC account to meet
payment obligations to Foreign Service providers.

Mit
y Sgxperience, 50% of cross currency exposures are initially hedged using plain vanilla , forward exchange contracts, with time frame as per credit period
Grotp-thie supplier. ’cha ity of the contracts ,arc ail less than one yesr. The hedge price should always be lower than the ROE of the exposure that is initially fixed. On a

e ight) 8 the are revised based on current sales report and hedges are entered into in & phased manner. Once actual bookings start and sales targets are being
frpasury hedg i he bal open exposurcs, hedying more than 90% of total exposures. The Company hedges total 100% exposure of Inter-Company loans using
lzinpéafiitta £¢ |contracts.

westgn B B,
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Sorthe year ended 31 March 202}
{All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 30 (Continued)

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {continued)

Exposure to currency risk (Exposure in different currencies converted to functional currency }

The currency profile of financial assets and financial fiabilities as at 31 March 2021 15 as below:

ay 2t 31 March 2021

Amount in INR

Ush EUR GBP Others
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,113.37 683.73 16.69 556.57
Trade and other receivables including advances 441.54 124.61 152 17532
1,554.91 808.34 18.21 731.89
e
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables 1,161.91 911.04 19.07 310,08
1,161.91 911.04 19.07 310.08
Exchange Rates 73.52 86.09 100,95
Net Exposure in Respective cur 393.00 (102,70) ©.57) 421,31
as at 31 March 2020 Amount in INR
UsD EUR GBP Others
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,059.40 632.05 15.72 717255
Trade and other receivables mcluding advances 1,537.51 659.60 774 533.31
2,5969] 1,261.65 23.46 1,305.86
Financial labilities
Trade and other payables 2,025.09 L,300.66 204] 805.47
2,025.09 1,300.66 2941 805.47
Exchange rate 7542 83.16 93.05
Net Exposure in Respective currencies 571.82 (9.01) (5.95) 500.39
The following sigmificant exchange rates have been applicd dunng the year.
Average rate Year-end spot rate
iNR 31 March 2024 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
USD 74,47 T2.22 T3.52 75.67
EUR B4.63 8035 B86.09 82.77
GEP 97.00 91.65 100.95 91,50
Sengitivity analysis
Ar bly possible strengthening (weakeming) of the Indian Rupee agamst various currencics as mentioned 2bove at March 31 2021 and March 31 2020 would have

affected the measurement of financiat

ive currencies and affected profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis

assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, reman constant and igniores any 1mpact of forecast transactions to be held in the foreign cwrrencies.

Amount in INR

March 31, 2021
Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakeaing
1% movement
USD 398 3.98) s -
EUR (R 1.01 .
GBP 0.01) 0.01 5 5
March 31, 2020 Amount in INR
Profit or Loss Equity (net of tax)
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakene
(4t Froof. 5.48 {548) - -
R 1 g, Towes & (©.09) 009 - -
(0.06) 0.06 - .

co Centet,

(253 Highway.




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

{All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 30 (Continued)

Financial instruments ~ Fair values and risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk

The exposure of the company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows;

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Variable rate of borrowings 8.55% 8.00%
As at the end of the reporting peried, the company had the following variable rate borrowings:
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance % of total loans Balance % of 101al loans
Variable rate of borrowings 150,00 100 900.00 17
Net exposure 1o cash flow due to interest rate risk 150.00 160 $00.00 17

Sensitivity

Profit or Loss is sensitive 1o higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in nterest rates.
Changes in interest rate are based on historical movement

[nterest rates - increase by 100 basis peints *
Interest rates - decrease by 100 basis points *

* Holding ali ather vaniables constant

Note 31

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Contingens liabilities

Claims againsi the Company not acknowledged as debts

a. Digputed claims made by clicnts

b. Disputed Service Tax Demands

c. Provident Fund Liability on account of pending Supreme court judgment.

Impact on profit after tax

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
0.98) {5.86)
.98 5.86

31 March 2021 3] March 2020
1,076.31 1,354.29
4,679.51 4,794.75

35.73 35.73

(a) It is not practicable for the company to estimate the timing of cash flows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the respective proceedings,
{b) The company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

(<) The Hon"ble Supreme Court of India ("SC") by their order dated February 28, 2019, set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should
be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of provident fund contribution, Subsequently, & review petition against this decision has been
fi ted and is pending before the SC for disposal. Management has accounted for the liability for the period from date of the SC order to March 31, 2015. Further,

pen ~ ecision on the subject review petition and directions from the EPFO, the impact for the past period, if any, is not ascertainable and consequently no eff cct has

cn( accounts.
< {0
Q)@ ﬂmixn:‘:? ) {to th extent not provided for)

Wing. 0

g to be ¢

d on capital account and not provided for net of advances

Cei\““ 51
tof
wesu:?: E(:E:SSEH%
A3
N Got Y 3
il

arhai - 400 o

*

31 March 2021  3i March 2020
46.59 108.10




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued}
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amount in Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Note 32
Transfer priciag

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under Sections 92-
92F of the Income-tax Act. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation 10 be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of
updating the documentation for the international as well as specified domestic transactions (if applicable) entered into with the associated enterprise during the
finanicial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by the end of the stipulated timeline, as required by faw. The Management is of the opinion that its
international as well as specified domestic transactions if any) are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will nol have any impact on the financial statements,
particularly on the amount of 1ax expenses and that of provision for taxation,

Note 33
Micro and Small Enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came into force from 2 October, 2006, certain disclosures are required 1o be made
relating to dues to Micro and Smail Enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, there are no parties registered as micro

and small emerprises,

Particatars 31 March 2021 31 2020
The amounis remaining unpaid 1o Micro and Small Suppliers as at the end of the year,

- Principal - -
== Interest 0.84 -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act, 2006} along with the amount of the payment made 1o the supplier - -
beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year.

The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during each 2832

accounting year. : B
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but

beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified vnder MSMED Act, 2006. N B
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

E.Y, 2020-2021 0.84 -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, uniil such date when the
interest dues as above are actvally paid to the small emterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 0.84 -
expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006,

Note 34
Scgment reporting

The Company is in the business of providing travel and reiated services to its retail and corporate customers which is considered by the chief” operating decision maker
(‘CODM') as the only reportable busi ginent taking into account the nature of the business, the risk and retums, the organisation structure and internal reporting
. mpany also provides financial services which is not a materia! reportable segment and is largely considered to be an integral part of trave! and related
-~ related services includes tour operations and travel management services, arranging air tickets, hotels, sightseeing, visa and other related

des services within similar economic environments considering the origin of services and risks and rewards being similar across the said
© no separate reportable geographical segments. Accordingly, these financial statements are reflective of the information required by the




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount 1n Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 35
Capital Management
The C ders the foll 7 of 1ts Balance Sheet 10 be managed capntal

i}
Total equity  retained eamings, capntal reserves, share capital

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard 1ts ability (o continue as a going concer and (o optimise retums to our sharcholders. The capital structure of the Company 1s
based on management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key ¢lements 1n order 1o meet its sirategic and day-to~day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to
nisk and manage the capital structure in tight of changes in d and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets,

The Company aims to translate profitable growth 1o supenior cash generation through efficient capital management. The Company's policy is 1o maintain a stable and strong capiial
structure wth a focus on total equity so as to mantair investor, ereditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of 1ts business. The Compary's focus 1
on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence, secunity, as well as a bigh financial flexibility for potential finure borowings, +f required, without impacting the nsk
profile of the Company. The Company will take appropriate steps 1 order 10 mamtain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The Company 15 not subject to financial covenants
m any of its significant financing agreements.

holders. The Company’s goal is to continue 1o be able 1o retum excess hquidity 10

The management monilors the retum on capital as well as the level of dividends fo sh
sharehalders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods.

Note 36
Employee benefits
The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India,

(1) Defined coniribution plans:
The Company makes comtnibutions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employecs towards Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance
Corporation, Labour Welfere Fund and National Pension Scheme which are defined contribution plan. The Company has no obliganons other than 1o make the specified

L . The ¢ b are charged to the Statement of profit and loss as they accrue.
Amount contributed to defined t plan and recognised as an exp inthe S of Profit and Loss are as under
Particulars 31 March 2021 I M 2020
Employer’s contribution to provident fund 21230 344.13
Employee's State Insurance Corporation 10.60 667
National pension scheme 5.82 14.29
Labour welfare fund 035 0.58
(ii) Defimed benefit plan:
Gratuity plan
The Company provides for Gratuity using the projected unil credit method, with | val bewny carred out at each balance sheet date, based on tegislations as enacted upto

the balance sheet date, Actuarial gains and losses are recogmised in full an the Staternent of Profit and Loss m the penod in which they occur. Past service cost is recogmised
immediately 10 the extent that the benefits are already vested.

Gratuity is payable to all elygible employees of the Company on super 1, death and permanent disablement. in terms of the pravisions of the Payment of Gratuity Aet, 1972 or
as per the Compary s scheme, which 15 more beneficial

Com pensated ahsences and leave encashment
As per the leave policy, every employee will be atlotied 30 days of leave 1n the first week of January No leaves can be camed forward 16 the next year whereby, the leave balance left

unutilized on 31 December shall lapse Duning the year, a sum aggregating 10 Rs 55 22 (previous year Rs. -94.80) has been debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Based on the actuanal vaiuation obtaned m this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s financial statements
as at Balance Sheet date

31, March 2021 3 M; Q

Gratuity

Defined benefit asset-Gratuity plan 12045 27795
Defined benefit lisbility 494,06 637 55
Net defined benefit liability 373.61 359.60
LCm:: ka ll%llceﬂﬁ (

@v pen 55.22 -

1Ath Fleot
fod playpetepantfiabi o 42883 359.60




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statemeats (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount 1n Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 36 (Continued)
Employee benefits {Continued)

Moavement in net defined benefit (asset) Nubility
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benofit {asset) hability and s components

Defined benelit obligation Fair value of plan assels Net defined benefit
(asset) liability

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening balance as on 1 Apnl 2020 637.55 626,52 277.95 3i8.72 359.60 307.80
Current service cost 52.9¢ 90.53 - - 52.9%0 90.53
Adjustiment to opening far value of plan assets - - - - - -
Expected return on plan assets - - - - - -
Past service cost - - - - - -
Irnerest cost (income) 34,67 40.76 13.97 19.61 20.70 21,15
Scitlements  benefits pard - - - - - -
B7.57 131 2% 13,97 19.61 73.60 111.68
Included in OC
Remeasurement loss (gain) - - - - - -
Actuanal loss (gain) (38.20) (31.87) - - (38.20) (31.87)
- - 2L41 16.83 {21.41) {16.83)
Return on plan assets excluding interest income
(33.20) {31.87) 21.41 16.83 (59.59) (48.71)
Other
Contributions pad by the employer - - - iz - (r1m
Benefits pard {192.86) (88.39) (192.36) (88.39) - -
Closing balance as on 31 March 2021 494,06 637 55 120,45 27795 373,61 359.60
Represented by
Defined benefit asset 12045 27795
Defined benefit liability 494,06 637 55
Net defined benefit hability 373.61 35960
The major categories of plans assets for gratoity are as follows
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Quoted Unquoted Total Guoted Unquoted Total
Insurer Managed Funds 120.45 - 12045 27794 - 27794
Defined benefit abligations
i. Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuanal assumptions at the reporting date (exp d as weighted
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Discount rate 5.55% 583%
Salary escalation rate 6% 6%
Monality rate IALM (2012-14) 1ALM (2012-14) Ul
Employee Attntion Rate
Upto Age 30 30.00% 29.00%
Age 3140 22,00% 23.00%
Age 41-50 20.00% 15.00%
11.00% 10.00%
% Co.
C.OQA 0] : ture mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tabies. The current longevities underlying the values of the defined benefit obligation at
Fag) € date llows
Wing. Towel 4.

ral
Cegl A3 B4R 2021 the °  ted average duration of (he defived benefit obligation was 4.77 years (31 March 2020 4 57 years)

hway.
Expless Hig
me sy

MDA - 400 063
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continned)
Jor the year ended 31 March 202}

(All amount sn Rs Lukhs, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 36 (Continoed)
Employse benefits (Continoed)

ii. Sensitivity analysis

B,

ible ch a1 the reporting date (o one of the refevant actuanal assumptions, holding other assumpticns cortstant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation

hiv
oly p 1

by the amouns shown below.

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (2021 - 1% and 2020 :- 1% movement) {11.54) 12.05 (30.11) 3254
Future salacy growth (2021 - 1% and 2020 - 1% movement) 1154 {11.17) 27.46 (26.34)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions

shown.
The foliowing table shows expense recognised in Profit and Loss account and

31 March 2021 3 March 2020

Currenl service cost 52.90 90.53
Past service cost - 5
Interest income, net 20.70 21.15
73.60 i11.68
The following table shows remeasurement recogmised in Other Comprehensive Income
arch 31 March 2020
Actuanal loss (gain) floss on deferred benefit obligation (38.20) {31.87)
Return on plan assets excluding interest income (21.41) {16.83)
(59.61) {48.71)

Risk Exposure for gratuity
Through 115 defined benefit plans, the company 1s exposed to a number of risks, the most sigmficant of which are detailed below :

#)  Asset volatility: The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rale set with reference to bond yrelds, of the plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit
Further any decrease in the bond yields will increase the plan liabilities. The plan assets investments are 1n unquoted securities which are subject 1o interest rate nisks and the fund

manages the interest rate risks to an acceptable low level

b} Salary growth & Demographic assumptions. The plan is of a final salary defined benefit 1n nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the nsks
pertuming to the plan. In particular, there is a risk for the company that any adverse salary growth or demographic experience or inadequate returns on underlying plan assets can
result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits 1o employees in future, Since the benefits are lemp sum in nature the plan is not subject to any longevity risks,

Note 37
Share-based payment arrangemeats:

A. Description of share-based payment arrangements

i. Share option programs (equity-settied)
Thomas Cock (India) Limited, the parent company has granted employee stock options to the Company's employees on the dates mentioned below. Under these plan, the holder of the

vested options are entitled to purchase the shares of the holding company at exercise price as mentioned below

The key terms and conditions related to the grants under these plans are as follows;
Method of
Plan Settlement Grant date No. of options Exercise price Vesting period
GTOTNOV2016 Equity 7 November 2.25 Rs. [ 100% of the options
2016 vest at the end of the
4 yearsi.e.
T-Nov-2020
ESOP 2018-MGMT Equity 13 June 2018 213 Rs. 13793 100% of the options
vest at the ¢nd of the
Jyearsic
t3-June -2021
ESOP 2018-EXECOM Equity 5 October 2018 0.40 Rs. t 100% of the ophions
vest at the end of the
Sycarsi.e
5-0ct-2023

Share options autstanding at the end of the year have the feltowing expiry date and exercise prices

March 31,2021 March 31,2020

Grant Dufe Expiry date/ Expiry Year Exercise price {Rs.) Share options Share options
7T November 2016 1 November 2040 1 2.25 2.25
10 June 2031 13793 213 422
20 Septemnber 2043 1 0.40 0.97
478 7.44
aiding contraciaal life of opti ding at end of year 15.66 Years 15.65 Years|

gaon (Easl),
ai - 400 063




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continved)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

{All amount 1p Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 37 (Continued)
Share-based payment arrangentents: (Continved)

B. Measurement of fair values

Equity-settied share-based payment arrangements.

The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using the Black-Scholes formula. The Black- Scholes model requires the consideration of certain variables such as
valatility, nisk free rate, expected dividend yield, etc. for the caleulation of the fair value of the option These vanables significantly influence the far value and any changes in these
varisbles could significantty affect the far value of the option.

Thomas Cook (India) Limited, the holding company ("TCIL") in a composile scheme of ammangement demerged its Human Resources Services Business and transferred it to Quess
Corp Limited ("Quess"). The scheme was approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT} with the appomted date as April 1, 2019. The effective date of the scheme was
Nevember 25, 2019 when both TCIL and Quess filed the centified copies of the order with therr respective Junsdictional Registrar of Companies.

As g part of the posite scheme, Employoes whose ESOPs were outstanding on the effective date will be entitled to the additiona! shares of Quess on account of the demerger of
Human R Busi; [nstead of altening the exercise price, TCIL provided additional award tn form of Quess shares
The employees are now entitled 10 shares of Quess along wilh those of TCIL in the same share i raho p bed 1n the sct for the other shareholders of TCIL.

In case of vested ESOPs, the employees wilt be granied shares of TCIL and Quess only on payment of the excrcise pnce In case of unvested ESOPs, the employees will be granted
shares of TCIL and Quess on completion of the remaiming vesting persod and payment of the exercise price

The options, to the extent, which are settied by shares of Quess do not meet the definttion of a share-based payment arrangenent because the value of shares of Quess is not based on
the price or value of TCIL's equity instruments or any of its group entity's equity instruments,

The optrons 1o the extent which are settled by shares of Quess will be considered as an employee benefit withun the scope of Ind AS 19.

The options settled by shares of TCIL. continue te be considered a3 share based payments and are accounted as per IND AS 102,

Key manuagement personnel {March 2021) Key management personnel {March 2020)
ESOP 2018- ESOQP 1013- ESOP 20i8- ESOP 2018-
GTOTNOV2016 MGMT EXECOM GTOINQV 2016 MGMT EXECOM
Fair value (Esop Expenses) 117,75 83.65 155.80 11775 8365 155.80
Fair value {Stock Expenses) 95.29 65,71 95.21 95.29 6571 95.21
Number of options 225 213 0.40 225 422 0.97
Share price at grant date 218.55 248.63 25620 21855 248.63 256.20
Exerctse price 1.00 137.93 1.00 1.00 13793 1.00

CR iliation ef ding share opti
The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share options under the share option programs were as follows

Particulars Number of Weighted average Number of ~ Weighted average

aptions exercise price options EXEICise price

31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2020

Options ding a3 at the beginning of the year 7.44 78.64 744 78.64
Options granted duning the year - . . -
Options lapsed/ forferted during the year 2.66 110,46 - -

Options outstanding as at the year end 4.78 €0.91 T4 7863
Options vested and exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

D Exp /shares option g arising from share based payment transactions
ansing from share-based payment related transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as follows
Co.

<( 3 h 202 rch 2020

0 90,89 24905

68.38 44.32

westem £ f
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
asar 31 March 2024
{Allamount n Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 38
Related party transactions
(A) Names of related parties by whom control exists

Name of the parties Relationships
Fairfax Financisl Holdings Lindted, Canada Ukimate Holding Company
Thomas Cook (India) Limited Holding Comparny

(B) Parties over whom control exists
Relationships Name of the parfies

Subsidiary Company of SOTC Travel Limited Travel Circle Intemutional (Mauntivs) Limited {Hobding 51% of toezk Equity, w.e.F 27 June 2017}

(C) Fellow Subsidiaries with whom ions has taken place during the year
Relatioaships Name of the parties
Fellow subsidianes TC Visa Services (India} Limited

Travet Corporation {india) Limited (Amalgamated w.¢.f 25th November, 2019)
TC1-Go Vacation India Pvi Ltd

Allied Tpro {w.e.f 2%th Juae 2017)

Luxe Asiz Private Limited

Sterling Hofiday Resorts Limited

Quess Corp Limited (upto 31 March 201%)

Asian Trails SDN BHD (Malaysia)

Asian Trails Ltd. (Thailand)

PT Asian Trails Lid

Asign Traits (Vietnam) Co. Lid

Kuoni Private Safans (Pry) Lid

Private Safanis EA Ltd

TC Tours Limited (formerly known as ‘Thomas Cook Tours Limited)
Thomsas Cook Toeurs Limited

Australia Tours Management Pry Lid.

DEI Holdings Lid

Thomas Caok {Mauritius) Holidays Linuted

Horizon Travel Services LLC

Desert Adventures Tourism LLC

Co-Achieve Solutions Private Limuted { upto 31 March 2019)
Trawel Cirle International Ltd Hongkong

Asian Trails Holding Ltd.

Kuoni Australia Holding Pry Ltd

Thomas Cook {Mauritius) Operations Co Lid

TC Travel Services Limited

Fairfx India Charitable Foundation
Travel Corporation (India) Limited {formerly known as SOTC Travel Manag: Linuted)
(D) Key Mansgemeat Perssnel / Directors and Management Council
Particalars Name of the key management personned
Managing Directer Mr. Vishal Sun
Directers of the Company Mr. Madhavan Menon
Mr. Nifesh Vikamsey
Mrs Kishori Udeshi
Mr. Rahul Bhagat
Mr, Debasis Nandy
Chiel Financial Officer Mr. Farroukh Kolsh
Company Secretary Ms Kiran Agarwal {upto 20 May 2020)

Mr Chirag Viya (from 29th May 2020 to 9th Nov 2020)
Mr Pravesh Palod (w.e.f 25th Jan 2021}

Council Mr Vishal Sun
% Co. L Mr Famoukh Kolah
A Mr Indiver Rastog
fioot. Mr § D Nandakumar
@ “\mm Tower 4, Mr Damel Dsouza
nieat ) Ms. Deepti Sheth

AR
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 3§ March 2024
(All amount i Rs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ry

Related party i ions {C:

{E} Related parties with whom transactions has faken place during the year

Particulars
inceme fram tonrs

Cost of tours & reiated services
Guarantee foes paid

Expesses reimbursed

Expenses recoversd
Incentive paid { Netted off from Revenne)
Productivity linked bonus income

Loan Receivable

Term loan given during the year

Term Joaa given (repaid) during the year

Interest income oa leng term loan

Year

2021
2020
2021
2020

2621
2020

2021
2020

021
2020
202t
2020
2021
2020
w02t
2020

2021
2020

2021
2020

2021
2020

021
020

021
2020

2021
2020

17956
007

340,65
3.412.05

{0.03
1522

1,162.68
1.865.84
7918
119.67

4,200.00

4,£50.3%
55039
99.63
128.66

4781
88.64

561.83
85883




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Luxe Asia Private Limited

ay at 3{ March 2021
(All amount in Rs Lakhs, wmiess otherwise stated)
Related party tr ions (Continued}
(F) Names of parties (subsidiaries and feilow subsidiaries) having related party transactions in excess of 10% in lioe transactions:
Particulary Fellgw subsidinrics 31 March 2021 31-Mer:20
TC1 GO Vacation {38.99) -
TC Tours Limited {72.00) 93004
In¢ome from tours Travel Corporation (India) Limited (37.45) 633.88
TC Tours Limited 737.14 51195
Horizoa Travel Services LLC 744 2,387.83
Desert Adventures Tourism LLC 32280 517.88
TC Visa Services (India) Limited 53.42 -
Luxe Asia - 250.74
Quess Corp Lid. - 343.84
Asian Trails (Malaysia} - 9334
Cost af tonrs and reinted services * Asizn Traits (Thasand) - 314.50
PT Asian Trails Ltd [ATI) - 19.13
Asian Trails (Viemam) Co. Ltd [ATV] - 1.33
Kuoni Private Safaris (Pty) Ltd - 253.66
Private Safaris EA Ltd - 155,66
Australia Tours Management Pry Lid. - 202.02
Coachieve Solutions Private Limited - 19.87
Thomas Cook (Mauntius) Holidays Limited - 2053
Expenses reimbarsed Travel Corporation (India) Limited 453 71.23
Horizon Travel Services LLC - 83.85
Luxe Asia 0.58 -
Travel Corporation (India) Limited 1540 3696
Hornizon Travel Services LLC 122 086
Diesert Adventures Tourism LLC 22 0.86
Private Safaris EA Lid 082 0.86
Kuoni Private Safaris (Pty) Lid 032 086
Travel Circle International Ltd Hongkong pA L] 171
Expenses recovered DEl Holdings Lid 099 3%
Asian Trails Holding Ltd. 374 137
Kuoni Australia Holding Pty Ltd 093 034
“Thomas Cook (Mauritivs} Operatiens Co Ltd 1482 L7
Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Limited 435 -
Luxe Asia 139 -
TC Travel Services Limited - 1K 2
Incentive paid { Netted off from Reveome) TC Tours Limited - 265.04
Prodoctivity Enked bonus TC Tours Limited £9.20 1532
Shert terey lean Travel Circle International {(Mauritius) Limited 4,043,60 .
Interest income on term loan Travel Circle Intemational {Mauritius) Limited WM 10121
Travel Corporation {India) Limiled 61.61 237.00
TC1 GO Vacation 1837 41.83
Hiou Travet Setvices LLC 1.65 9.08
Desert Adventures Tourism LLC 031 0.6¢
Kuoni Privaic Safaris (Pry) Ltd 1.25 043
Luxe Asia 139 -
Private Safaris EA Lid LO4 0.21
Receivables DEI Holdings Ltd 0.25 39
Asizn Trails Holding Ltd. 4.08 0.34
Kuoni Australia Holding Piy Lid 085 0.7
TC Tours Limited 149.34 LIST.04
Thomas Cook (Mauritius} Holidays Limited 316 -
Thomas Cook {Mauritius) Operations Co Lid 3.09 0.43
Travet Circte Intemancnal Lid Hongkong 0.55 -
“Fravel Corporation (India) Limited 82 420
Sterling Holtday Resoris Ltd 1.09 143
Asian Trails (Thailand) 041 5467
Honzon Trave! Services LLC 4.55 1834
Desert Adventures Tounsm LLC 37.37 103.24
Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Limited 631 6.94
Payables TC Tours Limsted 1,515.33 1,239.05
TC Visa Services (India) Limited 46.12 -
Quess Corp Lid - 17.69
Asian Trails (Malaystz) - 3387
Coachieve Solutions Private Limited - 0.76
Australia Tours Management Pty Ltd. - 13.03
Kuoni Private Safarig (Pty) Lid - 2]
Private Safaris EA Lid - 0.39
PT Asien Trails Ltd - 5.85
57.09 17.80
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BSR &Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Telephorre: +91 22 6257 1000
Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center, Fax: a +9122 6257 1010
Western Express Highway, X

Goregaon {East), Mumbai - 400 063

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of

Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Travel Corporation (India) Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explarations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companics Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Awuditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 45 to the financial results, which describe the possible effect of uncertainties
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers (“KAM™) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matiers were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on Going Concern
of the financial statements » Obtained an understanding of the key controls

L relating to the Company’s forecasting process
On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation s Compared the forecasted income Statement and

geclareddthe‘Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak to cash flows with the Company’s business plan
© a pandemuic. approved by the board of directors
e Obiained an understanding of key assumptions

The Indian Government has imposed various lock-downs adopted by the Company in preparing the

across the country during the year. These lockdowns and 4
restrictions due to COVID — 19 pandemic have posed forecasted Jocome istonty and Cash fow and
significant chalienges to the businesses of the Company. expectations based on our understanding of the

This required the Company to assess impact of COVID-

19 on its operations. Company’s business.

»  Assessed the forecasted income statement and cash
flow by considering plausible changes to the key
assumptions adopted by the Company
Obtained support letter from the parent Company

e Performed the following procedures as mitigating
factors:

o Assessed impact of Govemnment’s
announcement to lift the lockdown
restrictions and Company’s plan to re-start
business operations in a phased manner;

o  Assessed disclosures made in the financial
statements with regard to the above.

The Company has assessed the impact of COVID-19 on
the future cash flow projections. The Company has also
prepared a range of scenarios to estimate financing
requirements.

In view of the above, we identified impact of COVID-19
on going concern as a key audit matter.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors’ report, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Board report is expected
to be made available to us after the date of the auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

orma\on and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

anc:al statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

nmal’erégglly\}msstated When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material

Cmf;s\;inlqig&atc ent therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance
ccessary actions, as applicable under the applicable laws and regulations.

Western aj‘ék“”
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BSR & Co.LLP

Independent Anditors’ Report (Continued)
Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for thc matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statcments that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularitics, sclection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to ceasc operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantce that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatcments can arisc from fraud or crror and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- C@bt?m an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
atn FioBIT ceﬂurcs that are apprOpnate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are

senal $ng also rcsponsﬂ)le for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal

i

teses “fifiancial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectivencss
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accountmg policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Managemcnt and
Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. QOur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

* Kvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. (A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

¢ sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
edge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

14th FIEAT
Central Wing, Tower 4,
lesco Center,

westerbr) preTuificyia
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lon, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
any/so far as it appears from our examination of those books.




BSR & Co. LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021
on its financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 40 to the financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which therc were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

isclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in

P % bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016
Centt wieglidpe, nOt\been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the
he fiancial year ended 31 March 2021.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors® Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its dircctors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
- Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W100022

%HW

Mumbai Bhavesh Dhupelia

28 April 2021 Partner
UDIN: 21042070AAAABN5876 Membership No. 042070
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited
“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ report- 31 March 2021

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, we report the

following:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed asscts.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets,
by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of two
years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. Due to ongoing
pandamic of Covid 19, the Company has not performed physical verification
during the year and hence, we are unable to comment on the discrepancies, if any.

(©) According to the information and ¢xplanations given to us and on the basis of our
cxamination of the records of the Company, the Company docs not have any
immovable property. Thus, paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ii) The Company is a service company primarily rendering services of travel and related
service. Accordingly, the Company does not hold physical inventory. Thus, paragraph 3(ii)
of the Order is not applicable.

(ili)  In our opinion and according to the information and ¢xplanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsccured, to companics, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
the investments made. The Company has not granted any loan or given any guarantee or
security to the partiecs covered under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
accordingly, to this extent, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public as per the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India under the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Act and the Rules framed thercunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

1410 Floge, o 3
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited
“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ report- 31 March 2021 {Confinued)

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
cxamination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund,
Employee’s State Insurance, Income tax, Goods and Services Tax, Profession tax
and any other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited
during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to
us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Sales tax, Duty of Excise,
Duty of Customs, Value Added Tax and Cess.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax,
Goods and Services Tax, Profession tax and other material statutory dues were in
arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
Income tax or Goods and Services Tax or Services tax or Duty of Customs or Duty
of Excise or Value added tax which have not been deposited by the Company on
account of disputes, except for the following:

Nature of Nature of Amount Period to which the Forum where dispute
Statute Dues amount relates is pending
Service Tax Service 146,652 1 October 2007 t0 29  Assistant Commissioner
Rules, 1994 Tax February 2008 of Service Tax
Service Tax Service 159,782,742 1 April 2005 to CESTAT
Rules, 1994 Tax 31 March 2010

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of its dues to the banks and financial
institutions. The Company did not have any outstanding dues to Government or debenture
holders during the year.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on cxamination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not obtained term loans during the year.,
The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the ycar. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the
Order is not applicable.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on the Company by its
officers and employees or fraud by the Company has been noticed or reported during the
¢ of our audit.

= & Co
i ey & rding to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the
el Wing FEGOT 6{ the Company, the Company has paid managerial remuneration in accordance

\"eslul';\e;grcﬂ}itglﬁﬂ{ﬁc rf%quisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule
Boregd Vaiéi e Act.
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BSR & Co. LtP

Travel Corporation (India) Limited
“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ report- 31 March 2021 (Continued)

(xii)

(xiif)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Mumbai

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related partics are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our cxamination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 10124§W/W-100022

R Toegle

-

Bhavesh Dhupelia

28 April 2021 Partner
UDIN: 21042070AAAABN5876 Membership No. 042070
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Travel
Corporation (India) Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Travel
Corporation (India) Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
cffectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hercinafter referred to
as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating eﬁ'ectiveness

fantling of such internal financial controls, asscssing the risk that a material weakness exists,
Cen\r;:l?\&ﬁd)m ing X d evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
N°S@§§é{$§ d) risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the

f the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Travel
Corporation (India) Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inhcrent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 101248W/W100022

B Fed

Mumbai Bhavesh Dhupelia

28 April 2021 Partner
UDIN: 21042070 AAAABN5876 Membership No. 042070



Travel Corporation (India) Limited
(Farmerly known as SOTC Travel marragement limited)
Balance sheet

as at 31 March 2021

(Currency : Indian rupees in Lakhs, unies= otherwise stated )

Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
B ASSETS
(1) Non-current asscts
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 1,473.63 1,945.71
(b) Right of usc Asset 2 985.77 144129
(¢) Other intangible assets 3 69.44 88.05
{d) Intangible asset under development 2 134,61 -
(¢) Financial assets
{i} Investments 4 140.52 321.42
(it) Loans 3 37793 374.04
(1) Deferred tax assets (net) 6 1,619.22 45717
(g) Income tax assets 7 106.90 -
(h) Other non-current assets 8 : 30.89 86.36
Total nen-current assets 4,938,91 4.714.04
{2) Current asscts
(a) Financial assets :
(1) Trade receivables 9 930.67 4,550.86
(i1) Cash and cash equivalents 10 (a) 779.11 4,448.07
(111} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 10 (b) 19.78 4,018.65
(iv) Loans 11 75.72 85.69
{v} Other current financial assets 12 2443 3,595.55
(b) Other current asscts 13 1,556.46 3,130.95
Total current assets ' 3,385.87 19.829.77
TOTAL ASSETS 8,324.78 24.543 .81
1L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 14 1.00 1.00
(b) Other equity
(i) [nstruments entirely equity in nature 13 19,901.94 19,901.94
(if) Reserves and surplus 13 (17,801.03) (12,395.59)
Total equity 2,101.91 7,507.35
(2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities:
(i) Lease lability 16 511.42 979.24
{b) Provisions 17 176.50 193.14
Total non-current abilities 687.92 1,172.38
3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities :
(i) Short-term borrowings 18 975.23 1,149.46
(ii) Lease hability 19 611,96 570.36
(1) Trade payables
1.Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 35 - 1.30
2.Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 20 2,066.26 11,420.00
(iv) Other financial liabilities 21 141.85 178.38
(v) Derivative liabilities 22 - 103.79
(b) Other current habilities 23 1,719.31 2,296.03
(¢} Short-term provisions 24 20,34 37.58
 {d) Income tax Liabality 23 - 107.18
Total current liabilities 5,534.95 15,864.08
Total liabilities 6,222,87 17,036.46
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8.324.78 24,543.81
Significant accounting policics
The notes from 1'to 47 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
ForBSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directogs of
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Chartered Accountants
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New Dethi Mumbai

Mumbai
28 April 2021

Megha Sekharan
Company Secretary
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28 April 2021




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
(Formerly known as SOTC Travel management linited)
Statement of profit and loss
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency : Indian rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated )

(1) Revenue
(a) Revenue from operations
(b) Other income
Total income
(2) Expenses
(a) Cost of tours
{b) Employee benefits expense
(¢) Finance costs
(d) Depreciation and amortization expenses
(¢) Impairment loss
(F) Other expenses
Total expenses
3) (Loss) / Profit before tax
4 Tax expense:
(a) Current tax
(b) (Excess) tax provisions net for earlier years
(c) Deferred tax
(5) (Loss) / Profit after tax
(6) Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurements of defined benefit plan
(i1) Income tax expense on remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans
Other comprehensive (loss)/income (net of tax)
7 Total comprehensive income for the year
(8) Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic
(1i) Diluted

Significant accounting policies
The notes from 110 47 form an integral part of the {inancial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

Note

[N
~N Sy

(>N

33
33

For the year ended
31 March 2021

[For the year ended
31 March 2020

1,816.36 46,827.74
388.15 3,830.83
2,204.51 50,658.57
276.82 35.911.12
3,907.87 5,755.46
227.40 183.47
1,156.65 1,287.58
180.90 -
1,466.60 2,632.00
7,216.24 45,769.72
(5,011.73) 4,888.85
N 123745
(26.23) .
(1,184.71) (10.13)
(3,800.79) 3,661.53
90.04 (76.66)
(22.66) 19.29
67.38 (5737
(3,733.41) 3,604.16
(38,007.89) 36,615.26
(38,007.89) 1.84

ForBSR & Ceo. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 10

R.He

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Partner
Membership No: 042070

Mumbai
28 April 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Vv P
Managing Director
[DIN:02030005]
New Dethi

Gurugram
28 Aprit 2021

Tower B.
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M.G. Road,
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Madiavan Menon
Director
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited
(Formerly known as SOTC Travel management limited)
Statement of cash flows

Jor the year ended 31 Mareh 2021

(Currency : Indian rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated )

Cash flows from operating activitics:
(Loss) / Profit before tax

Adjustments for;
fmpairment loss
Depreciation of Property, plant and cquipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of ROU asset
(Gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment and ROU asset
Unclaimed credit balances no longer required, written back
Excess provision no fonger requried, written back
Operational lease rentals
Bad debts and Provision for doubtful debts and advances
Net unrealised foreign exchange differences
Expenses on employees stock options schemes (net)
Dividend income on investment in associate
Interest expense on ROU lease liability including finance lease
Interest income
Interest income - others
Gain on sale of investment in mutual fund
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/(asset)

Working capital Changes
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Decrease in other assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans & Advances
(Decrease) in trade & other payables, other financial liabilities and current liabilities
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions and employee benefits
Net cash flow from operations after working capiat adjustments
Income tax paid
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitics:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Acquisition of investment in mutual funds
Acquisition of investment in fixed deposit
Proceeds from disposal/redemption of investment in mutual fund
Proceeds from disposal/redemption of investment in fixed deposit
Proceeds {rom sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Dividend received from investment in associate

et cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

-

B

For the year ended
31 March'2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(5,011.73) 4,888.85
180.90 .
508.06 593.85

40,46 46.14
608.11 647.60
(17.91) (15.42)
(17.91) (210.25)
(1,526.11) (3,266.13)
32.63 32.03

- 34.49

58.12 177.84
328.47 334.30
- (137.20)

136.46 172.64
(225.60) (119.08)
(33.53) (30.74)
. (174.15)

90.04 (76.66)

(4,849.54) 2,898.09

3,697.70 888.56

1,619.38 15,992.01

6.98 (56.59)

(8,515.88) (15,927.96)
(33.88) 132.46

(8,075.24) 3.926.57

(187.85) (1,130.27)

(8,263.09) 2,796.30

(186.83) (841.70)
- (673,130.00)
(351.14) {22,376.26)
- 677,409.30

7,850.00 14,875.00

27.02 5022
280.55 5227
- 137.20
7,619.60 (3,823.97)




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
(Formerly known as SOTC Travel managemens limited)
Statement of cash flows (Continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency : Indian rupees in Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated )

Cash flows from financing activitics:

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Dividend Paid (including dividend distribution tax) (2,000.00) -
Repayment of lease liability (566.50) (531.91)
Finance charges paid (136.46) (172.64)
Net cash flow (used in) financing activities (2,702.96) (704.53)
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,346.45) (1,732.22)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 3,298.61 5,179.77
Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents (148.28) (148.94)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (196.12) 3,298 61
Note:
(a) Components of cash and cash equivalents :
Cash on hand 14.22 95.68
Balances with scheduled banks
-- Current Account 601.51 590.97
-- EEFC Account 63.38 761.42
- Deposit Account (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 100.00 3,000.00
Less: Bank overdraft (975.23) (1,149 46)
(196.12) 3,298.61

(b) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method"

Statements".

Significant accounting policies
The notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7- * Cash Flow

For BS R & Co. LLP DipakeBers™ . M dRAVAT Menon

Chartered Accountants Managing Directar Director
Firm's RegistratioryNo: 10124 3V/W-100022 [DIN:02030003] [DIN No: 00008542]
> New Delhi Mumbai

3-H-

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Partner

wed-et®

Megha Sekharan

Membership No: 042070 Company Secretary
Mumbai Gurugram Mumbai
28 April 2021 ) 28 April 2021 28 April 2021
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited
(Iormerly known as SOTC Travel management liniifed)
Statement of Changes in Equity (SOCIE}

Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency @ Indian rupees in Lakbs, unless othenwvise stated )

{a) Equity share capital

At the conurencement of the vear

Changes i cquity shape capitsl during the year

At the end of the year

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of Shares Amount No: of Shares Ameunt
10000 ‘LoG 10,000 L0
1,008 160 16,060 1.00

(b) Othier equity

Particulars

Balance at 1 Aprit 2619

Profit for the year

Other compreheasive inceme, net of tas

Share-based pavinnts [Note 43}

Shares 1ssued dunag the year (ot 42

Balancv at 31 March 2020

Tnstruments entiecly equity In

Reserves and surplus

nature . Total other
Preference shares Retalncd carhiing~ Employec share option Capital Reserve equity
outstanding
(16 B (16.332.89) (1633203
. - . 3.661.53
- - - : (3737
- - 33430 B 33430
19.901.94 - - 19.901 94
19.901.91 3.503.00 334,30 (16.3318%) 730635

Particulars

Batance at § April 2020

Profit for the year

Othier comprehemnsive income, net of tay
Share-based payments (Note 43}

Sha
Dividend paid et of Profits (Including dividend distribution tax)

sued during Lhe year

Balance at 31 March 2021

Trstruments entirely cquity in

Reserves and surplus

nature Total other
Preference shares Retained eamning ~ Eniployecsharcoption  Capital Reserve equity
autstanding

591,54 360300 EEAT (1633289 TS06.35
- {3.800.99) - - (33"1).79)
B 67.38 - . 67.38
3 . 32797 . 797
- {2,000,60) - - (2,000.,00)

19.901.94 (2.130.41) 662.27 {16,332.89) 2.100.91

Significant accounting policies
The notes from I to 47 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our réport of even date attached.
For BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accowntants
Firm's Registration N

s

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Parmer
Membership No: 042070

101 248W/W-1

Mumbai
April 2021

For and on behalf of the Board nfDirc?ors ol
A

Dipak Deva
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Sector-25
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited
(Formerly known as SOTC Travel Management Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1 Company overview

Travel Corporation (India) Limited is engaged in Travel and Tourism business and
working as Travel agent and Tour operator. The Company mainly operates in Inbound
Tours. During previous financial year 2019-20, a Composite scheme of Arrangement and
Amalgamation took place pursuant to which inbound business of the company consisting
of business of handling inward foreign tourist activity was transferred to SOTC Travel
Management Private Limited. The name of SOTC Travel Management Private Limited
was changed to SOTC Travel Management Limited and then further changed to Travel
Corporation (India) Limited. The Company is wholly owned by Thomas Cook (India)
Limited (100 %).

1B Significant accounting policies

IB.1  Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair value or at amortised cost at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. The financial
statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 28" April
2021.The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR”) or (‘Rs’) which is
also the company’s functional currency and all values are rounded off to nearest lakhs
('00,000) except where otherwise indicated.

As per the Notification No. G.S.R. 742 (E) dated 27 July 2016, the company has availed
exemption from preparing the Consolidated Financial Statement under Rules 6 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

1B.2  Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS required the management of the Company to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities,
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. The estimates
and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is
- recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

) jﬁdgements

Im‘ormatlon about judgments made in applying accounting polje t have the most
gmﬁcant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial #igcluded in the
lHowing notes:




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
(Formerly known as SOTC Travel Management Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1B

1B.2

I1B.3

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Use of estimates and judgements (Continued)

Note 6- Recognition of deferred tax assets
Note 43- Estimation of inputs for fair value of Share based payment instrument

Note 34C-Determining the amount of expected credit loss on financial assets (including
trade receivables)

Note 39-Lease classification

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment in the financial statement is included in the following
notes:

Note 2 and 3- Estimate of useful life used for the purposes of depreciation and
amortization on property plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets;

Note 17 & 38- Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Note 40-Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions
about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources

Note 34 — Fair Value of financial instrument.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a
inancial impact on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Current / non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.
Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
company’s normal operating cycle;

b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
¢) Itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

utrent assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets
are classified as non-current. @i\j;z ;




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
(Formerly known as SOTC Travel Management Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

‘(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1B

1B.3

1B.4

Assets Estimated useful life (in years)
Furniture & Fixtures e 10
Office equipment’s (including air conditionef’s S
" Vehicles ' ’ 8
. Computers 3
4 Computer Servers/Network 6

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Current / non-current classification (Continued)

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) Itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c¢) Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do
not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other
liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash equivalents. Based on the above definition and the nature of
services provided, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Property Plant and Equipment’s

Measurement at recognition:

Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance is charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation:

Depreciation is provided pro-rata to the period of use, under the straight line method, over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The Company believes that the existing useful lives
represents the best useful estimated lives of the assets and are at the rates which
corresponds to the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013.




Travel Corporation (India) Limited

(frormerly known as SOTC Travel Management Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1B

I1B.4

1B.5

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property Plant and Equipment’s (Continued)

Depreciation: (Continued)

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or useful life of the
asset whichever is lower.

Property, plant and equipment not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet
are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress".

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The
assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains
and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in profit or loss within other gains / (losses).

Intangible assets

Measurement at recognition:

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The amortization period and the amortization
method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the
asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed
accordingly. The carrying value of these intangible assets is reviewed at least annually for
impairment and adjusted to the recoverable amount if required.

Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognized as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company are recognized as
intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

e it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use
e management intends to complete the software and use or sell it

o there is an ability to use or sell the software

e it can be demonstrated how the soffwaré: will generate probable future economic

Rﬁ{ﬁZ{? efits




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
(Formerly known as SOTC Travel Management Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
1B Significant accounting policies (Continued)

I1B.5  Intangible assets (Continued)

e adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the software are available, and

» The expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software include employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Amortisation:

Amortisation methods and periods:

| "Asset Useful Life
Software 4 years

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from the
derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

I1B.6 Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to
amortization and are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that the asset may be impaired.

Asscts that are subject to depreciation and ~amortization and assets representing
investments in subsidiary and associate companies are reviewed for impairment, whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Such circumstances include, though are not limited to, significant or sustained decline in
revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic environment. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for
in the statement of profit and loss.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash
generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less cost to sell and value in use. To calculate value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market rates and the risk specific to the asset. For an asset
that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Fair value less cost to sell is the best
estimate of the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction
between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the cost of disposal. Impairment losses, if
ny, are recognized in the Statement: of?ro it and Loss and included in depreciation and
{:ﬁ ortization expense. Impairment losseyarc*m(/erséd in the Statement of Profit and Loss
_g ly to the extent that the asset’s carry‘ Vel oqpt does not exceed the carrying amount
at would have been determined if no imj lossj ‘had previously been recognized.




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
(Formerly known as SOTC Travel Management Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1B

1B.7

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

- In the principle market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a particular market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability
The principle or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

- Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets
and liabilities on the basis of the nature characteristics and risk of the asset or liability and

_[[the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.




Travel Corporation (India) Limited

(Formerly known as SOTC Travel Management Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1B

1B.8

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i.

a.

Financial assets
Classification

The Company shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL) on the basis of its business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement , a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Amortized Cost;

- FVOCI - debt investment;

- FVOCI —equity investment; or

- FVTPL

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at FVTPL, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Equity investment

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments in companies other than
equity investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates at fair value. Where
the Company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such
investments are recognized in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right
to receive payments is established.

Subsequent measurement

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a
business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principle and interest on the principle amount
outstanding.
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1B Significant accounting policies (Continued)

IB.8  Financial instruments (Continued)

i.  Financial assets (Continued)
De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the
Company’s balance sheet) when:

*  Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

*  When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it
has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company
also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

* Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial
assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g.,
bank balance, deposits and loans

b) Trade receivables

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss
allowance on:

*  Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.

T:H‘e application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in-¢redit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss aIlowance based on lifetime ECLs
_'?at each reportmg date, right from its initial recognition. R
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Financial liabilities
Classification

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gain and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage its exposure to_inferest rate and foreign exchange risks. For
contracts where hedge accounting, is not; folloWed such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognized at fair value ofi T date 0\;wh1ch a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re- measu}ed‘at falr value through profit or loss account.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets§;when the falr value is positive and as financial

liabilities when the fair value is negatlv
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IB  significant accounting policies (Continued)

IB.9  Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration paid for
services. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those services. Revenue from rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes
and discounts.

(a) Income from operations

The Company earns revenue primarily from Travel and Tourism business and working
as Travel agent and Tour operator in In-bound tours. Revenue from inbound tour
packages are recognized on the completion of the performance obligation which is on
the date of arrival of the tour.

It also includes income from the sale of airline tickets which is recognized as an agent
on the basis of net commission earned, at the time of issuance of tickets, as the
Company does not assume any performance obligation post the confirmation of the
issuance of an airline ticket to the customer. Performance linked bonuses from airlines
are recognized as and when the performance obligations under the schemes are
achieved.

Commission income (net) from hotel and other travel services such as, optional tours
ete. are recognized at the time of providing the service.

Marketing fees and other incentive income are recognized when it’s is confirmed.
Annual shopping commission revenue is recognized over the period of the contract.
Facility support income is recognized on accrual basis over the period of the
agreement.

(b) Other Income
Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established.
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Export benefits, incentive & licenses are recognised as income when the application is
made to receive the credit scrips as per terms of scheme and when there is no
significant uncertainty regarding ultimate collection.

(¢) Contract balances

(i) Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services rendered to
the customer. If the Company performs by rendermg services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration- or before pavment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideratiogfthats-conditional.
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1B.10

IB.11

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(¢) Contract balances
(ii) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company renders services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Cost recognition

Costs and expenses are recognized when incurred and have been classified according to
their primary nature. The costs of the company are broadly categorised in Cost of tour,
employee benefit expenses, depreciation and amortization and other operating expenses.
Cost of tour include guide cost, accommodation cost, transport cost etc. Employee benefit
expenses include employee compensation, allowances paid, contribution to various funds
and staff welfare expenses. Other operating expenses majorly include advertisement, repair
& maintenance, rent, travelling and conveyance, legal and professional fees and
communication expense.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to
be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are
unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the
amount expected to be paid, e.g. salaries, short term bonus, if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee, and the amount can be estimated reliably.

(b)  Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company’s provident funq
provident fund scheme and the: cnjaloyees state msumnce contribution is recognized
as an expense in the Qtatcment oJr proﬂ ‘and" loss: durmg the period in which the

’
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1B significant accounting policies (Continued)

B.12  Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Post-employment benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plan

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s
net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their services
in the current and prior periods. The benefits are discounted to determine its present
value.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined
based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date,
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as
giving rise to an additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each
unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of the obligations under the defined benefit plan are
based on the market yields on government bonds as at the balance sheet date. When
the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognized asset is limited to
the net total of any unrecognized actuarial losses and past service costs and the
present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises actuarial gains
and losses are recognized in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then net defined benefit liability (asset) taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related
to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit and loss.

Provident Fund

The Company makes specified monthly contribution towards the employees’
provident fund to the provident fund trust administered by the Company. The
minimum interest payable by the provident fund trust to the beneficiaries every year
is notified by the Government. The Company has an obligation to make good the
shortfall, if any, between the return on respective investments of the trust and the
notified interest rate.

Compensated absences

The accrual for unutilized leave- balance is-determined for the entire available leave
balance standing to the c1ed1t oF the employees at period-end. The leave balance
cligible for carry — forward'is vdlued"at eross compensatlon cost.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)  Share based payments

The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards — i.e. stock options —
granted to employees is recognized as personnel expenses, with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the employees become entitled to the
awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of
awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are
cxpected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is
based on the number of awards that meet the related service and non-market
performance conditions at the vesting date.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded into Indian rupees using the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the respective transactions. Exchange difference arising on
foreign currency transactions, between the actual rate of settlement and the rate on the date
of the transactions, is charged or credited to the Statement of profit and loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet
date are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date and the
overall net exchange gain or loss on such conversion, if any, is credited / charged to the
Statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary assets are recorded at the rates prevailing on
the date of the transactions. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at historical
cost. A foreign currency monetary item is classified as long-term if it has original maturity
of one year or more.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in statement of
profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items
recognized directly in equity or in OCI.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous
years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and

b) Intends either to settle on a net basis? or to realise the asset and settle the liability

LT ~.




Travel Corporation (India) Limited

(Formerly known as SOTC Travel Management Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1B

I1B.14

I1B.15

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for:

e temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss;

e temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates to the
extent that the Company’s is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

e Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable
profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company’s expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax asset / liabilities in respect of temporary differences which originate and
reverse during the tax holiday period are not recognized. Deferred tax assets / liabilities in
respect of temporary differences that originate during the tax holiday period but reverse
after the tax holiday period are recognized.

Earnings per share ("EPS")

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity and
dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding during the period except where the results
would be anti-dilutive. The dilutive potential-éqgi ity.shares are deemed to be converted as
Pisae beginning of the period, unless they have-been issued at a later date.
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IB.16 Leases

As a lessee

As a lessee, the Company leases mainly Buildings and Vehicles. The Company during the
preceding years classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of
whether the lease transferred significantly the entire risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset to the Company. Under Ind AS 116, the Company
recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

The lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 9% Per annum has been applied to
lease liabilities. The Company has used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
similar characteristics.

Right-of-use assets are measured at their carrying amount as if Ind AS 116 had been
applied since the commencement date, discounted using the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

After application of Ind AS 116 w.e.f. I Apr’2019, the nature of expenses has changed
from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-of-use assets, and
finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability.

The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to
modification in terms of lease as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset, lease liability and
statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification in terms.

IB.17 Provisions and Contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognized at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date. The provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis.

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines,
penalties, etc. are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the
amount can be estimated reliably.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a
present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do
not warrant provisions, but are dlsclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is
remote.

/&,w‘w_t@?}» ow of economic benefits Wi I
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Going Concern

As at 31 March 2021, the Company’s net worth is Rs 2,101.91 lakhs. The Company during

the year has made a net loss of Rs 3,800.79 lakhs (2020: profit of Rs. 3,661.53 lakhs). On
account of the COVID 19 restrictions, the business of the Company has been severely
affected and accordingly, the Company is significantly dependent on its holding Company
for its financial support. The Company has obtained support letter from its holding company
indicating that the holding company will continue to provide financial support as is necessary
to maintain the Company as a going concern for the foreseeable future and to meet its
liabilities as and when they fall due for the for a period of minimum twelve months from the
balance sheet date. Post 31 March 2021, the Company has received Rs 1,000 lakhs as a loan
from the Holding Company.

Management believes that the future business plan and continued support from holding
company will enable the Company to settle liabilities as they fall due. Based on the above,
the Company is confident of its ability to meet the funds requirement and to continue its
business as a going concern and accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on
that basis.

Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a
notification amended Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise
Division I, IT and III of Schedule III and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments
relating to Division II which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to
comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly
distinguished as current or non-current.

Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity
share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current
reporting period.

specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-
progress and intangible asset under development.

If a company has not used fu11d5~f0r the spemﬁc purpose for whlm it was borrowed from
banks and financial 1nst1tut10
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1B.19  Recent Pronouncements (Continued)

* Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance
with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of
companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans
and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related
parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:

* Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR),
undisclosed income and crypto or virtual currency specified under the head
‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of the standalone financial
statements ‘

‘he amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give
ct:to them as required by law.
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2 Property, plant and equipment
Particulars Computer Furniture and Vehicles (i) Office Total
hardware fixtures equipment
Gross carrying value as at 31 Mar 2019 417.22 812.70 1,308.17 299.28 2.837.37
Add:Additions during the year 77.05 34.68 661.31 14,58 787.62
Less:Deletion during the year 1118 1.09 98.77 0.51 111.55
Less: On account of Transition to Ind AS 116 {refer Note (i)} - - 79.14 - 79.14
Gross carrying value as at 31 Mar 2020 483.09 846.29 1,791.57 313.33 3.434.30
Add:Additions during the year 1.25 45.08 0.40 10.69 57.42
Less:Deletion during the year 11.54 27.93 62.14 10.76 112,37
Gross carrying value as at 31 Mar 2021 472.80 863.44 1,729.83 313,28 3,379.35
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2019 276.20 406.45 76.76 210.81 970.22
Add:Depreciation charge during the year 97.61 24599 226.06 24.18 593.84
Less:Depreciation on Deletion during the year 10.85 1.03 57.99 0.51 70.38
Less: On account of Transition to Ind AS 116 {refer Note (i)} - - 5.09 - 5.09
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2020 362,96 651.41 239.74 234.48 1,488.59
Add:Depreciation charge during the year 74.22 153.02 255.30 25.53 508.06
Less:Depreciation on Deletion during the year 11.18 27.49 47.34 4.93 90.94
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2021 426.00 776.94 447.70 255.08 1,905.72
Carrying value as at 31 March 2020 120.13 194.88 1,551.83 78.87 1,945.71
Carrying value as at 31 March 2021 46.80 86.50 1,282.13 58.20 1,473.63

(i) Leased Assets:

Vehicles included the following amounts for the year ended 31 march 2019 ,where the company is a lessce under a finance lease. From 1 April 2019 same has been transferred to
ROU Asset on account of transition to IND As 116:

Particulars March 31,2020
Cost/Decmed Cost 79.14
Less: On account of Transition to Ind AS 116 79.14
Accumulated Depreciation 5.09
Less: On account of Transition to Ind AS 116 5.09
Net Carrying Amount -
2 Intangible Asset under development
As at 31 March 2019 -
Add:Additions (Iurinv‘or the year 0.49
Less:Assets capitalised during the year 0.49
As at 31 March 2020 -
Add:Additions during the year 151.73
Less:Assets capitalised during the vear 17.12
As at 31 March 2021 134.61
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3 Other intangible assets

Particulars Computer Software
Gross carrying value as at 31 Mar 2019 257.94
Add:Additions during the year 11.59

Less:Deletion during the year -

Gross carrying value as at 31 Mar 2020 269.53

Add:Additions during the year 2185

Less:Deletion during the year -

Gross carrying value as at 31 Mar 2021 291.38
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2019 135.34
Add:Amortisation charge during the year 46.14

Less:Amortisation on Deletion during the year -

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2020 181.48

Add:Amortisation charge during the year 40.46

Less:Amortisation on Deletion during the year -

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2021 221.94

Carrying value as at 31 March 2020 88.05

Carrying value as at 31 March 2021 69.44
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I1.

*

Investments

Investments in Equity instruments
Unquoted investments *

[nvestment in subsidiaries: )
14,248 (31 March 2019: 14,248) equity shares of Nepali Rs 100, fully paid up, of SITA World
Travel (Nepal) Private Limited (of these 3,720 equity shares were allotted as fully paid bonus shares)

190,000 (31 March 2019: 190,000) equity shares of Sri Lankan Rs 10, fully paid up, of SITA World
Travel Lanka (Pvt.) Limited (of these 40,000 equity shares were allotted for consideration other than
cash) .

Less: Impairment loss

Investment in Joint Venture:

980.000 (31 March 2019: 980,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up, of TCI Go Vacation
india Private Limited.

Investments in Preference Shares

Investment in subsidiary:

43,09,894 (31 March 2019:Nil) Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference share of Sri Lankan
Rs 10 each, fully paid up, of SITA World Travel Lanka (Pvt.) Limited allotted for consideration
other than cash

Less: Impairment loss

* Carried at cost

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments (net of impairment)

Loans

To Others
Security deposits- (Unsecured, Considered Good)

Financial asset carried at amortised cost

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

42.52 42.52
9.17 9.17
(9.17) -
98.00 98.00
171.73 171.73
(171.73) .
140.52 321.42
140.52 321.42
377.93 374.04
377.93 374.04
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6 Income taxes

A. The major component of Income tax expenses are as under:
(i) Income tax recognised in Statement of profit and loss

Current tax

In respect of current year

Deferred tax

In respect of current year

Incame Tax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss

(ii) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Income tax expense recognised in OCI

B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit for the year is as under :

Profit before tax

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (Current year 25.168% and Previous Year 25.1 68%)

Tax effect of:

Exempt income - dividend from subsidiary
Impairment loss

Change in tax rate

CSR expense

Others

Tax expense as pe

Statement of profit and loss
O

For the year ended For the year ended 31

31 March 2021

March 2020

(26.23) 1,237.45
(1,184.71) (10.13)
(1,210.94) 1,227.32

22.66 (19.29)
22.66 (19.29)
(5,011.73) 4,888.85
(1,261.35) 1,230.43
- (34.53)

45.53 -

- (25.68)

8.38 -

19.16 37.81
(1,188.28) 1,208.03
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6

Income taxes (Continued)

The major components of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets arising on account of timing differences are as follows:

31 March 2021

Balance Recognised in Recognised Net Deferred
1 April 2020 profit or loss in OCI tax assct
/(liability)
Deferred tax assct
Property, plant and equipment 333.93 (59.65) - (59.65) 274.28
ROU asset / liability 40.61 (8.40) - (8.40) 3221
Employee benefits 80.33 11.10 (22.66) (11.56) 68.77
Provisions 9.87 (9.88) - (9.88) (0.01)
Disallowances under IT Act (7.57) 21.56 - 21.56 13.99
Carry forward losses - 1,203.52 - 1,203.52 1,203.52
Allowances under IT Act - 26.46 - 26.46 26.46
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 457.17 1,184.71 (22.66) 1,162.05 1,619.22
Offsetting of deferred tax assets and deferred tax - - - - -
liabilitics
Deferred tax a~sets / (liabilities) 457.17 1,184.71 (22.66) 1,162.05 1,619.22
31 March 2020
Balance Recognised in Recognised Net Deferred
1 April 2019 profit or loss in OCI tax asset
/(liability)
Deferred tax asset
Property, plant and equipment 441.57 (107.64) - (107.64) 333.93
ROU asset / liability - 40.61 - 40.61 40.61
Employee benefits (13.16) 74.20 19.29 93.49 80.33
Provisions (0.66) 10.53 - 10.53 9.87
Disallowances under IT Act - (7.57) - (7.57) (7.57)
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 427.75 10.13 19.29 29.42 43717
Offsetting of deferred tax assets and deferred tax - - - - -
liabilities -
Deferredax assetsv-¢liabilities) 427.75 10.13 19.29 29.42 457.17
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(Currency : Indian rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated )

7 Other tax assets
Advance tax [Net of provision for income tax Rs. 1.237.45 lakhs ] {31 March 2020 Rs. Nil }

8 Other non-current assets
Prepaid expenses
Capital advances

9 Trade receivables
Trade receivables - (Unsecured, Considered Good)
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivable

Trade receivables includes :
Dues from related party (refer Note 44).

10(a) Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks :
-In current Accounts
-In EEFC Accounts
-Deposit Accounts ( with original maturity of 3 months or less )
Cash on hand

10(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above
Balances with banks other than cash and cash equivalents:
Bank deposit (with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months)

11 Loans -
Security deposits - (Unsecured, Considered Good)

12 Other current financial assets
Bank deposit (with original maturity of more than 12 months)
Interest acerued but not due on fixed deposits with banks
Other receivable - (Unsecured. Considered Good)

13 Other current assets
Prepaid expenses
Balances with Government Authorities
Advance to vendors - (Unsecured, Considered Good)
Advance expenses
Staff advances- (Unsecured, Considered Good)
Other assets

Advance to vendors includes :
Dues fromrelated party (refer Note 44).

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

106.90 :
106.90 -
15.44 43.86
15.45 42.50
30.89 86.36
930.67 4,550.86
- 39.27
930.67 4,590.13
- (39.27)
930.67 4,550.86
218.82 165.34
601.51 590.97
63.38 761.42
100.00 3,000.00
14.22 95.68
779.11 4,448.07
19.78 4,018.65
19.78 4.018.65
75.72 85.69
75.72 85.69
- 3,500.00
0.05 54.99
24.08 40.56
24.13 3.595.55
124.42 160.94
183.03 212.82
1,226.43 2,677.52
0.64 39.20
6.19 26.34
15.75 14.13
1,556.46 3.130.95
- 719.01
6.19 0.30
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31 March 2021 31 March 2020
14 Share capital

(a) Equity share capital

Authorised :

10.000 (31 March 2020: 10,000) equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 1.00 1.00

Issucd, subscribed and paid up:

10,000 (31 March 2020: 10,000) equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00

Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

Equity share :

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of Shares Amount in lakhs No. of Shares Amount in Jakhs
At the commencement of the vear 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Less: Changes during the year - - - -
Quistanding at the end of the vear 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

Rights attached to Equity shares

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares with voting rights having a par value of Rs 10/- each per share. Each holder of Equity
Shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupces. The dividend, if any proposed by the
Board will be paid subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In
the event of liquidation of the Company, the Equity shareholders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferentia’ amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the shareholders.

iii Equity Shares held by holding company / ultimate holding company / subsidiaties of holding company

Equity share

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of Shares Amount in lakhs No. of Shares Amount in lakhs
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid-up held by:
Thomas Caok (India) Limited (Holding Company') 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

iv Sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company is set out below:

Equity share
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of Shares No of shares No. of Sharcs No of sharcs

o,
Yo Yo

Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up, held by:

xg\(\'i)mpan)") 10,000 100.00% 10,000 100.00%
N
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31 March 2021 31 March 2020
15 Other equity

(i) Instruments entirely equity in nature

Preference shares :
i Authorised : 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

300,600,000 (31 March 2020: 300.000.0000) 0.01% Non-Cumulative, Optionally’ Convertibte 30,000.00 30,000.00
Redeemable Preference shares of Rs 10 each

Issued and subscribed and paid up:

199.019.396 (31 March 2020 : 199.019.396) 0.01% Non-Cumulative, Optionally Convertible 19,901.94 19.901.94
Redeemable Preference shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up

19,901.94 19.901.94
i Reconciliation of number of Preference shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Nu, of Shares Amount in Jakhs No. of Shares Amount in lakhs
At the commencement of the vear 19,90,19,396 19,901.94 - -
Add: Shares issued to Thomas Cook (India) Limited - - 19,90.19.396 19.901.94
(Reter Note 42)
Ouvtstanding at the end of the year 19,90,19,396 19,901.94 19,90,19,396 19,901.94

iii Rights attached to Preference shares

Preference shares outstanding at the end of 20 years shall be converted into equity shares as per the conversion ratio of one preference shares
of Rs. 10 each into one equily share of Rs. 10 each. Failing this, preference shares shall be converted into equity shares by the Company on
11-12-2039. The holders of these shares are entitled to non-cumulative dividend of 0.01%. Preference shares carry a preferential right as to
dividend over equity shareholders. where dividend is not dectared in respect of a financial year in the case of non-cumulative preference
shares, the entitlement for that year lapses. In the event of winding up, preference shareholders have a preferential right over equity
shareholders o be repaid to the extent of capital paid-up and dividend in arrears on such shares. The Company has an oplion to convert the
Preference shares or redeem the preference shares at any time after the end of' | year from the date of allotment.

iv Preference Shares held by holding company

31 Murch 2021 31 March 2020
Na. of Shares Amount in Jakhs No. of Sharcs Amount in lakhs
Preference shares of Rs 10 each fully paid-up held
Thomas Cook India) Limited (‘Holding Company’) 19,90,19,396 19,901.94 19,90,19,396 19,901.94
- 19,90,19,396 19,901.94 19,90,19,396 19.901.94

v Sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company is set out below:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of Shures No of shares No. of Shares No of shares
Yo Y
Preference shares of Ry 10 euch, fully paid-ip. hetd
by
‘r"rnmnu\ Cook (Idia) Limited (Holding Compuny'y 19.90,14,396 100.00% 19,90,19,396 100.00%

vi Aggregate Number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Na. of Shares No of shures No. of Shares No of shares
Yo %
Preference shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up, held
by:
Thomas Cook (India} Limited (Holding Company’) 19,90,19,396 100.00% 19,90,19,396 100.00%
vii Movement of instruments entirely equity in nature
r 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of Shares Amount in lakhs No. of Shares Amount in lakhs
Lt heginning:of the 19.90,19,396 19,901.94 - -
) R
during the.ye - - 19.90,19,396 19.901.94 H
- - - - i
A ‘e
ClasingrBalgnees | 5 19,90,19,396 19,901.94 19,90,19,396 19,901.94 13
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15 Other equity

(ii) Reserves and surplus:
Retained earnings
At the commencement of the year
Add: (Loss) / profit for the year
Less: Dividend paid out of Profits (Including dividend distribution tax of Rs. 150.00 lakhs)

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

At the end of the year

Other comprehensive income:
At the commencement of the year
Add:Other comprehensive income for the year

At the end of the year

Employee share option outstanding
At the commencement of the year
Add: share based payments

At the end of the year

Capital reserve
At the commencement and end of the year

At the end of the year

Total Reserve & Surplus

3,660.37 (1.16)
(3,800.79) 3,661.53
(2,000.00) -
(2,140.42) 3,660.37

(57.37) .
67.38 (57.37)
10.01 (57.37)

334.30 -

327.97 334.30

662.27 334.30

(16,332.89) (16,332.89)
(16,332.89) (16,332.89)
(17,801.03) (12.395.59)

Nature and purpose of reserves
i.Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits of the Company earned till date net of appropriations.

ii.Employee share option outstanding

The share option outstanding account is used to recognised the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under the Employee stock option

plan. This includes options issued to the employees of the company by Holding Company.

iii. Capital reserve

The Company recognises profit and loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the company’s equity instruments to capital reserve. Capital reserve

comprises of profits/gains of capital nature earned by the Company and credited directly to such reserve.

16 Lease liability

Long term maturities of right of use lease liability (including finance lease)

17 Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity [refer Note 38]

18 Short-term borrowings
secured

511.42 979.24
5 2 979.24
176.50 193.14
176.50 193.14

1.149.46

1,149.46




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
(Formerly known as SOTC Travel management limited)
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2021

(Currency : Indian rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated )

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Lease liability

Current maturities of right of use lease Liability (including finance lease)

Trade and other payables

Due to micro, small and medium cnterprises [refer Note 35]
Due to others

Trade payables includes :

Dues to related party ( refer Note 44 ).

Current - other financial liabilities

Accrued salary and benefits

Directors commission payable
Other financial liability

Current - other financial liabilitics includes:
Dues to related party (refer Note 44 ).

Derivative liabilities

Derivative liabilities

Other current liabilities

Customers' advances
Statutory dues

Short-texm provisions

Provision for employee benefits:
Compensated absences

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

611.96 570.36
611.96 570.36

- 1.30
2,066.26 11,420.00
2,066.26 11,421.30
587.43 653.25
138.75 112.47

- 5595

3.10 9.96
141.85 178.38
0.13 1.94

- 103.79

- 103.79
1,630.60 1,789.04
88.71 506.99
1,719.31 2,296.03
20.34 37.58
20.34 37.58

- 107.18

107.18




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
(Formerly known as SOTC Travel management limited)
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency : Indian rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated )

26  Revenue from operations

(A)  Sales and services
Income from tours

(B)  Other operating revenue
Commission income
Marketing fees and other incentive income
Unclaimed credit balances no longer required, written back
Excess provision written back
Other miscellaneous operating income

(Refer Note 45 for IND AS 115 Disclosure )

27 Other income

Interest on deposits and investments
Interest on Inter-Corporate deposits
Interest income - others

Bad debts recovered

Dividend on equity shares - subsidiary
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net)
Management fees income

Facility support income

Royalty and other income

Profit on sale of mutual fund units
Exchange gain (net) (including forward exchange contract)
Export incentives

Sharing of group cost

28 Costof tour:

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

243.15 42,134.24

243.15 42,134.24

. 1,145.58

6.11 36.59

17.91 210.25

1,526.11 3,266.15

23.08 34.93

1,573.21 4,693.50

1,816.36 46,827.74

225.60 106.95

- 12.13

33.53 30.74

1.95 31.98

- 137.20

17.91 15.42

0.94 125.01

84.62 125.98

0.08 80.09

- 174.15
23.52 .

- 2,982.99

- 8.19

388.15 3,830.83

276.82 35,911.12

276.82 35,911.12
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29

30

31

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and other allowances

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Compensated absences

Gratuity

Share-based payment to employees

Employee stock expense

Staff welfare

Finance costs
Interest expense

Interest expense on ROU lease liability including finance lease
Other finance charges

Impairment loss

Impairment in value of investment

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

3,296.65 4,945 44
178.07 202.37
(17.24) 2.11

71.33 56.45
183.77 282.95
144.70 51.35

50.59 214.79

3,907.87 5,755.46

90.94 9.99
136.46 172.64

- 0.84
227.40 183.47
180.90 -

180.90
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32 QOther expenses

Legal and professional charges
Operational lease rentals
Travelling expenses

Exchange loss (net) (including forward exchange contract)
Advertisement and publicity
Repairs and maintenance — others
Electricity charges
Communication

Housekeeping charges

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Sales promotion

Director commission

Auditors' remuneration

Security services

Printing and stationery

Corporate social responsibility expenses
Provision for doubtful debts

Bad debts and advance written off
Donation

Bank charges

Miscellaneous expenses

Auditor's remuneration (excluding taxes)
As auditor

- Statutory audit

- Tax Audit

-Others

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

558.16 930.89
283.70 314.94
- 233.23

- 35.15
15.70 188.87

189.36 261.92
0.86 102.06
53.35 87.59
51.23 77.53
180.77 84.50
33.56 53.50
3.29 43.90
(20.93) 20.58
37.12 45.14
16.49 21.22
1.77 24.84
33.31 )
(39.27) 34.49
39.27 ;

- 0.29
11.34 35.42
17.52 36.03

1,466.60 2,632.09
29.70 33.00
2.00 2.00
4.00 7.50
1.42 2.64
37.12 45.14
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33  Earnings per share (EPS)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit after tax (A) (3,800.79) 3,661.53
Number of equity shares
Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator in calculating Basic earning per share (B) 10,000 10,000
Add: Adjustment on account of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference shares # 19,90,19,396 19,90,19,396
Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator in calculating diluted earning per share (C) 19,90,29,396 19,90,29,396
Basic and diluted carnings per share
D. Basic earnings per share (A/B) (38,007.89) 36,615.26
E. Diluted earnings per share (A/C)* (38,007.89) [.84

calculating equity shares outstanding and the weighted average number of cquity shares for the year ended 31 March 2020, the equity shares to be
-Heme have been considered as outstanding from the beginning of the accounting year.

# For the purpose of
1ssucd pursuant Lo 2

The c.ﬁcot of conversromot wmpuhory convertible preference shares and into equity shares has not been considered, being anti-dilutive.
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34 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management
A Accounting classification and fair values

Carrving amounts and {air values of (inancial assets and (inanciai liabilitics, including their levels in the [air value hicrarchy, arc presented below.

Jll March 2021+ b Carrying amount Fair value
| al instrwments  Financial instruments  Financial instrumnents  Dexivative instrument Tatai Level - Quoted price Level 2 - Significant Level 3 - Si Total
1 measured at fair value  measured at faiv value measured at smortized not in hedging X in active markets observable inputs  unobservable inputs
through profit or loss through cost relationship
(FVTPL) comprehensive income

r (FVTOCT)
!mewm wxsets not measured at fair value
e e s - - 930.67 - 930.67 - - - -
Casiaimd vasis vun aierts - - T79.11 - 719.11 B - - -
i““”* balances other than cash and cash equivalents abo - - 19.78 - 19.78 - - - -
[Other Granciat assets

- Newecurrent - - 377.93 - 377.93 - - - -

- B 99.85 - - - - -
- - 2,207.34 - 2,207.34 - - N N

Finaneial tiabilities not measured at fair vahie

Trade pavables - - 2,066.26 - 2,06 - - - -
Shart Term Borrowing - - 975.23 - 97 - - - -
Other financis] Habilities

- Non-current - - 511.42 - S1L42 - - - b -
- Current - - 753.81 - 753.81 - - - .
|

Bul fimancial lighi - B 4,306.72 - 4,306.72 - - . B

i

T . <
S g’c'ggx;‘?gukm R nture arc being carricd at cost amounting Rs. 140.52 lakhs
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34 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

fica

n and fair values (Confinued)
and fair vatues of financial asscts and financial liabilities, including their levels in the [air value hicrarchy, are presented below.

Al Accounting clas:

Carrying amounts

31 Mareh 2020% Carrying amount Fair value

al mstruments Financial instruments Derivative instrument Towd  Level i - Quoted price Loevel 2 - 8i ant Lewi3-

cial instruments
measured at (air value

sured at fair

alue measured st amortized not in hedging in active markets obscrvable inpuls e fpuis
through profit or loss

(FVTPL)

CnsIve cost relationship
income (FVTOCT)

ts nol measured at fair value

rade receivables - - 4.550 86 - 4.550.86 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 444807 - 444807 - - - -
Bank balanees other than cash and cash equivatems abo - - 401865 - ANR 65 - - - -

Other linuncsal assets

- Non-corront - - 374.04 - 374.04 - - - -
- Current - - 3,681.24 - 3,681.24 - - - -
i - o 17,0 B Torz8e . N . -

Francial Labilities measured at Far value

Detvative Liability - - - 103.79 103.79 - 10379 - 103.79

Fmancial habilities not measured at finr vahic
cables - - 11.421.30 - 11.421.30 - - - -

Short Term Borrowing . . 1.149.46 R 1,149 46 ; B R B

Tr:

Other financial liabifities

- Nop-current: - - 979.24 - 979.24 - - - -
- Cuyrent - - 748.74 - 74874 - - - -
Liahilities - - 14.298.74 103.79 14.402.53 - 10379 - 10379

Fotal fina

*E

xcludes investment in subsidiarics and Joint Ventare arc being carricd at cost amounting Rs. 321.42 lakhs.
Canving amounts of cash and cash cquivalents. trade reccivables, unbilled receivables and trade payables as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 approximate the fair value because of their short term nature, Difference between
carrying amounts and f{air values of other financial asscts, other financial liabilities and borrowings subscquently measurcd at amortised cost is not significant in cach of the vears presented.

Level 1 : Level |
Level 2: The fair v
all significant input§tegiei

de not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximisc the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. 1
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

value airistriinen]
Steding

! on obscrvable market data. the instrument is included in level 3.This is the case for unlisted equity sceuritics. contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in

Level 3: If onc of inore of the sig 5rc§x(‘«nn|ylx&s\is fiof bi‘e\sy
level 3 ! Leatial Vg, 1
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34 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)
B.  Measurcment of fair values

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs
The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 1.Level 2 and Level 3 fair values. as well as the significant unobservable inputs used

Financial instruments measured at fair value

[ Type Valuation technique

The mutuial funds are valued by the use of guoted market prices

sus & N Discount rates to tair value of financial assets and Gabilitics at amortised cost is

curity Deposit

based an general lendiug rate.

forward cantracts are marked to markel using forward

ch
s pertaining 1o the date of naturity of the contract at the balance

n

contracts The fores
FEDAI ra
sheet date

exchang

Forward ¢

tracts for foreiy

2 financial instruments the fair value of (he remaining financial instruments s determined using

discounted cash low aabysis. |

Transfers between Levels

There were no transfers in cither direction in any of the reporting periods

C. Financial risk management

The Ce cxposure o the following risks arising {rom financial instruments:
« Credit risk
* Liquidity risk : and

k

sany ha

- Market.z

i Risk management framework

ment Commutiee,

ight of the Company’s risk management (ramework. The board of directors has estabhshed the Risk Mana

all responsibility for the establishment and over:
management policies. The commitiee reports regularly to the board of dircctors on its activitics.

rtoring the Company’s

The Company’s risk management policies
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’'s activitics.

are cstablished to identify and analysc the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adhcrence to limits. Risk management policies and

The audit committec oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management policics and procedures. and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation Lo the risks faced by the
Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedurcs. the results of which are reported to the audit

comni Lg%fﬂmwmt

Py
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34

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)
Financial risk management (Continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities( primarily trade receivables).

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management
also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in
which customers operate. ‘

The Risk Management Committee has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness . Credit limits are established for each customer on annual basis. Any sales exceeding those limits require approval from
the Risk Management Committee .

Credit risk arising from trade receivables is managed in accordance with the Company’s established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Movement in impairment on trade receivables 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 39.27 4.77
Changes in loss allowance (39.27) 34.49

Balance at the cnd\oftﬂe year \'},‘_ - 39.27
. [ LS ° ‘A
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C.

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)
Financial risk management (Continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without i incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The company's principal source of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents; bank overdraft and the cash flow that is generated from operations.
The company has an outstanding bank overdraft of Rs. 975.23 lakhs. As of 31 March 2021 the company have negative working capital of Rs
(2.149. 08) lakhs including cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 779.11 lakhs; other bank balance of Rs. 19.78 lakhs and current investments of Rs
Nil. As of 31 March 2020 company had working capital of Rs 3,965.69 lakhs including cash and cash equivalent of Rs 4.448.07 lakhs; other
bank balance of Rs. 4,018.65 lakhs and current investment of Rs Nil. The company has approved line of credit (fund based) of Rs. 1100.00
lakhs as on balance sheet date and this line of credit can be drawn down to meet short term financing needs.The Company has obtained
support letter from its holding company to meet it's working capital requirement, Hence the Company does not perceive any liquidity risk.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts arc gross and undiscounted,
and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2020 Carrying Total Less than 6 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5
amount months years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

ROU Leasc Obligation (including 1,123.38 1,123.38 292.17 319.79 329.74 179.24 2.44
finance lease)

Short Term Borrowing 975.23 975.23 975.23

Trade and other payables 2,066.26 2,066.26 2,066.26 - - - -

Trade payables due to micro, small - - -
and medium enterprises
Other financial liabilities 141.85 141.85 141.85 - - - -

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2020 Carrying amount Total Less than 6 months 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5
) years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

ROU Lease Obligation (including finance 1,549.60 1,549.60 270.56 299.80 639.82 339.42 -
lease)
Short Term Borrowing 1,149.46 1,149.46 1.149.46
Frade and other payables . 11,420.00 11,420.00 11,420.00 - - - -
Trade payables due to micro, smalt- and > 1.30 1.30 1.30 - - - -
medium enterprises

178.38 178.38 178.38 - -

Other financial liabilities “
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34 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)
C. Financial risk management (Continued)

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates — will affect the Company’s income or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments.Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including
foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. We are exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk,
interest rate risk and the market value of our investments. Thus, our exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing
activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currency. The objective of market risk management is to avoid
excessive exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

Currency risk
The Company 1s exposed to currency risk on account of other payables in foreign currency. The functional currency of the Company is

Indian Rupee

Exposure to currency risk (Exposure in dfferent currencies converted to functional currency)

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are as below:

(Amount in INR lakhs )

—
31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
USD EUR JPY GBP
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 37.12 17.19 10.75 0.86
Trade and other receivables 42.45 15.26 - -
79.57 3245 10.75 0.86
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 354.15 4.20 - -
354,15 4.20 - -
Net exposure in Rs. (274.58) 28.25 10.75 0.86
i

(Amount in INR Iakhs )

N 31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2020
USD EUR JPY GRP
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 575.01 169.87 10.22 91.88
Trade and other receivables 792.40 362.68 - 145,10
Forward Contract - - - 420.76
1,367.41 532.55 10.22 657.74
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 171.10 12.09 - -
1,683.55 1.324.32 - 350.63
1,854.65 1,336.41 - 350.63

(487.24) (803.86) 10.22 307.11
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34  Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

C. Financial risk management (Continued)

iv. Market risk (Continued)

Exposure to currency risk (Exposure in different currencies converted to functional currency) (Continued)

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year.

uUsD
EUR
Py

GBp

Average rate

31 March 2021

74.39
84.26
67.87
97.13

Year-end spot rate

31 March 2020 31 March 2021
72.41 73.11
80.22 85,75
66.03 66.12
92.01 100.75

31 March 2020

75.67
82.77
69.63

93.50

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against various currencies as mentioned above at 31 March 2021 and
31 March 2020 would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in the respective currencies and affected profit
or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores

any impact of forecast transactions to be held in the foreign currencies.

Profit or loss

Equity, net of tax

Effect in INR lakhs Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
31 March 2021
1% movement
usD (2.75) 2.75 - -
EUR 0.28 (0.28) - -
Py 0.11 (0.11) - -
GBP 0.01 0.01) - -
(2.35) 2.35 - -
Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
Effece m INR lakhs Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
31 March 2020
1% movement
usD (4.87) 4.87 - -
EUR (8.04) 8.04 - -
Py 0.10 (0.10) - -
GBP 3.07 (3.07) -
(10.24) 10.24 - -

Interest rate risk

The Company's investments are primarily in fixed rate interest bearing investments/Loans. Hence, the company is

not significantly exposed
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Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came into force from 2 October, 2006, certain disclosures
are required to be made relating to dues to Micro and Small Enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the
management, following are the details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year.

-- Principal - 1.30

-- Interest

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006') along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during cach accounting year.

The amounts of the payments made to micro and simall suppliers beyond the appointed day during each accounting - -
year.

I'he amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond - -
the appointed day during the ycar ) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the - -
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

Segment reporting

The Company is in the business of providing travel and related services to its corporate customers which is considered by management as
the only reportable business segment taking into account the nature of the business, the risk and returns, the organisation structure and
internal reporting system. The travel and related services includes tour operations and travel management services, arranging air tickets,
hotels, sightseeing, visa and other related services.

Capital Management

The Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital:
Total equity — retained profit, other reserves, share capital, share premium

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to our shareholders.
The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its
strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Company aims Lo translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital management. The Company's policy
is 1o maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence
and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to ensure
independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profile
of the Company. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The Company is
not subject to financial covenants in any of its significant financing agreements.

The management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company’s goal is to return excess

liquidity to shareh§lders by distributing dividends in future periods.
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The Company contributes to the following post-employment benefit plans in India.

(i) Defined contribution plans:

The Company makes contributions, detcrmined as a specified percentage of employce salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund, Employee State [nsurance
Corporation. Labour Welfarc Fund and National Pension Scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions
The contributions are charged to the Statement of profit and loss as they accrue

Amount contributed to defined contribution plan and recognised as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss are as under:

Particulurs 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Employer's contribution ta provident fund 165.70 19501
Employee's State Insurance Corporation 132 1.96
Labour weltire fund 1.59 140
NPS Contribition 9.46 390

(i) Short Term Employee Benefits:
Leave obligations - compensated absences
Effective | January 2017 there has becn a change in the Leave Policy as a part of a Group alignment initiative. As per the new leave policy. cvery employee will be allotted 30
days of leave in the first week of January, No leaves can be carried forward to the next year whereby. the leave balance left unutilized on 31 December shall lapse. During the
year, a sum aggregating to Rs (17.24) lakhs {31 March 2020: Rs. 2.11 lakhs) has been recognised as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss.

(iii)  Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company provides for gratuity. a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering cligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972, The
Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum pavment to vested cmployess at reti . death, pacitation or termi of employment, of an amount based on the respective
cmployee’s salary and the tenure of employment.

Contribution to Gratuity is based on the premium contribution called for by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) with whom the Company has entered into an
arrangement. The Company s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of cach year. The amount of net interest expense calculated
by applying the liability discount rate to the nct defined benefit liability or asset is charged or credited in the statement of profit and foss. Any differences between the interest
income on plan assets and the return actually achieved, and any changes in the Liabilitics over the year duc to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments
within the plans. are recognised immediately in ‘Other comprehensive income” and subsequently not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity is payable to all cligible cmployees of the Company on superannuation, death and permanent disablement. in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972 or as per the Company”s scheme, whichever is more beneficial.

In respeet of certain employecs. the Company has defined benefit plan for other long-term employce benefit in the form of provident fund. Provident fund contributions are
made to a Trust administered by the Company. The interest rate payable to the members of the Trust shall not be lower than the statutory rate of interest declared by the
Central Government under the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellancous Provisions Act, 1952 and shortfall, ifany. shall be made good by the Company.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect. the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial

statements as at balance sheet date:

31 Murch 2021 31 March 2020

Gratuity
Net deti;
Net defined henefit lability
Net defined benefit fasset) ? liability 176.50 19521 |

]

465.36 480.75
641,86 675.96

d beneit asset
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B.

Employee benefits (Continued)

Movement in net defined benefit (asset)/ liability- Gratuity

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benctit (asset) liability and its components

Opening balance
Inchuded in profit or loss
Current service cost

Adfustment to opening fair value of plan assets

Expeeted returm on plan assets

Past servgee cost

Interest cost (income)

Settlements , henetits paid

Defined benefit obligation

31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020

Fair value of plan assets

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Net defined honefit
(asset) liability

31 March 2021 31

arch 2020

673,96 578.30 480.75 516.20 19521 62.10
61.06 33.15 - - 61.06 33.15
3583 3585 10.27 3.30
772.85 667.30 506.31 548.75 266.54 11855

Included in OCT

Remeasurement loss (gain).

Actuatial loss (gainy arising trom
Amount not recognised due o asset Limit
Demographic assumptions

Fuaneial as

amptions
Lixperience adjustment

et of Interest on Opening Balance of asset

Return on plan assets exeluding interest income

Other
Contributians paid by the smplover
Liabilities assumed / (settled)

Benufits paid

Closing balafice

Net defined benelita;

Net defined benefit lialilii

Defined benefit obligation

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Pair value of plan assets

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Net defined henefit
(asset) linbility
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

- 49.89 - - - 49.89
(1.57) 30.30 - - (L57) 30.30

- - 8847 353 (8847 (3.53)

(1.57) 8019 88,47 3.53 (90.04) 76.66
(129.42) 7153) (129.42) (71.53) - -

641.86 675.96 465.36 480.75 176.50 19521
465.36 480.75

641.86 675.96

176.50 195.21
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C.

n.

it

Partici Less than a Between Between Total
. \& e vear 1-2 veurs 2-5 years

chi §1,73021 - Post Employnient Obligations 99.30 108.33 286.74 395.40 889.77

st Employment’Obligations 9457 74.10 299.21 1.003.67

Employee benefits (Continued)
Plan assets- Gratuity

Plan asscts comprisc the toflowing

31-Mar-21 31-Mu-20
Investment in Gratuity Fund 465.36 480.75
465.36 AB0.75
The major categories of plans assets for gratuity are as follows:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Quoted Unquoted Total in % Quoted Unquated Total in %
[Tmsurer (LIC) Managed Funds - 465.36 465.36 100% - 480.75 480.75 100,

Defined benefit obligations- Gratuity

Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date.

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Discount rate 5.70% 5.70%

Salary lation rate 6.00% 6.00%

Mortality rate TALM (2012-14)  JALM (2012-14)
ul Ul

Employee Alirition Rate

2130 29.00% 29.00%
31-34 23.00% 23.00%
Age 33-44 15.00% 15.00™
45 and above 10.00% 10.00%,

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables. The current longevitics underlying the valucs of the defincd benefit obligation at

the reporting date were as above

Sensitivity analysis- Gratuity
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation
by the amounts shown below

31 March 2021

Tucrease Decrease|
Discount rate (0.5% movement) (15.85) 16.56
Future salary growth (0.5% movement) 16.43 (15.85)

Although the analysis docs not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it docs provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown,

Risk exposure for gratuity
Through its defined benefit plans. the company is exposed to a number of risks. the most significant of which are detailed below:

Asset volatility - The plan liabilitics arc calculated using a discount rate sct with reference to bond yields. if the plan assets underperform this vield, this will ercate a deficit. Further
s. The plan assets investments are in unquoted sceurities which are subject to interest rate risks and the fund manages the

Ids will increase the plan Habilit

crease i the bond v

sks 1o an aceeptable low fevel

Salary growth & Demographic assumptions - The plan is of a final salary defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and henee it underwrites all the risks
pertaining to the plan. In particular. there is a risk for the company that any adverse salary growth or demographic expericnce or inadequate returns on underlying plan asscts can result

inan increase in cost of providing thesc benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lumpsum in nature the plan is not subjcct to any longevity risks.

Majority of the plan asscts consist of Insurer (LIC) managed funds which offers the best return over the Jong term with an acceptable level of risk. The plan asset mix is in compliance
with the requirements of the respective local regulations.

Defined benefit liability and employer contributions for gratuity

Expected contribution to post employment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2022 is Rs. 30 lakhs. The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.05
years (Previous-year 6.12 years). The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:
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38  Employee benefits (Continued)

E. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability - Provident fund
Defined benefit obligation Fair value of plan assets Net defined benefit
(asset) liability
31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening balance 282.42 31422 28242 - -
Ineluded in profit or loss
Current service cost - 0.8 - - - 0.78
Interest cost (nenme) 17.23 19.82 17.23 19.82 - -
33145 303.02 33145 302.24 - 0.78
Included i 8CT
Remeasurcinent loss (gain)
Actuarial loss (gain) arising (rom (341 1022 (34D 1022 - -
(3.41) 1022 341 10.22 - -
Other
Contributions paid by the employevs - 0.98 - 0.9% - -
Caonteihutions paid by the emplover - - - 078 - (1.78)
Henetits paid (24.00) - (24.00) - - -
Closing haliee 304.04 314.22 304.04 31422 - -
Represented by
Net defined benelil asset 304.04 314.22
Net defined bencfit liability 304.04 314.22
F. Plan assets - Provident Fund
Plan asscts comprise the following
31 Murch 2021 31 March 2020
Investment in Provident Fund . 304.04 31422
304.04 31422
The major categorics of plans asscts for provident fund are as follows:
March 31, 2021 - March 31, 2020 |
Quoted Unquoted Total in % Quoted Unquoted Total in % |
Government of India Securities 39.15 - 39.15 13% 39.15 - 39.15 12%
Other debt instruments 30.64 199.74 23038 6% 30.64 199.74 230.3% 3%
Others - 34.50 34.50 "% - 44.69 44.69 14%

Defined benefit obligations - Provident Fund

i Actuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date.

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Discount rate 5.70% 370%

Expected rate of return on s (pa) 8.94% 8.48%

Discount rate tor remaining term to maturity of investment (p.a.) 5.20% 3.75%

Average historic yield an the investment (p.a.) BA4% §.53%

G nteed rate of return (p.a.) R30% R.50%
i, Sensitivity analysis- Provident Fund

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting datc to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions. holding other assumptions constant. would have affected the defined bencfit obligation
by the amounts shown below

- 31 March 2021
Increase | Decrease
Crate (1% movement) Nil Nil
lary growth (1"a mavement) Nil Nil

Risk exposure for Provident Fund
Through its defined bcnéﬂrplans_ the company is ¢xposed to a number of risks. the most significant of which are detailed below:

c]ilaii'lia‘bili'{cs arc calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields. if the plan assets underperform this yicld, this will create a deficit. Further
iclds will:increase the plan liabilities.

a)

¢ with the requirements of the respective local regulations

/)

7
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39 Leases

a.  As Lessee:

"Property, plant and equipment' comprises owned and leased assets that do not meet the definition of investment property.

i) Right-of-use assets

Balance as at | April 2020 (A) 1,441.29
Additions to right-of-use assets (B) 256.44
Deletion of right-of-use assets (C) 103.85
Depreciation charge for the year (D) 608.11
Balance as at 31 March 2021 (A+B-C-D) 985.77
Right-of-usc assets are mainly office premises and vehicles taken on lease.
ii)  Leasc liabilities
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year 611.96
One to five year 508.98
More than five years 2.44
Total undiscounted lease liabilities as at 31March 2020 1,123.38
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position at 31 March 2021
Current 611.96
Non Current 511.42
Total 1,123 38
iii) Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
FY 2020-2021 Lease under Ind AS 116
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 30) 136.46
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 608.11
short-term leases ana fow value Jeases (Refer note 32) 283.70
1,028 27
FY 2019-2020 Lease under Ind AS 116
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 30) 172.64
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 647.60
sh teases and low value leases (Refer note 32) 314.94
1,135.18
iv)  Amount recognized in Statement of Cash Flow
Repayment of lease liabilities 566.50
Finance cost paid towards lease liabilities 172.64
Total 739.14

The lease payments have been classified as financing activities in the Statement of Cash Flow under Ind AS 116.The lease
payments for operating leases as per Ind AS 17 -Leases, were carlier reported under cash flow from operating activities.

v) Extension options

The lease contracts of the company contain extension/renewal options which are exercisable only by the Company and not
by the lessors. The Company includes in its lease term such extension/renewal options that the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise. If the lease is extended beyond the renewal term, then the lease rentals will be mutually agreed between

the parties based on the fair value of lease rent at the time of extension.

vi) Modification in Lea

During the curre
in lease /\grééﬁlen
asset (103.85 lakh
retirenicn :
ROU Assets.as‘on Y

tement

a

ncial-year the company has surrendered/vacated some lease before completion of tenure as mentioned
hé-cgnipany-has retired the same in books of accounts and difference of Rs. 12.32 lakhs between ROU
ROU, Liability (116.17 lakhs) as on date of retirement has been recognised as profit or loss on
s for profit and loss.Further, Impact of same has been considered in Lease Laibilities and
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40  Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Contingent liabilities

a. Service tax that may arise in respeet of which the Service Tax Department is in appeal (in respect of some carlier - 10.08
s have been decided in favor of the Company by the appellate authoritics)

vears. appeals covering the same &

b. The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India (“SC”) by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited & others v/s EPFO, sct out the principles
based on which allowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution
Subsequently. a review petition against this decision has been filed and is pending before the SC for disposal.

Management has accounted for the liability for the period from date of the SC order to 31 March 2019, Further. pending decision on the subject review petition and
dircections from the EPFO, the impact for the past period. if any. is not ascertainable and consequently no effect has been given in the accounts.

Capital Commitment:
The company has oustanding capital commitments as on 31st march 2021 against Capex purchase orders amounting to Rs. 4.83 lakhs (3 Ist March

2020 : Rs. 18.20 lakhs).

41 Corporate social responsibility

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Act: 33.31 -
Fairfax Trust - Contribution for four numbers Dialysis machines 31.01 -
Chameleon Foundation 2.30

Total 33.31 -

Note: As the Travel Corporation (India) Limited (Formerly known as SOTC Travel Management Private Limited) (New TCI) does not have the
networth of rupees. five hundred crore or more, or tumover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crores or
more in any previous financial year, hence CSR provision were not applicable to the Company for FY 19-20.

During FY 19-20 Composite scheme of merger has take place between Travel Corporation (India) Limited (Old TCI) and SOTC Travel
Management private limited {Now known as Travel Corparation (India) limited- New TCI} , due to which above mentioned provisions of
CSR were not applicable on New TCI for FY 19-20

42 Scheme of Amalgamation/ Demerger

The Board, at its mecting held on 23 April 2018 and which was further amended on 19 December 2018, approved the Composite Scheme
of Arrangement and Amalgamation amongst Thomas Cook (India) Limited (“TCIL"), Quess Corp Limited (‘QCL’), Travel Corporation
(India) Limited (“TCI"), TC Forex Services Limited (formerly known as Tata Capital Forex Limited) (‘TCF’), TC Travel Services
Limited (formerly known as TC Travel and Services Limited) (‘TCTSL’) and SOTC Travel Management Private Limited (formerly
known as SITA Travels and Tours Private Limited) (*SOTCM’) (later on changed the name to SOTC Travel Management Limited) and
their respective shareholders (‘the Scheme’) in accordance with the provisions of Section 230 to 232 read with Section 52, 55 and 66 of
the Companics Act, 2013.

The Scheme inter alia provides: (i). Demerger of the inbound business of TCI consisting of business of handling inward foreign tourist
activity from TCI into SOTC Travel Management Private Limited (later on changed the name to SOTC Travel Management Limited);

and
(i1). Amalgamation of residual TCI, TCF and TCTSL with TCIL.

The said Composite Scheme pertaining to TCI has been approved by The National Company Law Tribunal (Mumbai Branch) on 10
October 2019 and NCLT (Bangalorc) on 07 November 2019. The said scheme is effective on 25th November 2019 from the appointment
date 01 April 2019.

The Scheme has been accounted as specified by NCLT order. The appointed date of the scheme s | April 2019.

As per the scheme, the Company has issued 19,90,19,396 Non- Cumulative Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs
10 each to the sharcholders of Travel Corporation (India) Ltd. in the ratio of 3 preference shares of 10 each for every 4 shares of Rs, 10
12th December 2019 without payment being received in cash.

cach on date of al louuer
The excess ofpmt 1ase conideration over the book value of the net assets and reserves of the transferor company taken over, amounting
to Rs 16,332.89 lakhs ovér the face value of the shares issued by the transferee company has been debited to the Lapnal Reserve - as pel

the Scheme... XY ,‘ ! g Y ﬁ\ f
e o IQ"’;’
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43 Share-based payment arrangements:

A. Description of share-based payment arrangements

Share option programmes {equity-settled)

Thomas Cook India Limited, the parent company has granted Employee Stock Options to the Company's employees under various plans. Under these
plans, the holder of the vested options are entitled to purchase the shares of the holding company at exercise price prescribed in the plans at the respective

date of grant of the options.

‘The key terms and conditions related to the grants under these plans are as follows; All options are to be settled by the delivery of shares after completion

of vesting period.

Plan Grant date No. of options  Exercise price Vesting period
GT25AUG2015 25-Aug-15 62,000 165.92 3 years
GTO7NOV2016 7-Nov-16 4,65,594 1.00 4 years
GTI13JUN2018 13-Jun-18 2,18,900 137.93 3 years
GTOSOCT2018 5-Ocl-18 39,989 1.00 S years

B. Measurement of fair values

Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements

The fair value 2t grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, expected volatility,
option's life. the share price at grant date, expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free
interest rate for the term of the option.

il. Modification of share based payment schemes:

‘The Thomas Cook India Limited (TCIL) in a composite scheme of arrangement demerged its Human Resources Services Business and transferred it to
Quess Corp Limited (Quess). The scheme was approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) with the appointed date as April 1,2019. The
effective date of the scheme was November 25, 2019 when both TCIL and Quess filed the certified copies of the order with their respective jurisdictional
Registrar of Companies.

As a part of the composite scheme, Employees whose ESOPs were outstanding on the effective date will be entitled to the additional shares of Quess on
account of the demerger of Hluman Resource Business. Instead of altering the exercise price, TCIL provided additional award in form of Quess shares.

The employees are now entitled to shares of Quess along with those of TCIL in the same share entitlement ratio prescribed in the scheme for the other
shareholders of TCIL

In case of vested ESOPs, the employees will be granted shares of TCIL and Quess only on payment of the exercise pricc. In case of unvested ESOPs, the
employces will be granted shares of TCIL and Quess on completion of the remaining vesting period and payment of the exercise price.

The options, to the extent, which are settled by shares of Quess do not meet the definition of a share-based payment arrangement because the value of




43 Share-based payment arrangements: (Continued)

C. Reconciliation of outstanding share options

The number of share options under the share option programmes were as follows.

Thomas Cook ESOP Sch GT25AUG2015 Number of options Number of options

31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020
Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year 6,800 10,000
Add: Options granted during the year - -
Less: Options lapsed during the year
Less: Options exercised during the year - 3,200
Options outstanding as at the year end 6,800 6,800
Thomas Cook ESOP Sch GTO7INOV2016 Number of options Namber of options

31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020
Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year 4,653,394 4.65.594
Add: Options granted during the year - -
Less: Options lapsed during the year - -
Less: Options exercised during the year 1,50,000 -
Options outstanding as at the year end 3,15,594 4,65,594 1
Thomas Cook ESOP Sch GTI3JUN2018 Number of options Number of options

31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020
Options mllsfanding as at the beginning of the year 2,08,900 2,18,900
Add: Options granted during the year
Less: Options lapsed during the year - 10,000
Less: Options exercised during the year - -
Options outstanding as at the year end 2,08,900 2,08,900
Thomas Cook ESOP Sch GTO50CT2018 Number of options Number of options

~ 31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020

Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year 39,989 39,989
Add: Options granted during the year -
Less: Options lapsed during the year - -
Less: Options exercised during the year - -
[Options outstanding as at the year end 39,989 39,989

D. Expenses/shares option outstanding account arising from share based payment transactions

‘Total expenses arising from share-based payment related transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as follows:

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
183.77 282.95
144.70 51.35
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(A}

(B)

(©

D)

(&)

Related party transactions

Names of related parties by whom control exists

Name of the partics Relationships
Thomas Cook (India) Limited Holding Company of Travel Cororation (Indix) Limited
Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited Ultimate Holding Company. Canada

Subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Name of the partics Relationships
SITA Worlé Travel Lanka (Pvt) Limited Subsidiarics of the Company
SITA World Travel Nepal Private Limited Subsidiaries of the Company

Fellow Subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Name of the parties Relationships
SOTC Traved Limited Eellow subsidiarics of the Company
Sterling Group Fellow subsidiarics of the Company

Associate with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Name of the parties Relationships

TCI Go Vucation Private Limited Associate of the Company

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Name of the parties Relationships

Luxe Asia Private Limited | Other related pany
Quess Corp Limited Other refated party
National Collateral Management Services Limited Other related party
Digiphoto Entcrtainment fnuging L1L.C Other retated party

Key Management Personnel

Name of the parties Namie of the key management personnel

Managing Directar of the Company Mr. Dipak Deva

Chief Financial Officer Mr. Sanjay Shroff

Chief Operating Officer Mr. Vineet Mahendm

Chief Operafing Officer Mr. Ernest Dias (retired w.c.f. 30th November 2019)
S, Mis. Ritu Verma (last working datc 28th June 2019)

1

Comp

Ms. Megha Sekharan (Joined w.c.(. st December 2019)
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44 Related party transactions (Continued)

(G)  Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Particulars Year Holding Subsidiary Feilow Associate Other Related Key Total
Company subsidiarics Party  Management
Personnel
Sale of servi 2021 5446 - - 0.13 - - 54.39
2020 RTT.RG - - 168,44 - - 1,046.30
Purchase of services/ (Reversal of purchase) 2021 - - (1.72) - 7.59 - 5.87
2020 53.79 2.166.52 1.109.13 - 129.74 - 3.459.19
Facility Support Income & Management Fees 2021 - - - H45.56 - 85.56
2020 - - - 25100 - 25100
ESOP and Stock Expense Charge 2021 328.47 - - - - - 32847
2020 33430 - - - - - 33430
Dividend Income 2021 - - - - - - -
~ 2020 - - - 137.20 - . 137.20
Rent charges 2021 40.08 - - 40,08
2020 KERY - - 3311
Iaterest Income on Loan Given B 2021 - - - - - - -
2020 - 1213 - - - - 1213
Corporate guarantee fees Income) 2021 0.63) - - - - - 0.63)
2020 0.34 - - - - . 0.4
[nvestment in Preference lnstrument (ICD converted 2021 - - - - - - -
into investment)
2020 - - 17173 - - - - 17073
Dividend Paid 2021 2,000.00 - - - - - 2,000.00
2020 - - - - - - -
Royalty Income 2021 - - - - - - -
2020 - 80.09 - - - - 80.09
Expenses reimbursed 2021 499.31 - 15.51 0.90 - - 515.72
2020 314.95 - 9340 1oy - - 6LLA43
Expenses recovered 2021 17.38 - 2.82 - 2.21 - 22.41
2020 - - 7.62 1.99 3.42 - 13.03
Sularies and other employee henefits to KMP's 2021 - - - - - 567.69 567.69
2020 - - - - - 788.89 78889
Commission and other benefits to non- 2021 - - - - - 13.23 13.23
exceutive/independent directors 2020 - - - - - 39.98 3998
(H)  Related party transactions
Particutars Year Holding Subsidiary Fellow Associate Other Related Key Total
Company Subsidiaries Party  Management
Personned
Balance as at 31 March
Receivable . 202t 1.71 207.49 - 0.62 - 6.19 225.01
2020 L7t 207.41 342 670.10 L7 030 /8405
Payables 2021 17501 347.60 60.89 - 3.80 0.13 S87.43
= 2020 - 35985 223.07 - 1184 53789 633,25

phvad B
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44 Related party transactions (Continued)

(1) Related party transactions:
Particulars Fellow Subsidiaries 2021 2020
Sale of services SOTC Travel Limited - -
Purchases of services Sterling Group Companies - 43.94
SOTC Travel Limited (1.72) 106519
Expenses reimbursed SOTC Travel Limited 15,51 935,40
SOTC Travel Limited 2.82 5.91
Sterling Group Companies - L7
Payable: R
Trade Payable Sterling Group Comparies 2.46 144
SOTC Travel Limited 58.43 22223
Receivable: - -
Trade Receivable SOTC Travel Limited - 171
Sterling Group Companics - 1.71
(@3] Related party transactions:
Particulars Subsidiaries 2021 2020
Purchases of services SITA World Travel Nepal Private Limited - 2,166,532
SITA World Travel Lanka (Pvt) Limited - -
Interest Income on Loan Given SITA World Travel Lanka (Pvt) Limited - 12.13
Rayvaity Income SITA World Travel Nepal Privale Limited - 80.09
Investment in Preference Instrument (ICD converted SITA World Travel Lanka (Pvt) Limited - 171.72
into investment)
Expenses recavered SITA World Travel Lanka (Pvt) Limited - -
Receivable:
Loan receivable SITA World Travel Lanka (Pvt) Limited - -
Interest Receivable on Loan SITA World Travel Lanka (Pvt) Limited - -
Royalty income Receivable SITA World Travel Nepal Private Limited 207.49 20741
Trade Payable SITA World Travel Nepal Private Limited 347.60 359.85
(K)  Related party transactions:
Particulars Holding Company 2021 2020
Sale of Ser Thomas Cook (India) Limited 54.46 774.95
Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited - 10291
Purchases of serviees Thoemas Cook (India} Limited - 53.79
ESOP and Stock Expense Charge Thomas Cook (India) Limited 328.47 33430
Rent Charges Thomas Cook (India) Linnicd 40.08 3301
Corporate guarantee fees Thomas Cook (India) Limited (0.63) 0.84
Expenses reimbursed Thomas Cook (India) Limited 499.31 51495
Expenses reetvered Thouts Cook (India) Limited 17.38 1.7t
Dividend Paid Thomas Cook (India) Limited 2,000.60 -
Receivable:
Advance to Vendor Thotnas Cook (India) Limited - 13018
Trade Receivable Thomas Cook (India) Limited 1.71 L1
Thomas Cook (India) Limited 41,07 -
Thomas Cook (India) Limited 133.94 -

N
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44 Related party transactions (Continued)

() Related party transactions
Particulars Associate 2021 2020
Sale of Services TCI Go Vacation Private Limited 0.13 168.44
Facility Support Income & Management Fees TCI Go Vacation Private Limited 85.56 251.00
Dividend Income TCI Go Vacation Private Limited - 137.20
Expenses reimbursed TCI Go Vacation Private Limited 0.90 Fog
Expenses recovered TCI Go Vacation Private Limited - 1.99
Receivables:
Advanee to Vendor TCI Go Vacation Private Limited - 387.83
Trade Reccivable TCI Go Vacation Privatc Limited 9.62 82.27
(M)  Related party transactions
Particulars Other related party 2021 2020
Purchases of services Luxe Asia Private Limited 121.23
Quess Corp Limited 7.59 8.51
Expenses recovered National Collateral Management Services Limited - 1.71
Quess Corp Limited - 1.7t
Digiphoto Entertainment Imaging LLC 2.21 -
Receivah
Trade Receivable National Collateral Management Services Limited - 171
Quess Corp Limited - 1.71
Luxe Asia Private Limited 2.99 -
Digiphoto Entertainment Inaging LLC 2.21
Payable
Trade Payable Luxe Asia Privatc Limited 7.29
Quess Corp Limited 3.80 155
(N)  Transactions with key managenmient personnel
Particulars 2021 2020
Salarics and other employee benefits 1o KMP's 567.69 T88.8Y
Commission and other benefits to non-executive/independent directors 13.23 39.98
Receivables:
Employee Advance Receivable 6.19 0.30
Payables:
Commission P; - 5595
3 0.13 1.94
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45 Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

i} Details of revenue from contracts with customers recognised by the Company, net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss

Revenue from operations:
Revenue from contract with customers

Particulars 31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020
-Travel and tour related services 272.34 43.351.34
272.34 | 43351.34

ii) Disaggregate Revenue

The following table presents Company revenue disaggregated by reportable segment:

Revenue based on product and services:
Revenue from contract with customers

Particulars 31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2019
“|-Travel and tour related services 272.34 43,351.34
272.34 | 43,351.34

iii) Contract balance

(a)Contract Assets :

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services rendered to the customer. If the Company performs by rendering services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the unbilled revenue from customers for which revenuc has been recognized based on the performance
obligation / services delivered, however billing of same is yet to be done.

Changes in contract assets are as follows

Particulars 31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020
Balance at the beginning of the vear - 396.46
Revenue recognised during the year 243.15 42,156.81

Invoices raised during the year ) (243.15) (42,553.27)




45

46

Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (Continued)

(b)Contract liabilities :

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the performance
obligation is over/ services delivered.

Advance Collections is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received
from the customer towards In-bound tour packages. Revenue from inbound tour packages are recognized on the completion of the performance
obligation which is on the date of arrival of the tour.

Advance from contract with customers

Particulars 31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020
-Advance collected from customers 1,630.60 1,789.04
1,630.60 1,789.04

Impact of COVID-19 (Global pandemic)

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic. Responding to the potentially scrious threat of the
pandemic, the Indian Government took a series of measures to contain the outbreak, which inciuded prohibition on international travel of passengers
to India and imposing ‘lock-downs’ across the country. The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various activities due to COVID-19 pandemic
have posed challenges to the businesses of the company. Lockdown guidelines issued by Central/State governments mandated cessation of air traffic
and other forms of public transport as well as closure of hotel operations.

With the lifting of the lockdown restrictions, the Company started re-opening its branches and other establishments. However. the operations of the
Company are sull severally affected as prohibition on international travel of passengers for tourism to India still continues. As a result of which the
company has not had substantial business in the curreny year.

The Company expects that the operations shall be becoming normal in a phased manner after the prohibition on international travel of passengers to
India (by the Indian government and governments of other global countrics) ceases and the confidence of travellers is restored globally. The
Company expects the demand for its services to pick up albeit at a slower pace once the above travel restriction is lifted: The Conipany has assessed
the impact of COVID-19 on the carrying amount of its assets / liabilities and revenue recognition. In developing the assumptions relating to the
possible future uncertainties, the Company, as on date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of
information to the extent available. The Company has undertaken various cost saving initiatives to maximise operating cash flows and conserve cash
position in the given situation.
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Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under
Sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporancous in nature, the
Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the international as well as specified domestic transactions (if applicable) entered into with
the associated enterprise during the financial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by the end of the stipulated timeline, as required by
law. The Management is of the opinion that its international as well as specified domestic transactions (if any) are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid
legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expenses and that of provision for taxation.

Significant accounting policies
The notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For BS R & Co. LLP ~ For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Firm's Registration No: 101248 W/W-100022 [CIN: U63040MH2001PLC131693]
A " | " PN
Bhavesh Dhufelia Dipak Deva — - Madhavan-Mehon
. : . Ay N

Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No: 042070 [DIN:02030005] [DIN No: 00008542]

] New Delhi Mumbai
Mumbai 5

28 April 2021 o~

Megha Sckharan
Company Secretary

Munibai
28 April 2021















































































































































































G. M. KAPADIA & CO.

(REGISTERED)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
1007, RAHEJA CHAMBERS, 213, NARIMAN POINT, MUMBAI 400 021. INDIA
PHONE : (91-22) 6611 65611 FAX : {91-22) 6611 6600

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TC TOURS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of TC Tours Limited (the
Company), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of

Changes in Equity for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (the standalone financial statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under section 133 of the Act (Ind AS) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021
and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
The Management of the Company is responsible for the other information. The other information
obtained at the date of this report is report of the board of directors, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalohe financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
erwise appears to be materially misstated.

MUMBAI NEW DELHI CHENNAI BENGALURU HYDERABAD JAIPUR
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If, based on our work, we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with
the SAs. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including Ind AS, read with the rules made thereunder and the relevant
provisions of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatemet resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resufting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional cmissions

PAD/4 isrepresentations. or the override of internal control.
{
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

L As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (the Order) issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”
a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears trom our examination of those books;




G. M. KAPADIA & CO.

(c)

(d)

(€)

(D

(&

(h)

Place: Mumbai

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the rules made
thereunder and the relevant provisions of the Act;

On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on March 31,
2021 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors are
disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a Director in terms of
section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
we give our separate Report in “Annexure B”;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

The Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year and hence,
the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations, which would impact the
financial position of the Company;

(ii)  The Company did not have any material foreseeable Josses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts; and

(iii)  There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 104767W

Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No. 039569

Dated: 25/05/2021 UDIN: 21039569AAAAIA6966
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Annexure A- referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report on even date to the members of the Company on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. In respect of its property. plant and equipment:

(a) & (b) The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment except right of use
assets and hence, provision of para 3(i)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable; and

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable properties. In respect of immovable properties
taken on lease and disclosed as right of use assets in the standalone financial statements, the
lease agreements are in the name of Company.

ii.  The Company’s nature of operations does not require it to hold inventories. Consequently,
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order regarding physical verification of inventories and maintenance
of records is not applicable.

iii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other
parties covered under register maintained under section 189 of the Act, except unsecured
loan to its associate which is now doubtful of recovery, amounting to Rs. 150 million. The
Company has fully provided for impairment of outstanding loan and interest thereon.

iv. Based on audit process applied by us and according to the information and explanations
given to us, in our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Act, in respect of investments made and loans, guarantees and securities
granted, as applicable.

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not accepted deposits from the public and therefore, the provisions of section 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder are not applicable to

the Company.

We have been informed that no order has been passed by Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal in this
regard.

vi.  The provisions of section 148(1) of the Act, relating to maintenance of cost records are not
applicable.

Vii. (a) Based on the records produced before us, the Company is generally regular in depositing
with appropriate authorities applicable undisputed statutory dues such as provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, service tax, goods and services tax, cess and other
applicable statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There are no arrears as at March
31, 2021 which were due for more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no disputed dues of income-tax. service tax, goods &
sérvices tax which have not been deposited on account of anv dispute.
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Viii.

1X.

X1.

XI1.

Xiii.

XiV.

XV.

XVi.

The Company has neither raised loans from banks and financial institutions nor issued any
debentures, therefore the provisions of paragraph 3(viii) of the Order regarding default in
repayment of dues to banks and financial institutions and debenture holders is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public
Offer (including debt instruments) and term loans. Hence, the provisions of paragraph 3(ix)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no instances of fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers and employees have been noticed or reported during the year.

The Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration. Hence, reporting
requirements under this paragraph 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In respect of transactions with related parties, the Company has complied with provisions of
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable. Necessary disclosures relating to related
party transactions have been made in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standard.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors. We have been
informed that no such transactions have been entered into with persons connected with
directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 1A of the

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3 (xvi) of the
Order is not applicable.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
egistration No. 104767W

Atul Shah
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No. 039569
Dated: 25:03:2021 UDIN: 21039569AAAAIA6966
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Annexure B referred to in paragraph 2(f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our Independent Auditor’s report of even date, to the members of TC
Tours Limited (the Company) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act)

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the

Company as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by ICAIL These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

GAD; ur audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining

b5 petinderstanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing
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the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements. whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence, we have obtained is, sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
egistration No. 104767W

4""":‘,"'

Atul Shah

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No. 039569
Dated: 25/05/2021 UDIN: 21039569AAAAIA6966




TC TOURS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Right of Use Assets 3(a) 95.1 103.7
Financial assets
- Loans
- Investments 5(a) - 400.0
Deferred tax assets (net) 3(b) 393.0 100.3
Total non-current assets 488.1 604.0
Current assets
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 5(b) 5,880.8 10,046.2
- Cash and cash equivalents 5(c) 878.7 952.7
- Loans 5(d) - 150.0
- Other financial assets 5(e) 366.8 1,983.7
Current Tax Assets 4 128.8 950.8
Other current assets 6 4,814.1 6,877.8
Total current assets 12,069.2 20,961.2
'TOTAL ASSETS 12,557.3 21,565.2
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital i 300.0 300.0
Other equity
-Reserve & surplus 8 1,086.4 2,505.8
Total Equity 1,386.4 2,805.8
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Lease liabilities 65.7 735
Employee Benefit Obligations 9 94.9 82.6
Other non-current liabilities 10 - -
Total non-current liabilities 160.6 156.1
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowing 11(a) 1,230.7 893.3
- Lease liabilities 396 37.0
- Trade payables 11(b)
-Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 3
-Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 9,544.2 16,002.8
- Other financial liabilities 1(c) - 0.9
Employee Benefit Obligations 9 63.7 25.1
Other current liabilities 12 132.1 1,554.2
Total current liabilities 11,010.3 18,603.3
'TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,170.9 18,759.4
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 12,557.3 21,565.2

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date.
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Atul Shah

Partner
Membership No. 039569

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

Debasis Nandy
Director
DIN: 06368365

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

o

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

.

S P
. Y

Director
DIN No. 01272743

/ Rambhau Kenkare

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai



TC TOURS LIMITED
Statement of Profit And Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the vear ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2021 March 1. 2020
Income
Revenue from operations 13 43637 IRt
Other income 14 2024 gt iy
Total income 3.5608.1 20.547.0
Expenses
Cost of services 2,052.4 14,169.3
Employee benefits expense 15 1,031.4 1,824.0
Depreciation d 37.0 35-9
Finance Cost 16 177.2 837.3
Other expenses 17 2,023.8 2,643.6
Total expenses 5,321.7 19,510.1
Profit before tax (1,753.7) 1,027.5
Less : Tax expense 18
Current tax - 269.7
Deferred tax (292.0), 0.8
Total tax expenses (292.0) 270.5
Profit for the wvear (A) (1,461.6) 757.0
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 13.1 0.3
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.7 (0.2)
Total other comprehensive income for the vear, net of taxes EE) 13‘5 0.1
‘Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (1,347.8) 757.1
Earnings per equity share ( Face value of INR 10 each) 23
- Basic earnings per share (In INR) (48.7) 25.2
- Diluted earnings per share (In INR) (48.7) 25.2

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date.
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chariered Accountants

-—
Atul Shah

Partner
Membership No. 039569

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Debasis Nandy
Director
DIN: 06368365

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

Ly
M

Rambhau Kenkare
Director
DIN No. 01272743

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

e



TC TOURS LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR Lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

Note Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars
A) Cash flow from operating activitices
Profit before income tax (1,753.7) 1,027.5
Adjustments for:
Interest Income 14 (19.0) (8.9)
Gains from Mutual Fund - (0.7)
ESOP Expense 15 28.4 18.3
Depreciation on ROU assets 37.0 35.9
Interest on lease liahility 9.1 10.9
Provision for Doubtful Advances (Net) and Impairment charge 17 854.1 329.4
Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities (913.2) 1,406.4
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables 4,105.4 11,516.8
(Increase) in Other Financial Assets 1,504.7 207.0
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Assets 1,781.7 2,801.1
Increase in Employee Benefits Obligation 641 10.9
[Decrease) / Increase in Trade Payables (6,548.6) (14,502.2)
Inerease in Other Financial Liabilities (0.9) (12.9)
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Liabilities {1,422.1) (501.7)
Cash generated from operations = (1,278.9) 1,015.4
Income taxes paid : 822.0 (894.2)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (456.9) 121.2
B) Cash flow from investing activities:
Interest Received 19.0 8.9
Movement of ROU Assets (28.3) 4
Investment (made)/sold in Associates = (200.0)
Interest on Income tax refund 69.1 -
Loan given to related party - (150.0)
Proceeds from redemption of units of mutual fund - 40.7
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities 59.8 (300.6)
C) Cash flow from financing activities:
Repayment of lease liabilities (5.2) (29.1)
Interest on lease liabilty made {g.1) (10.9)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from finnacing activitics (14.3) (40.0)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (411.3) (219.4)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 59.4 278.8
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (352.0) 59.4
Reconciliation of Cash Flow statemenis as per the cash flow statement Year ended Year ended
Cash Flow statement as per above comprises of the following March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 878.7 952.7
Bank Overdrafts (1,230.7) (893.3)
Balances as per statement of cash flows (352.0) 59.4
Notes ;

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method” set out in Indian Accounting Standard

(Ind AS-7) on Statement of Cash Flow as notified under Companies { Acounts) Rules, 2015.
2. The above statement of Cash flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directm\_oy-'

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants N—
Firm Registration Numb \y

N
Atul Shah Debasis Nandy /‘ Rambhau Kenkare
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 039569 DIN: 06368365 DIN No. 01272743
Date: May 25, 2021 Date: May 25, 2021 Date: May 25, 2021

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai



TC TOURS LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Equity share capital

Particulars

Amount

300.0

Balance as at April 1, 2019
changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2020

300.0

changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2021

300.0

Other Eguity

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars

ESOP Reserve

Retained Barnings

Total Other Equity

Balance as at April 1, 2019

25.9

1,704.5

1,730.4

Profit for the vear

7570

757.0

0.1

0.1

Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income for the year

7571

7571

‘Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners

Employee Stock Option Expense

18.3

18.3

Bal at the March 31, 2020

4.2

2,461.6

2,505.8

Profit for the year

{1,461.6)

(1,361.6)

‘Other Comprehensive Income

13.8

13.8

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

(1,447.8)

(1.447.8)

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners

Employee Stock Option Expense

28.4

28.4

Balance as at March 31, 2021

72.6

1,013.8

1,086.3

The above staternent of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date.
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 1

Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No. 039569

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Debasis Nandy
Director
DIN: 06368365

Date: May 25. 2021
Place: Mumbai

o

oo
S P

Mo

Rambhau Kenkare
Director
DIN No. 01272743

Date: May 25, 2021
Place: Mumbai



TC TOURS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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TCTOURS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 202y
(Al amemnts in INK Lakhs. unkess otherwise stated)
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TC TOURS LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3(a) - Right of Use Assets

Particulars Building Total
Gross Carryving Amount

Opening Balance as at 1 April 2020 139.6 139.6
Transition Adjustment (as at 1 April 2019) - -
Additions 32.9 32.9
Disposals/Transfer (25.3) {25.3)
Closing Balance as at 31 March 2021 147.2 147.2
Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Balance as at 1 April 2020 35.9 35.9
Transition Adjustment (as at 1 April 2019) - -
Depreciation 37.0 37.0
Disposals/Transfer (20.8) (20.8)
Closing Balance as at 31 March 2021 52.1 52.1
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 95.1 95.1




TC TOURS LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3(b): Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

The balance comprises of temporary differences attributable to:

Particulars

As at March 31,

Asat

2021 March 31, 2020
Deferred Tax Assets
Carry forward of losses 152.3
Gn provisions allowable for tax purpose when paid 159.3 215
[On Provision for Doubtful Advances T2 774
(Other items (ROU) 2.0 14
mzl Deferred Tax Assels 393.0 100.3

Movement in Deferred Tax Assels

On provisions

Oun Provision for

Other items

Carry Forward

|Particulars allowable for tax Demhifil Advanses (ROU) o S Total
purpose when paid
As at Mareh 31, 2020 21.5 TTead 1.4 100.3
charged /{credited)
1o profit or loss 137.0 2.0 o7 152.3 292.0
-t mher:om&hensh'e income 0.7 a = 0.7
As at March 31, 2021 159.2 9.4 2.1 1523 393.0
Note 4: Current Tax Assels
" Asat March 31, Asal
Particalars 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening Balance 950.8 326.3
Less: Current Tax payable for the year - 269.7)]
Add: Taxes Paid (822.0)| 894.2
Closing Balances - Current Tax Asset/(Liabilities) 128.8 950.8



TC TOURS LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3: Financial Assets

statinvestments

Particulors Non-current Current Non-current Current
March 31, 2021 March 31. 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020
Unguoted - In associntes ot cost

HO20 { Frevions e i) folly puaed np o.oooFsComernble Cummulative Preference 400.0 400.0 -

Shares of INR 100/~ each of Trneljunkie Solutions Private Limited

[Refor Nowe 23]

Less: Provision for Imvestment impairment {qoo.o) - =
Sub total - - 400.0 -
Quoted - Investment in mutual funds fair valued through Profit and Loss
account

] - - - -
| Total - - 400.0 &
Aggregate amount of quoted investments - = = -
Aggregnte amount of unguoted investments 400.0 = 400.0 -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - - - -
Aggregate amoint o.’imEai’nnenl in the value of in vestments [400.0) & = =
5(b)Irade receivables

. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Fartienlis 2021 2020
Trade receivables 6,088.2 10,001.9
Less: Allovance for doubtful debts (207.4) {15.7)]
Total recievables 5.880.8 10,0046.2
Break up of Security Details
Unsecured, considered 5880.8 10,046.2
Unsecured, considered Doubtful 2074 157
(Total 6,088.2 10,0619
Less: Allowange for doubtiul debits (207.4) {15.7)]
Total Trade Recievables 5.880.8 10,046.2
5(e) Cash and eash equivalents
i As at March 31, As al March 31,
Fartizulacs 2021 2020
Ealances with banks
In current acconnts 830.8 2.3
Fixed Deposits with original maturity of less thitn three months - G20.0
Cash in hand 47.9 0.4
‘Toial Cash and eash equivalents B78.7 952.7
5(d) Loans m—
As al March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars i s556
Lemins to Related Parties 150.0 150.0
Less: Provision for Doubtful Loans and Advances (150.00 =
Total Loans - 1500
5(e) Other financial Assets
Parnculars Non-current Current Non-current Current
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2020
Accried R - 635 - 19720
[interest Receivables from Related Farties - 32.1 - 7.0
Lesss Provision for Doubtful Loans & Advances {Interest] = {22.1) - -
I§\|b total - - = 7.0
[Other Receivables from Related Parties - 303.3 - 3.8
|Total Other Financial Assels - 36658 - 1,983.7
Note 6: Other Current Assets
- As at March 31, As al March 31,
Ipamu""‘; 2021 2020
Advance to Suppliers
Considered good 4,159.4 6,090.4
(Considered Donbtful 105.1 470.5
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances {105.1) (370.5)
|Snb total 41594 6,039.4
Advance to Emplovees
(Considered good 1.1 13.9
(Considersd Doubtful 0.3 0.3
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (o.3)] (0.5
1.1 13.9
Prepaid expenses 21.6 27.4
Balances with Government antharities [Far) 7571
[Total 4.814.1 6.877.8




TC TOURS LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7: Equity Share Capital

Equity Share capital

i No of Shares
Particulars (In lakhs) Amount
AUTHORISED
As at March 31, 2020 30.0 300.0
Increase during the vear - =
As at March 31, 2021 20.0 200.0
(i) Movement in Equity Share Capital during the Year

3 No of Shares
Particulars (In lakhs) Amount
As at March 31, 2020 30.0 300.0
Add: No of Shares issued during the year & a
As at March 31, 2021 30.0 300.0

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

‘The Company has only one class of equily shares at a par value of INR 10/- per share. Each shareholder of equily shares is entitled to one
vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity share holders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the

Company, alter distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their share holding.

(iii) Shares held by Holding Company

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Particulars Mo of Shares No of Shares

(In lakhs) RO (In lakhs) Ampane
Equity Shares
'Thomas cook (India) Limted and its Nominees 30.0 300.0 30.0 300.0

(iv) Sharcholding Pattern (Shareholders holding 5% or more shares in the Company)

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Category of Sharcholder No of shares

No of shares

(In lakhs) % of Holding {In lakhs) % of Holding
Equity Shares
‘Thomas vook (India) Limted and its Nominees 30.0 100.0% 30.0 100.0%
Note 8: Reserves and surplus
" As at March 31, As at March
Particulars
2021 31, 2020
Relained Earnings 1013.8 2461.6
[ESOP Reserve 72.6 44.2
|Total reserves and surplus 1086.4 2505.8
Retained Earnings
% As at March 31, As at March
Particulars — a1, 2020
Opening Balance 2461.6 1704.5
Net Profit for the year (1,461.6) 757.0
Items of other Comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings - -
Remeasurements of post-employement benefit obligtion, net of tax 13.8 0.1
Closing Balance 1013.8 2461.6
ESOP Reserve
Particulars As at March 31, As at March
2021 31, 2020
Opening Balance 44.2 25.9
Capital Contribution towards ESOP Expenses 28.4 18.3
72 44.2

Closing Balance

ESOP Reserve

ESOP Reserve has been ereated for ESOPs issued by the group company - Thomas Cook (India) Limiled to the employees of the

company.

e
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 9: Employee Benefit Obligations

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars Non Current Current Total Non turrent Current Total
Leave Entitlement - 1.5 - 0.0 0.0
Gratuity 4.5 - Ry - 82.0

251 25.1

Emploves Benefit Pavables 5 = 3 x :
Total 94.9 63.7 158.6 H2.6 25.1 107.7

(i)Leave Obligations - Leave Entitlement

The leave obligations cover the Company’s liability for earned leave,

The amounnt of the provision of INR 12.5 {31 March 2020 - INR NIL) is presented as current, since the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these
obligations. The following amounts reflect leave that is expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months.

Particulars AsatMarch | Asat March
31, 2021 31, 2020
Current leave obligations expected to be settled within next 12 months 12.5 0.0

(ii) Post Employment Obligations

Gratuity

“The Company provides for gratuity for emplovees in Incia as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Emplovers who are in continuous service for a period of 5 vears are eligible for gratuity.
The amount of gratuity pavable on retirement/termination is the emplovees last drawn basie salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of
years of service.

(iii) Defined contribution Plans

The Company also has certain defined contribution plans. Contribitions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual
nor any constrictive obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 54.1 Lakhs (31 March 2ozo - INR 74.5 Lakhs).

Balance Sheet Amounts - Gratuity
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the vear are as follows:

Particulars Presentvalue | Fair value of Netansount
ofablignton plan assets

April 1, 2019 154.1 93.5 b0.6
Current service cost 20.8 = 20.8
Interest chnseE{tnccme) 5.7 a2 2.5
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 0.5 2 2.9
Remeastrenients
[Return on plan assets, excluding amonint included in interest

xpensey/(income) - (1.4} 1.4
[Gain J/loss from change in demographie assumptions = 2 5
{(Gain )/loss from change in financial assumptions 1.9 - 11.9
Experience (gains)/losses (13.6) (13@*
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive inco me {1.7) 1.4} {0.3)

Employer contribulions 1.0 (.0}
Benefit payments (0.6} (0.5) [o.1)
March 31, 2020 182.3 99.8 B2.5

Present value | Fair value of

PRruitulary of obligation plan assets el mbavin
March 31, 2020 182.3 99.5 HB2.5
Current service cost 23.1 - 23
1nterest expensef{income) 9.2 5.9 3.
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 32.3 5.9 26.4
Remneasirements

|Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest

expense/{income) - {1.0) 1.0
( Gixin J/lnss from change in demographic plion: - - -
(Gain j/loss from change in financial i - -
Experience (gains)/losses {14.1) - {14-1)]
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income {14.1) (1.0} (13.1)

Employer contributions - 1.0 (1.0}
Benefit payments [68.8) (68.8) -
March 31, 2021 131.7 36.9 94.8

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2021 31, 2020
Present value of funded obligations 317 1823 |
Fair value of plan assets 36.9 99.8
Deficit of funded plan 4.8 2.5
Unfunded plans = o
Deficit of gratuity plan 4.8 82.5

\
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Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
The significant atinera’ essumptions were as follows:

I As at March As at March
Particulars 31, 2021 31, 2020
Discount rate 5.70% 5.70%
Salany arowth rate 6.00% 6.00%|

(iv) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the dofined benefit obligation to t‘han_s_es in the “EiEh ted principal assumptions is:
Impact on defined benent obligation
Bt Change in assumptions Increase in as: ""j\-;amk [i] in assu hin".],
March 31,2021 [March 31,2020 March 31,2021 31.2020 March 31,2021 il
Discount rate basis point 50 basis point -2.53% -2.62% 2.66% 2.77%
Salary growth mte 50 basis point 50 basis point 2.64% a,75% 2.59% -1.69%)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this Is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method {present value of the defined benefit
obligation calculated with the projected unit eredit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calenlating the defined benefit Hability recognised in the balance
sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prier year.

{v) Risk Exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most slgnificant of which are detailed below :

@) Asset volatility- The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields, if the plan assets underperform this vield, this will create a deficit. Further any
Decrease in the bond vields will increase the plan liabilities.

b) Salary growth & Demographic assumptions- The plan liabilities are calcolated nsing the salary escalation and demographic assnmptions which is sponsored by the Company and
hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In particular, there is a risk for the company that any adverse salary growth or demographic experience or inadequate returns on
underiving plan assets can result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lumpsum in nature the plan is not subject to any longevity
risks.

{vi) Defined benefit liahility and employer contributions
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit ebligation ks 5.19 vears (2020 - 5.45 vears). The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

= = Less than a Between 1-2 Between 2-5 e
Particulars year aEs yesins Over 3 years Total
Post Emplovment Obligations as at March 31, 2021 25.49 2156 51,5 87.7 i86.7
Fost Employment Dblizations as at March 31, 3020 43.b 6351 128.8 2628
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Note 11: Financial Liabilities

11(a) Current Borrowings

s e Terms of Coupon/ As at March As at March
Lartlenlars MaturityDate Payment Interest Rate 31, 2021 31, 2020
Unsecured
Bank Overdrafts Payable on Demand 9.1% 880.7 803.3
Loans and advances from related parties Payable on Demand B.6% 350.0 -

1,230.7 503.3

Note 11(h): Trade Payables

As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2021 31, 2020
Trade Payables

-Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises = g
-Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 9,544.2 16,002.8
small enterprises

Total Trade Payables 9,544.2 16,0028

Note: There are no delayed payments to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 during
the year. Further, there are no dues to such parties which are sutstanding as at the Balance Sheet date. This information has been determined on the basis of
information available with the Company.

Note 11(c): Other Financial Liablities

As at March
As at March 31, 2021 31, 2020
Particulars
Non-Current Current Current
Other Payables to Related Parties - E 0.9
Total Other Financial Liablities % = 0.9

Note 12: Other Current Liabilities

As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2021 31, 2020

Income Received In Advance = 1,062.7
Statutory Dues 132.1 491.5
Total 132.1 1,554.2

A
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Note 13: Revenue from Operations

For the vear ended
March 31, zoz1

For the yvear ended
March 31, zo020

LParl'icu]ars

Sale of Services

=Travel and Related Senvices

3.365.7

10.0602.9

Taotal

3.865.7

20,062.0

Also refer note 27 for IND AS 115 disclosire

Note 14: Other Income

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Interest Income on Bank Deposits 0.2 1.8
Interest Income on Loan Given 187 71
Interest on Income tax refund 691
Profit on disposal of asset 0.6 -
Gains from Mutual Fund - 0.7
Claims Written back 65.5 84.8
PGSI Cashback Income 10.8 3213
Miscellanecus Income 375 50.0
Total 202.4 4747
Note 15: Employee Benefit Expense
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars M:lrl:hy;l, 2021 Mnrch}:l, ag20
Salaries Wages and Bonus 9223 1,694.8
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 54.1 4.5
Gratuity (Refer note g) 26.4 233
ESOP Expense 15.9 15.5
[ESGP stock option Expense Y 12.5 2.8
Staff Welfare Expenses 0.2 13.1
Total 1,031.4 1,824.0
Note 16: Finance Costs
5 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Marchysl, 2021 Marl:h)sl, 2020
Interest on Bank Overdraft 68.4 8.3
Other Finance Charges 95.4 Bif.1
Interest on shortiall of Advance tax 4.3 -
Interest on Lease liabilty Q.1 10.9
Total 177.2 837.3

Note 17: Other Expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rent (Refer nate 26] 166.6 2134
Electricity o8 0.7
Repairs and Maintenance 693 3419
Rates and Taxes 2.9 7.5
Security Services 6g.2 743
Travelling Expenses 2.4 19.3
[ ,ega] and Professional Charges #{Refer note below "a") 597.2 1,404.4
Printing, Stationery and Communication Cost 23.1 53.4
Bad Debt / Advances written off 382.0 530.0
Provisions for doubtful debts and Advances {net) 407 (196.7)
(Advertisment Expenses 0.8 1.9
CSR Expenses (Refer note below "b™) 40.9 14.9
Provision for other than temporary diminution in long-term investments and loans 57241 -
(including interest)
Miscellanecus Expenses 155.8 159.7
| Total 2,023.8 2,643.6
# Legal and Professionzl charges include Zuditors remuneration
(a): Details of payments to auditors
For the year ended For the vear ended

Particulars Marchyaj., 2021 a\Ial‘l:h}:]l, 2020
Payment to auditors
As auditor:

-Statutory Audit 59 4.4

-Tax Audit 15 L5
In other capacities

-Re-imbursement of expenses = =
Total payments to auditors 7.4 5.9

(b): Corporate social responsibility expenditure

For the year ended

For the vear ended

(1) Eradicating Hunger. Poverty & M:
Including Preventive Health-Cere And Sanitation

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 41, 2020
(a) Gross amonnt required to be spent by the Company durtng the year - 14.9
(b} Amount spent and paid during the vear on

sinutrition. Promoting Health-Care 40.9 149
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Note 18: Income Tax Expense

Particulars

For the yvear ended
March 31, 2021

For the vear ended
March 31, 2020

(a) Income tax expense

Cuerrent tax

Current tax on profits for the vear - 269.7
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - -
Total current tax expense - 269.7
Deferred tax
increase in deferred tax assets (292.0) 0.8
meferred Tax credit (292.0) 0.8
[Income tax expense (202.0) 270.5
(b) The reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate :
Parkiclars For the year ended For the year ended
March g1, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense [1,753.7) 1,027.5
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% (PY - 25.168%%) (3431.4) 258.6
ITax effect of amounts which are not deductible(taxable) in calculating taxable
income:
Interest on shortfall of advance tax - -
CSR Expenditure 10.3 37
Buffer tax ereated = =
Dividend income - -
Sec 144 Disallowance - -
On account of rate difference as compared to previous year 9.5
Other items 139.0 (1.3)
Income tax expense (292.0) 270.5




\
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Note 19: Fair value measurements
Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial labilities hove been carried i amortised eost. The carrang amounts

of these financial assets and fnancial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short-term nature. Henveo 0o G value disclosuares |
information for these financial assets and financial liabilities has been disclosed since the carrying amount is a reasonahle approxinitien of tar value,

Note 2o0: Financial risk management
(i) Risk management framework

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, eredit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s primary risk management focus is to
minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company’s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to
identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the policies and processes.
Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of
Directors and the management is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk assessment and management policies and processes.

(ii) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Company's receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business, The Company establishes an allowance for payments that are
365 days past due as it represents its estimate of expected credit loss in respect of trade and other receivables. The Company does not have any financial assets, other than
receivables from group entities, that are 365 days past due but not impaired.

Summary of the Company's exposure ta credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers including group entities is as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Past due 1-90 days 6,544.5 8o1.5
Past due 91—180 days (302.0) 1,264.3
Fast due 180—365 days 195.5 1,894.4
Past due > 365 days (349.8) 3,011.7
6,088.2 10,0019

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision — Trade receivables

Reconciliation of loss allowance Amount

Loss allowance on March 31, 2019 {41.5)

Changes in loss allowance 257

Loss allowance on March 31, 2020 (15.8)

Changes in Joss allowance {191.6)

Loss allowance on March 31, 2021 (207.4)

Expected eredit loss ent for s as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting peried are reviewed by the Company to determine incurred and expected credit losses, As Company's
customer is mainly its holding company and few corporate customers (for whom based on information available in the public domain about there credibility/financial
performance no impairment indicator exist) hence impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Considering the duration of the operations
and given that the macro economic indicators affecting customers of the Company have not undergone any substantial change, the Company expects the historical trend to
continue. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based nn historical payment
behavior and extensive analysis of customer credit risk.

Cash and cash equivalents
“The Company held cash and cash equivalents with eredit warthy banks and financial institutions of INR 55.8 Lacs and INR 952.7 Lacs as at March 31, 2021 and March 31,
2020 respectively. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions is evaluated by the management cn an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

(iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able 1o meel its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far
as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaceeplable losses or
risk to the Company’s reputation.

The Company had working capital of INR 1050.6 as at March 31, 2021 and 2357.1 as at March 31, 2020.
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Exposure to liquidiny risk
The following are the ren
payments and exclude th

:nial liahilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest

2 contraciudl maty
mpact of netting agrecments,

[

Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2021 Carrying Total 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years | More than g
amount Vears

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables 9:544.2 9:544.2 9,544.2 - = -

Other financial liabilities - - - - - -

Total 9.544.2 9.544.2 9,544.2 < L ¥

Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2020 Carrying Total 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 yvears More than 5
amount years

Non-derivative financial labilities

Trade payables 16,0028 16,0928 16,0028 - - -

‘Other financial liabilities 0.9 0.9 0.9 - - -

Total 16.,093.8 16,003.8 16,003.8 - - -

(iv) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates) or in the price of market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is
attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables and payables and all short term and long-term debt. The Company is not
exposed to any market risk-sensitive financial instruments, foreign curreny risk ond interest rate risk since it does not have any investments in securities, foreign eurrency

receivables and payables or debts.

Note 21: Capital management

The Company’s chjective for Capital management is to maximise shareholder's value and support the strategic objectives of the Company. The Company determines the
capital requirements hased on its financial performanee, operating and long term investment plans. The funding requirements are met through operating cash fows.
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Note 22: Related Party Transactions

(a) Parent Entities:
The Company is controlled by the following entities:

Ownership Interest (%)

Place of Business/ Country

Thommas Conk (i) Limited, Ddia

Name Relationship P 0] As at Mareh 31,] As at March 31,
of Incorporation
2021 2020
Fairf Ultimate Holding - &
Parent entity o 1o

{b) Names of related parties and related party relatio

mishi

Name of Entity

Relationship

Place of Business/ Country|

(Now merged with Thoias cook india ltd from 1st April
2019

of Incorporation
Fairfux Financinl Holdings Limited Ultimate Holding Cannda
Thomas Cook (India) Limited Parent enlity India
SOTC Travel Limited Fellow Subsidi India
Travel Corporation (In Limited Fellow Sub: India
TC Travel Services Limited Fellow Subsi India

(e) Key Management personnel

Particulars

Debasis Nandy

. Kenkare
[Abraham Alapatt

(d) Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Nature of transaction

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

(i) Ultimate Holding Company

Reimbursement of Expenses (Net)
Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited

(i) Holding Company

Sale of Services

Quuss Corp Li

“Thomas Cook (India) Limited 13,102.4 1,41,006.7
Facilities and Support Services Availed
Thomas Cook (India) Limited 4617 1,107.3
PLB and GDS Incentive
Thomas Cook (India) ited - 1,907.7
ESQP Share Issuc Push Down Cost/(Benefit)
Thomas Cook (India) Limited 15.9 18.3
ESQOP stock option Expense
Thomas Cook (India) Limited 12.5 -
Corporate Gurntee foes
Thomas Cook (India) Limited 3.7 -0.7
Commission expense
Thomas Cook (Indin) Limited 66.1 -
Loan given
Thomas Cook (India) Limited 350.0
Interest received on loan given
Thomns Cook (India) Limited 3.7 -
(ii) Fellow subsidiarics
Sale of Services
SOTC Travel Limited 7314 2,842.5
FLB und GDS [ncentive
SOTC Travel Limited - 275.0
Facilitics and Su 1 Serviees Availed
SOTC Travel Limited 9.2
Loan taken from related party
TC Visa Serviecs (India) Limited A50.0
Interest on Joun tuken
TC Visa Services (Indin) Limited 37 -
(i) Fellow Associntes
Interest received on lan given
Trivelhunkie Sofutions Pyt ,Lid, 15.0 Fal
Other Professionnl Chagres (Dulsoureed Staff}
ited - 195.7
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{¢) Outstanding balances arising from sale and purchase of goods and services

The following halanees are outst

e cned o the reporting periced in relation b s

with rebibod parties

[Farticniars

March 31, 2021

March 1. 2020

Tirande Foyohies

Thomas Cook [Inddia) Limited

SOTC Travel Limited

Quss Corpr Limited

Traved Corperation (i) Limited

Other Payables

Thomas Cook (India) Limited 33.4
Advances from Related Parties
Thomas Cook (India) Limited 926.0 -
SOTC Travel Limited 51 -
Loan from Related Parties
TC Visa Serviees (India) Limited 350.0 -
Interest payable on Loan from Related Partics
TC Visa Services (India) Limited 3.7 £
Total payables to related parties =,560.2 3,865.7

Particilars

Mareh g1, 2021

March 31, 2020

Adwvarces to Rolated Partics

SOTC Travel Limited

19.4

Trade Receivables

Thomas Cook (India) Limiled

45322

7.180.1

SOTC Travel Limited

15473

1,626.9

Loan Given to Related payvtics

Thonmus Cook (Tndind Limited

TravelJunkie Solutions P Lid.

350.0

150.0

Irvestinertt in Related Fartics

“TravelJunkie Solutions Py Ll

400,00

interest Recevable

Thoawas Cook (India) Limited

37

Trovel lunkie Solutions Pvt Lid.

7

(Total receivables from related parties

6.152.5

9.364.2

Note 23: Enrnings Per Share

For the year ended Marelh

Particulars For the year snded
March 31, 2021 at, 2020
Nt Profit attributable to wguit cholder: [1,461.6) 757,00
Weighted wverige number of outstinling slores 300 S0
[} Basic earnings per share
Attrihutahle to the equity halder of the compans (48.7] 252
(1) Dilnted earnings per share
l_-\llril’ul:!]llv Lor Ehe eyuily holder of Hae compuny [48.7) 253

() Reconeiliation of earnings nsed in ealealating earnings per sharve

in caleulating diluted earnings per share

Particulars Mareh 51, 2021 March 31, 2020

Basic carni r share

Profits attributable Lo Ve equity balders of the company’ used {1a61.6) 757.0|
in caleulating Basic sarnings per share

Profits attributable to the equity helders of the company used (1,461.6) 757:0

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the d

enominator

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Weighted average number of equity

in basic car 30.0 30.0|
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential
lequity shares used as the denominator in caleulating diluted
learning per share 30.0
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Norter g Lomaes
* . mtracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modied rdrospeetive methed und has
seted not e apply the foquirements of Tnd AS 16 Leases to short-term leases of ol

b L effoctive April 1, 209 and applisd the siandand o ol lese
’ rined varnings, on the date of initEal applieation. The Group hos o
Fow v,

ancl the right of
nimedistely before

1 s i ! itial appli
reluting boe Ut Jease neoognised in the Palamee shoo

Tesrridng rali ot Lhe dal

ta shadidard resalted b eovomnitiva of Hight of Vs’ asser of INE 3t les o a beasee Habillivy of 1412 i loes,

gl In preofit and loss during the year fa 1NR .78 lacs.

[

The [ollowing is the movement in lease labilities during the year ended March 21, 2

Particulars Amount

Balanee as at March 31, 20: 110.5
On aceount of Transition Lo Ind AS 116 -
Interest on lease liabil,

Disposal during the year
Payment of lease labilitics
Balunec at the end of the year

Classification as
Non current.
Current

Below are the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2021 on an und

Particulars Amount

Less lhnnnne}mr 4.7

One o Five vears 70.70

|More than Five year -

Rental expense recognised for short-term leases and low value leases for the 0.6

.06
36.99 s

Nate 25: Micra, Suml] and Medinm Enterprises

There are no Miers, Small and Medium Enterprises, (o whom te Conga v dues, nhich ar
Mia mall ard Moedium Enlerprises Dovelopment Act 2006 has been dotermined 1o the extent sueh par
“This has been relicd upon by the suditors.

tiom as reguined to be diselosed under the
bl with the Company.

1. This inden
1om the basis of informatinn aw

haave been ke

Note 26z Segment Informntion
Hseed en the "mansgenwnt approsch” as defined Tn Ind AS 108, the Chiel Cperating Deelsbon Maoker (C01M), cotapeses of [Rrecior and Sonbor management, esnlustes the Company’s
perfornuanee and revews the segment husiness, The Company is primarily engaged In o single segment hosiness of “Fravd mebated see Al amsets of the Cospany ore domieiled in Indin
andl the Crmpany carns enfine revienue From s aperations in Tndia.

Notc 27-IND AS 115" from C with C s
As per Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Concracts with Customers’ revenue is recognised at an amount that refleets the consideration (o which an entity expeets to be entitled in exchange for
serviees toa customer.

i) Details of revenue from contracts with e cd by the Ce ¥, net of cet tuxes, in its Statement of Profit and Loss

For the vy
March

nded  For the year ended
2021 March 31, 2020

Travel and Related Serviees ). 0629

ii) Disaggregnte Revenue
The following lable presents Company revenue disaggregated by type of revenue stream and by geography:
Revenue based on geography

Particulars For the year ended  For the yoar ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
3,366.6 18,01
(0.9) 20512
1300 20,0020 |
Revenue based on El‘ﬂd ct and services
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended|
March 31, 2021 Muarceh 31, 2020
Travel aml Related Sendues T80657 2, DG

Humsn Hesouree Services 2 b

33657 E

i} Contract bnlmnce
The contract labilices primsarily relate to the advanee considerution received from customens for which revenoe i= recognized when the performan

{ELE e i delivered.

. This fncludes advances reasived from ghobal distreibution systems towards:
s recognized as and when the performance obligations under the schemes

Advatee Collectbons is recognised when payment Is reveived before the related perlemaonce obligation is satisl
performance linked bonuses. Revenue from Performance linked bonuses from global distribution systems ('GDS:
are achieved.

Revenue from contract with customers

Particulars As at March 31, As at April 01, zozo
zoz1

Income Reecived In Advance & 1,0062.7

- 1,062.7

Nate a8: Investment mude in Traveljunkie Solutions Private Li
Praring the year eneked March :, 2019, the Company kas cntered inte an Shore Subseription and
- {pistikie S0l & Privote Limited ("Travelhunkie"), promeaters and other seed fme
L y Lhe Group has scguired 15.57% stabe for a
Imvest e raveljunkiv as associate a8 per Ind AS 28, Investment in Assoediles.
Further during veor eneded March o0, Sroup has invested 200 lakhs as ogrecd Shane 5
mueni ancl adiances provided bo iis associate Trovel Junkie as of 31 March 2o,
doulitfud s Ui has resulled in an impalrmient provision of le 572,

auid with a travel star up wlled
trmechies as por Lhe terms of the
ampany has classified

In = : with

Forrpany assessced the recoverable
mestid amount and advanees provided
b, e

amaunt of Inves

o Lhee assowial




TC TOURS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note : 29 Impact of COVID-19 (Global pandemic)

mernment had taken
e 1o VOV ID=1g

0n 11 March 2020, the World Health Orzanization declared COVID-19 outhreak as a pandemic. Responding to the potentially serions threat of the pandemic. the Indias
& series of mepsures to contain the ootbreak, which included fnposing Jock-downs across the country. The lockdowns and restrictions tmposed o varbous activit
pandemie have posed challenges to all the Losinesses-of TC Toars Limited, Lockdown guidefines issved by Central/State governments mandated eessation of air reaffee and oo fooms of prbilic
transport as well as closure of hotel operations. With the partial lifting of the lockdown restrictions, the Company has started re-opening it's branwhes and ether establishments, The Compan
expects all the operations becoming nermial in a phased manner after the lockdown is Nifted, all travel restrietions are removed and e confidence of corparates ¢ traelers = estored, The
Company expects the demand for its services to pick up albeit at a slower pace once lockdown is lifted. The Company has assessed the tmpact of COVID=10 o0 the carring amomnt of its asses
and revenue recognition. In developing the assumptions relating to the possibie future uncertainties, the Company, as on date of approval of these standalone finnoeial results has wsed internal
and external sources of information 1o the extent available. The Company. lased on eurrent estimates and information. expeets the carning amount of these assets 1o be reconersd, The
Company has assessed the impact for existing and anticipated effects of COVID-12 on the future cash Alew projections on the basis of significant assumptions as per the available information.
The Company has comfortalde liquidity position to mest its commitments and in addition the funds are expected to be generated from the operating activities. The Company has undertaken
various cost saving initiatives to maximise gperating cash flows and conserve cash position in the given situation. Based on aforesaid assessment. management believes that as per estimates
made canservatively, the Company will continuee as a going concern. The Company continues to monitor any material changes to its COVID-19 Impact assessment, resulting from the future
economic conditions and future yncertainty, if any.

Note 30: Previous vear's figures has been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to confirm with current year's figure.
Signatures to Notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Date: May 25, 2021 Date: May 25, 2021 Date: May 25, 2021
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